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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT
EFRES

The year 2024 was a challenging yet opportunity-filled period

for Hong Kong's financial market. As one of the world's
leading financial hubs, Hong Kong demonstrated its resilience
and adaptability amidst the fluctuations of the global and

regional economic environment.
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In 2024, the global economy faced ongoing challenges such
as geopolitical tensions, inflationary pressures, and shifts in
major central banks’ monetary policies. Mainland China’s
economic growth slowdown in 2024, particularly in
consumption and the real estate sector, which affected Hong
Kong's role as a bridge between China and global markets.
The US Federal Reserve maintained high interest rates till
December to combat inflation, leading to a stronger flow of
global capital toward US dollar assets. The Hong Kong dollar
hovered near the weak-side convertibility undertaking
(HKD7.85 per USD), prompting the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (HKMA) to intervene multiple times to maintain
exchange rate stability, tightening market liquidity. Due to the
US Federal Reserve's high-interest-rate policy, Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rates (HIBOR) rose significantly in 2024,
increasing mortgage and corporate borrowing costs, which in
turn weighed on local economic activities. Geopolitical
tensions in the Asia-Pacific region (such as the Taiwan Strait
situation and US-China relations) deepened market

uncertainties, dampening investor confidence.

In 2024, Hong Kong demonstrated resilience and the ability to
withstand challenges, thanks to its mature market
mechanisms, internationalized investment environment, and
close ties with Mainland China. Hong Kong, as a key IPO hub
in the Asia-Pacific region, saw a gradual recovery in its IPO
market, reflecting renewed investor confidence and a robust
pipeline of listings. Our principal financial services business
continues to adapt amid ongoing market volatility. While the
challenges of previous years have impacted our results, they
have also equipped us with valuable expertise and experience,
reinforcing our competitive position and enabling us to lead in
times of change. As we expand our presence in equity
markets, we will strengthen our relationships with clients and

actively pursue opportunities in corporate financing.
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Our focus on innovation remains unwavering. We are
committed to providing world-class, smart, and professional
one-stop financial services that cater to investors’ evolving
needs. In addition, we are committed to accelerating the
growth of our insurance brokerage business through our
dedicated agents. This expansion will enable us to better serve
our clients’ diverse insurance needs and enhance our overall

service offerings.

Acknowledging the importance of business diversification and
improved resilience amid market volatility, the Group has been
diligently pursuing investment opportunities in other business
segments, while endeavouring simultaneously to nurture its
current operations. This strategic approach aims to augment
the Group's business agility, broaden its revenue sources, and
invigorate its overall business prospects amid a challenging

economic environment.

I would like to take this opportunity to convey our genuine
appreciation and heartfelt gratitude to the management team
and all the Group's staff for their unwavering professional
dedication, diligent work, steadfast commitment and valuable
contributions throughout the Reporting Year. With substantial
efforts being made to drive growth in various parts of our
operations, our longstanding ties with clients, and a healthy
and balanced investment portfolio, the Group has built solid

foundations to advance its development into the future.

Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 March 2025
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DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEEAEREC A k)

Value Convergence Holdings Limited, together with its
subsidiaries (“VC Group” or the “Group”) is an established
financial services group committed to delivering premier
financial services and products that fulfill various investment
and wealth management needs of clients in the Greater China
region and extended into property investment as well. The
Group's expertise includes (i) provision of financial services
comprising securities brokering and dealing, financing services,
corporate finance and other advisory services, asset
management and insurance brokerage; (ii) proprietary trading;

and (iii) property investment.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
The Hang Seng Index fluctuated throughout the vyear,

searching for a bottom amid weak growth in Mainland China's
economy and global capital flows, ranging from a low of
14,794 points on January 22 to a high of 23,241 points on
October 7, with investor sentiment remaining cautious. The
Hang Seng Tech Index continued to face challenges from
regulatory pressures in Mainland China and competition in the
global technology industry. Despite breakthroughs in the digital
economy and artificial intelligence by tech giants like Tencent
and Alibaba, overall market confidence remained subdued,

leading to a lacklustre performance in the tech sector.

The Hong Kong IPO market sentiment was cautious in the first
half of 2024, but IPO financing activities picked up significantly
in the second half, accounting for more than 80% of total
fundraising for the year. In 2024, there were 71 IPOs,
representing a slight decrease of 3% from 2023. However,
the total funds raised reached HK$87.5 billion. This substantial
increase of 89% year-on-year, placing Hong Kong the fourth

globally in IPO fundraising.

In 2024, Hong Kong continued strengthening its position as
an international asset management hub and green finance
center. Hong Kong attracted increasing funds from Asia and
the global market, particularly from Mainland China’s high-net-
worth individuals. However, competition from places like
Singapore intensified, pushing Hong Kong to improve
transparency in its legal and regulatory environment. Hong
Kong has made great strides in promoting green bonds and
sustainable financial products. The government's green bond
program further attracted international investors, solidifying

Hong Kong's position as a green finance hub in Asia.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Leveraging its financial prowess and extensive experience in
the financial services industry throughout 2024, the Group
continued to provide high-quality services to its clients. Amid
market volatility, in addition to maintaining the sound
operation of its core brokerage and financing businesses, the
Group also sought to achieve progress in its newly-acquired
property investment operations, also in its insurance brokerage
businesses. The expansion of these businesses contributed as

another sources of customer bases for the Group.

While the group still incurred losses in 2024, the results
showed improvement compared the previous year. This was
attributed to a slower decline in the value of proprietary
holdings, a decrease in staff costs and operating expenses,
and a reduction in impairment losses on accounts receivable

recognised during the year.
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The Group's principal revenue streams were derived from its
traditional brokerage and financing operations, collectively
contributing approximately 80% of its total revenue. During
2024, the Group maintained its provision of various financial
services, including local and overseas securities trading,
placements, underwriting, and margin financing through VC
Brokerage Limited (“VC Brokerage”). Additionally, the Group
offered financing services through VC Finance Limited ("VC
Finance”). The Group also took on the role of placing agent
and underwriter for fundraising activities of Hong Kong-listed
companies. It provided a range of financial and strategic
advisory support services to clients, including offering
corporate finance and other advisory services such as mergers
and acquisitions advisory through VC Capital Limited ("VC
Capital”) and company secretarial services through VC
Corporate Services Limited (“VCCS"). Due to market
fluctuations, the Group’s underwriting, sub-underwriting,
placing and sub-placing commissions slightly decreased,
alongside corporate finance and other advisory services and
asset management, resulting in a reduction in segment

revenue.

During 2024, the Group continued to spearhead the
expansion of its securities trading services through VC
Brokerage and insurance brokerage services through Experts
Management Limited. Capturing the opportunities arising from
the reopening of the Hong Kong and Mainland China borders,
the Group's senior management team proactively reached out

and attracted more clientele from Mainland China.
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Included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
the Group held financial assets for trading, comprising equity
securities listed in Hong Kong, worth approximately HK$116.4
million as of 31 December 2024, a 25% decrease in market
value from the previous year against the backdrop of a poor
performing equity market and bearish investor sentiment.
During the 2024, the Group held stocks mainly in industrials,
which tumbled on weak corporate earnings. The Group
generally invested in high-beta stocks whose volatility level
was above that of the broader market, so the business

segment faced fluctuations during the 2024.

The Group's focus on diversification was in evidence, as was
its proactive approach to adapting to ever-changing market
dynamics and exploring emerging opportunities. By expanding
property investment segment, the Group aimed to stablise

revenue to diminish the risk by dependence to capital market.
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Placing of 244,200,000 new shares under general
mandate (lapsed)(the “Share Placing”)

On 22 February 2024, the Company entered into the share
placing agreement (the “Share Placing Agreement”) with the
VC Brokerage (the “Placing Agent”) which shall procure not
less than six share placees to subscribe for up to
244,200,000 new Shares (the “Placing Shares”) at the share
placing price of HK$0.12 per Placing Share during the share
placing period on a best effort basis. The Placing Shares
represent (i) approximately 9.87% of the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) as at
the date of the Share Placing Agreement; (ii) approximately
8.99% of the total number of issued Shares as enlarged by

the allotment and issue of the Placing Shares.

As the conditions precedent as set out in the Share Placing
Agreement were not fully satisfied or fulfilled by 29 May
2024, being the share closing date, the Share Placing
Agreement lapsed and the Share Placing did not proceed.
Details of the Share Placing had been disclosed in the
Company's announcements dated 22 February 2024, 8 March
2024, 5 April 2024, 26 April 2024, 17 May 2024 and 29
May 2024.
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Acquisition of Zhanhua Jiutai Gas Co, Ltd. (&1t X &=
MRK|ER Q) (“Zhanhua Jiutai”) (lapsed) and
placing of convertible bonds under specific mandate

On 22 February 2024, Astral Wealth Limited (“Astral Wealth"),
the Company’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with Beijing Zhonglu
Longxiang Investment Co, Ltd. QLR BEMIKZEBR A F)
(the "Vendor") in relation to the acquisition of 24% of the
total equity interest of Zhanhua Jiutai at the consideration of
HK$30,000,000 by the issue of the consideration convertible
bonds by the Company. As certain conditions precedent under
the sale and purchase agreement have not been fulfilled or
waived (as the case may be) on or before 28 June 2024,
Astral Wealth and the Vendor did not have to proceed with
the transactions contemplated under the sale and purchase

agreement.

On the same date, the Company entered into the convertible
bonds placing agreement (the “CB Placing Agreement”) with
the VC Brokerage (the “Placing Agent”) which shall procure
not less than six placees to subscribe for the convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$84.0
million with the initial placing conversion price of HK$0.12 on
a best effort basis. As the conditions precedent as set out in
the CB Placing Agreement were not fully satisfied by 7 August
2024, the CB Placing Agreement lapsed and the placing of the

convertible bonds did not proceed.

Details of the transaction had been disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 22 February 2024, 13
March 2024, 14 June 2024, 28 June 2024, 5 July 2024 and
7 August 2024; and the Company's circular dated 22 May
2024.
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Establishment of property investment business

On 16 March 2023, Astral Wealth Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with two independent third parties to acquire a residential
property located in Hong Kong, through acquisition of a Hong
Kong private company, Polyton China Limited (the "Polyton
China"), which hold the said property, at a consideration of
HK$18 million.

On 30 April 2024, the Group completed the acquisition of
Polyton China. The property is currently leased out and provides
the Group with expanded revenue base through rental income

while offering potential for future property value appreciation.

Acquisition and disposal of 30% equity interest in
Hainan Zhongtian Jiahe Industrial Co., Ltd.

On 26 July 2024, Shenzhen Huiying Zhichuang Technology Co.,
Ltd. CRYITE &S BIRHZ AR 2 R]) (“Huiying Zhichuang”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Zhongxi Energy
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (FEREEIRUILR)BRAF) (the “Vendor”)
agreed to sell to Huiying Zhichuang, and Huiying Zhichuang
agreed to purchase from the Vendor, the sale interest at the
consideration of RMB9,990 (equivalent to approximately
HK$10,700). The sale interest represents 30% of the entire
equity interest in Hainan Zhongtian Jiahe Industrial Co., Ltd. &
FRXEAEEAR AT ("Hainan Zhongtian Jiahe").

The consideration has been fully paid on 19 August 2024.
Details of the transaction had been disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 26 July 2024 and 21 August 2024.

On 27 December 2024, the Group has entered into an
agreement with an independent party to dispose the entire
holding of 100% equity interest of Huiying Zhichuang to an
independent third party for the consideration of RMBI
(equivalent to approximately HK$1). The transaction was
completed on 31 December 2024. The 30% equity interest

in Hainan Zhongtian Jiahe has also been transferred.
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Placing of Convertible Bonds under General Mandate
(the “CB Placing”)

On 9 September 2024, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with VC Brokerage (the
“Placing Agent"), pursuant to which the Company proposed to
offer for subscription, and the Placing Agent agreed to procure
subscriptions for the convertible bonds of the Company (the
“Convertible Bonds") on a best effort basis on the terms and
subject to the conditions set out in the Placing Agreement.
The Placing Agent shall procure not less than six placees to
subscribe for the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$30.0 million during the placing period. In
the case of the conversion rights having been exercised in full
at the initial conversion price of HK$0.10 (subject to
adjustment), a maximum of 300 million conversion shares to
be allotted and issued by the Company, representing (i)
approximately 12.13% of the existing total number of the
Company's issued Shares as at the Company's announcement
dated 9 September 2024; and (ii) approximately 10.82% of
the total number of the Company's issued Shares as enlarged
by the allotment and issue of the 300 million conversion
shares. Assuming all the Convertible Bonds are successfully
placed by the Placing Agent, the maximum gross proceeds
from the Placing will be HK$30,000,000. The maximum net
proceeds from the Placing (after deducting the commission
payable to the Placing Agent, professional fees and other
related costs and expenses incurred in the Placing) will be
approximately HK$29.2 million which will be used for (i)
repayment of liabilities of approximately HK$6 million; and (ii)
general working capital including but not limited to rental
expenses, salary expenses and other office overhead of
approximately HK$23.2 million. On 26 September 2024, the
CB Placing was completed and Convertible Bonds in the
amount of HK$14.4 million were issued and allotted on that
date. Further details of the CB Placing are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 9 September 2024 and 26
September 2024.

BE-—REERETRRES (TER
BFEMESHE])

RZZEZWFENANE ARAIHERAZS
(MEEREDAITVESHE ((RSHED -
Bt AR EER2FEIERE  MES
RIB R BRI A& 17 5% P&l 2 IR SR AL 72 EL A
GG ZRBRT RERMEEEERKAR
AR RES ([AIRRESR ) 2 RE - BBE
RIBANEE AR DR REAR
BA$ 4% 5% 530,000,000/ T2 7] #%
E5 o BRIRIRIEIZY) P RMRE0.108 7T (7]
FTHRE)BHTE  ARABEERETR
%300,000,000/% # Bz fx fn - #8E R ()R &
ARAMAZZ-ZMFEFNANB ZAMHBEH
ZHEERRA D BEITRGDBEL2.13% ;
Ko (i) 4% B 3%} %% 7300,000,0000% 32 1% % 15
MERARRDADBEITRGDGBELD
10.82% - BB ERERINEE 2 5 &
RESF REFEMSRELEZSHOR
30,000,000/ 7T © BL & H 18 2 P15 KI8 F 8
(BINBREMNEEREZAE BEXBRU
MRELEEHEMES 2 AMBEAX AR ERE)
&= 4 4529,200,0008 7T E#ERG)E
E B & 46,000,000 T R(i)—REESE
C(BEEETEAESHAY FHHAIRE
fth 7 A B Z) #923,200,000 70 c R =
“HWHEAARZ+RB  TRRESFREFEE
BEERK ¢ M$ 58 A14,400,00008 7T 2 A 1%
REFEDRZBEITRESE - AT RRE
SREFHZE-—SHFBENARABHRR
—EFE_WFAAABEZZTZ_NF NA
ZHRBZRAMHRA -
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The net proceeds from the CB Placing were used as follows:

ABRBRESFEEFRZIMERBFEDEN
TH&ZREM :

Actual use of Expected
net proceeds Remaining  timeline for
Intended up to 31 balance of utilising the
use of net December  unutilised net  unutilised net
Period under review Purpose of usage proceeds 2024 proceeds  proceeds
HE-E2ORAE
FE®%E +t=A=t-H AERZ AAFBRE
REEE ZHBNERE FEME FRERH
I3 6 0 Rz EREE ERERASE BRAEH GEAREX
HK'$000 HK'$000 HK'$000
TR TR TET
Since completion of CB Placing  General working capital 8,400 8,400 - N/A
on 26 September 2024 —%eEED TER
B-E-MEAA-TRA
TR AAREFTESERL  Repayment of liabilities 6,000 6,000 - N/A
BREE TEM
14,400 14,400 -

Disposal of entire holding of 100% equity interest in
D & K Asset Management (HK) Limited and VC
Technology Assets Limited

On 19 September 2024, the Company as vendor entered into
sale and purchase agreements with AIKEQI HK Limited
("AIKEQI") as purchaser, pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to sell to AIKEQI, and AIKEQI has agreed to purchase
from the Company, (1) the entire holding of 100% equity
interest in D & K Asset Management (HK) Limited ("D & K")
and the Company has agreed to assign to AIKEQI, and AIKEQI
has agreed to receive the assignment of, the shareholder's
loan at an aggregate consideration of approximately of
HK$40,000; and (2) the entire holding of 100% equity
interest in VC Technology Assets Limited (“VC Technology
Assets”) and the Company has agreed to assign to AIKEQI,
and AIKEQI has agreed to receive the assignment of, the
shareholder’'s loan at an aggregate consideration of
approximately of HK$20,000.

HEREHEEEE (EB)ERAAR
BEERNREERR LR Z100%MK 7 #
wmZ 2R

RZZE_WEFEARA+TNAA ARG (ERE
75 ) EAIKEQI HK Limited ([AIKEQI]) ({fEBE
VBB RE B ARREREMR
AIKEQIH & (MAIKEQITR 2 A B | 2~ A 7 88
BE)()REHmEEER (BB BRAR([E
) Z100%R AR 2 2HFR - BAA
7B [ & & X {8 £740,0007% s [AAIKEQIEE
# (MAKEQITMEREX#E) RREK k()
REBMEEEBRAR ([EAREEE])
Z100%R ARz 2 HFR - BEAXAREE
A =12 R (8 4920,000/%8 JT MAIKEQIE 3% (M
AIKEQITFERIEX #) REEK °
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D & K is principally engaged in investment holding, and has
three subsidiaries which are principally engaged in sales and
marketing of digital assets. VC Technology Assets is also
engaged in the same segment. As a result of the disposal, the
Group discontinued the digital assets business. The disposal
was completed on 27 September 2024 and gain on disposal
of approximately HK$416,000 was recorded in the
consolidated financial statements accordingly.

OUTLOOK

Hong Kong's economy is expected to reflect steady growth in
2025 as influenced by a blend of domestic policies and global
economic dynamics. The HKMA will likely maintain a stable
monetary policy to support economic growth while managing
inflation. This may involve closely monitoring interest rate
trends, especially in relation to the US Federal Reserve's

policies.

The local financial market will continue to be a global leader,
with its IPO hub drawing significant attention from
international businesses and investors. In 2025, it is set to
strengthen its position further by diversifying its offerings and
streamlining its regulatory processes. A wider range of
industries, including technology, healthcare, and green finance,
will likely seek to tap into the capital markets, reflecting Hong
Kong's diverse economic landscape. Overall, the IPO market in
Hong Kong is poised for a robust 2025, with a mix of local
and international companies aiming to leverage Hong Kong's

financial infrastructure for growth and expansion.

In the financial services sector, the Group will continue to
maintain its position as a comprehensive service provider. To
further strengthen its market position, it plans to adopt
strategic initiatives and allocate additional resources to the
development of its insurance brokerage business, which is
expected to achieve attractive returns for the Group in the
near future. The Group recognises the value of leveraging the
established reputations and expertise of Experts Management
Limited, which can help it attract a broader range of clients
and offer them a comprehensive suite of insurance brokerage
services. In adopting business diversification and risk mitigation
strategies, the Group will make every effort to accelerate the

growth of its insurance brokerage business.

EHEITERERELER  H-MHMBARE
BREEENEEIISEE - EARTEEE
MEER—%(BHRR BEEELE K&
BRI EHBEEEEK - AALEE R
TMFAAZtTEBEA - MEEKRELN
416,000 L2 R ARG MR AR -

RE
RAWBREEREBESNZHARAZE B
HEBLCEEN _Z_AFEBSER - &8
PEEARREEREE UBREER
RESBR SRS RENERNEB
o LERXEBARBRIBE -

A& @M S HEBRELER HMREER
AU ELBEREXERREERT N
T_hFE FEAEABEBLZTIRELELE
ERFFE-SEBEARML - R
BEFEREMECERENZELSTERFE
SREAEBLRTES  RBREBZ TIEOKE
BR-BEMES  BAZHREEMSE
R-F_AFEDER A MERDEH
BRAEEZ S MERRERERILR IR
K e

EemBREHITE ASESEEEFHEER
MERBEHEEROMA - RE—TEEBHED
B - AN R BT BRI R ERER
R4 TS - FREEEEBRN T AR KA
REEBFERABER -NEBRE 5
Experts Management Limitedz B {788 &
EREHRAETR  TARFRHEZER
BRALRY - BBRMEBZ T REARE
FRER  AEBKE2 NIMRARBELEL 2
BRFK -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's

consolidated revenue was approximately HK$69.1 million,
which decreased by about 6% as compared with the same
period in 2023 of approximately HK$73.3 million. The Group
recorded a consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$128.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024 compared to
approximately HK$287.8 million for the same period in 2023.

The loss in the Group's consolidated result mainly attributable
to owners of the Company in 2024 compared to 2023 was
mainly attributable to (i) decrease in impairment loss on
accounts receivable of approximately HK$64.8 million; and (ii)
decrease in the net realised and unrealised loss on financial

assets held-for-trading of approximately HK$82.7 million.

B 7% 5l R
HE-_Z-_M&EF+_-_F=+—HIEEE K
EB 256 WK% 569,100,000 T - &=
T = = F [ HF#I73,300,000%8 T8 L #96% °
REEREBEZE_ZT-_NFEF+=_A=+—H1E
FEBBARAEAEARLEEEREY
128,400,000/ 7 ' T — T =F R H AL
287,800,000/ 7T °

BT =% AXEER_Z_HF i
BeARBEEANBIEGEEEBBRNEE
BR(DERERZAEBEEBEBR DD
64,800,000 7T : R(NFIEEBE 2B EE
CEEBRLRREREBEBRBFERLD
82,700,0007 JT °
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To facilitate the review, the Group's revenue and segment
information shown in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated

financial statements is reproduced below after some

rearrangements:

Revenue Analysis

m

W A

2024
—EomE
Proportion of
total revenue

2023
—E-=F
Proportion of
total revenue

6 e
] t Bl
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TERT TET
Revenue from continuing REFELEER
operations: 2
Brokerage and Financing R RpE 55,374 80% 59,674 81%
Brokerage commission and BrEmeREM
other related fees HHAEHR 4,758 7% 4414 6%
Underwriting, sub-underwriting, 8%+ 288 - B
placing and sub-placing EafeEfe
commission 689 1% 1,459 2%
Interest income from brokerage KEZREKEF 2
clients F B U A 20,417 30% 19,507 27%
Interest income from money REMBEBEFZ
lending clients FEHA 29,510 42% 34,294 46%
Corporate Finance and Other ~ {MEEEE I E fth BE R
Advisory Services R % 3,841 6% 4813 7%
Asset Management EEERE 2,338 3% 2,165 3%
Insurance Brokerage R 7,223 10% 6,663 9%
Proprietary Trading BEEE - - - -
Property Investment MERE 280 1% - -
Total revenue 4 3 69,062 100% 73,315 100%

C ER AR A M MR 5 K6t
RZAKEWERDHEMENEEL EH

Increase
(decrease)
10
CRid)

%

(7%)

8%

(539%)

5%

(149)

(20%)
8%
8%

(6%)



20

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2024 £}

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EH[EsTsi RO

Segment Analysis 2D
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(#&E5)
Segment results: DERELE -
Brokerage and Financing e hmE (42,250) (110,531)
Corporate Finance and Other Advisory EFE K& H it B IR %
Services (4,321) (5,788)
Asset Management BETE 588 (630)
Insurance Brokerage RBR A 42 (281) (274)
Proprietary Trading BEZEE (50,387) (132,370)
Property Investment WMERE (4,184) -
Group segment loss EEHEEE (100,835) (249,593)
Fair value change on financial asset BRAFEIERRE

at fair value through profit or loss BaRERBIHBEEL

NP EEE - (5,400)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBA Tz W 8 2,437
Unallocated administrative costs Ko ‘JLBZﬁ)Z$ (25,992) (38,367)
Share of (loss) profit of associates SEEE AT 2 (BE) & (89) 61
Loss before taxation MR TEATE 1R (126,908) (290,862)
Income tax (expenses) credit Frisfi (Ax) Bax (121) 5,470
Loss for the year from continuing FEREEB 2 FEER

operations (127,029) (285,392)
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEREER FEER

operation (2,117) (2,806)
Loss for the year FEEE (129,146) (288,198)
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Brokerage and Financing

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company,
through VC Brokerage, provides securities brokering and
dealing, margin financing, and placing and underwriting
services. It also through another indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, VC Finance, provides money lending services. For
the year ended 31 December 2024, the brokerage and
financing businesses recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$55.4 million as compared with approximately HK$59.7
million for the same period last year, representing a decrease
of about 7%, and accounted for about 80% of the Group's

total revenue.

Brokerage service

The Group's brokerage commission and other related fees
from dealing in securities for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to approximately HK$4.8 million, which was
about 8% higher than that of 2023 of approximately HK$4.4
million, and accounted for about 7% of the Group's total
revenue. The Group’s brokerage transactions recorded
increase with average daily trading turnover increasing from
approximately HK$5.9 million in 2023 to that of 2024 of

approximately HK$6.3 million, being an increase of about 7%.

Financing service

The Group's total interest income from financing for the year
ended 31 December 2024 decreased by about 7% to
approximately HK$49.9 million from approximately HK$53.8
million for the same period last year, and accounted for about
72% of the Group's total revenue. The revenue included the
interest income derived from both the brokerage business and

the money lending business.

ot & 53 #T
BE-_T-_MF+_A=+—RLFE &

NGRS L/Emm%}mf\m%i«%a&%-?%ﬂ&
B RESCHERY UAREERBHR
i%°$’AETBTLi@ﬁjj—FEJFEH§%:§W%’
AERMBRENERS BE_T_MNF
TZAZT—HIEFE  ERLRBE XS
15 #955,400,000/%8 7T 2 48 Wz - A R ER 8
#9 /59,700,0007% 7T - Rl 18 49 A&7% - it
W a5 10 78 58 B 48 0 25 4980% ©

AR AR 7%

AEBRBE-_T_MF+-_A=+—H1It
iJ*ZE“a?%sﬁﬁz,ﬁﬁaﬁiu&z)\&ﬁmm%%
I & #) /4,800,000 7 RZTEZ=ZF 4
4,400,000 JT 18 AN 48% - I 15 2N 5 [ 42 Y
WAIT% AEB KL ZSBEREM -
A H KA R ZF — = F 495,900,000

TUIEMNA)7%ZE —ZF — IUF 496,300,000/ 7T °

A& R
AEBRBEZ_ZT_NF+-_A=+—81L
FECREEBINERABEREFRBO
53,800,000/ 7T T % #I7%Z %949,900,000
BT Tl W ER I AN & B AR U E 4972% © it
WaH B RS EBRREEBEE 2 M B
A e
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Financing service: Brokerage clients

The Group’s interest income from our brokerage clients
recorded approximately HK$20.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2024, representing an increase of about 5% as
compared to approximately HK$19.5 million for the same
period last year. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase of average loan portfolio of our brokerage clients by
about 39% for the year ended 31 December 2024 as
compared with the same period last year. For the year ended
31 December 2024, there was an additional impairment loss
of approximately HK$19.2 million on brokerage client
receivables (2023: HK$43.4 million) in accordance with the
Group's credit control policies and procedures and
requirements of relevant accounting standard. The average
interest rate for brokerage clients is approximately 12%.
Almost all brokerage client receivables are pledged with

securities held by the clients.

Financing service: Money lending clients

The Group's interest income generated from the money
lending services was approximately HK$29.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024, representing a decrease of
about 14% as compared to approximately HK$34.3 million for

the same period last year.

During the year, the Group did not grant any new loan (2023:
nil).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 25 active loan
accounts (comprising 16 individuals and 9 corporations)
under the Company’s loan portfolio. The Company provides its
financing service to individual and corporation clients of
different backgrounds. The money lending business was

funded by the internal resources of the Group.

BERE - L EEES

AEEREE-_ZE-_NF+=-A=+—H1E
FEEGRELLEBEP ZFERAL
20,400,000/ 7T * ¥ A F A #14919,500,000
AT AN 4I5% c WARMEZ A KE
EREE_T_MF+-_HA=T—HLFE
ML EBEPRHZ FPHERESRESF
FIEAFEEL I N 4939% - BE T —MNF+=
A=Z+T—HRLFE RBRASEZFE%E
WEREFARBEGTERRTE - B
HEBEPHRESZGSENBREEBERLY
19,200,000/ 7t (=& = = F : 43,400,000
BIT) o ML EBE P IE 2 T F EL
R12% - BRE D UKL EBE P KIEH
BEEPHA BTG IEER -

FBERE MEXBEES
AEBRBEZ T _NF+_A=+—HL
FERERHEBERBIEEZMNBBAL R
29,500,000/ 7T * ¥ % F [A #14934,300,000
IR A #114% ©

FR AEBTEREEAHFER (-
= \E)

R-Z-_MF+-_A=1t—H AEEHF25
B (BE16REARIRMEE) RAQAER
HATZERERERR - ARBIATRAE R
ZEAREREFPREHBERY - WEXD
ZEERBRA/AEE 2 AMLER
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The average loan amount of these loan accounts was
approximately HK$14.1 million (2023: HK$13.5 million). The
percentage of amount of loans and interest receivables from
the largest and the 5 largest customers to total loans and
interest receivables are about 10% and 40% (2023: 10%
and 39%) respectively. Certain loans are secured by
collaterals including equity shares of certain listed and unlisted
companies and legal charges on properties. Interest rates
charged to customers range from 8% to 18% per annum as
at 31 December 2024.

Additional information on money lending business

(1) Business model
The Group’s money lending business is managed through
our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC Finance, with
money lenders license issued under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Group's customers principally include high net worth
individuals, private companies or listed companies
introduced to the directors of the Company through
business/personal networks or are referred to the Group
by its existing or former customers. There is no specific
target loan size but each application would be dealt on
its own merit. The Group finances this money lending
business mainly by internal resources. The following

internal control procedures are put in place:

Assessment and approval

Prior to granting of a loan, the Group carries out credit
risk assessment on the customer, taking into account,
inter alias, background of the customer or the customer's
shareholders (as the case maybe), purpose of the loan,
source of repayment, value of collateral and guarantee(s),
if any, and the financial strength of the customer/

shareholders/guarantors.

ZEEXBEFPZTHERSBOA
14,100,000/ 7T (=& = =4 : 13,500,000
BL) EBREABEPRERUGAEFPZ
EXRRFESBEERKERRAE LD R
FB10%K40% (B - =F : 10%K
39%) ETEFREEFRER EBES
FEMRIFLETRAZERKRG RYWEEE
AL RIE-_MNF+_A=T—HMEFP
WBRZAMENTEFEELI8ENTE -

BRHMEREZEINEH

() EBRA
AEEREXHNEBHE2ENER
RERVHETER ERMBERE
RECHEAEDD) (BREEAF1635)
BHZMEARR AEREZERIE
BESFEAL RARRKLETQ
B EDEHE/TLABESIBTAR
AEFHEHRAXNETFENTA
SEMER EERRETELERE
B ESERFHERANGBERE
TRE - AEBTEURNLERBEN
BEEBREES - TXHIEHEZR
MEERRF

aF1E R EF

RBERERZH - AEEHEFETE
ERRFAG AFEHERREPIE
FZBER(EBAME) ZER  ERZ
B&y - EFHOR - Hfm RER(WE)
ZEBEAREP /BR/ERAZHH
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The approval process for granting loans include the
completion of account opening form (for new customer)
and know-your-customer assessment. The Finance
Department would verify the information obtained
(including identity, business background information and
collateral information), check against supporting
documents (including identity documents, address proof,
securities statements, documents by conducting public
searches and financial statements (for corporate
borrowers)) and initiate credit assessment form for
further processing. The board of directors of VC Finance
would be responsible for approving the grant of the
loans. The legal and compliance department would

prepare the loan documentation for signing.

In addition, the financial controller of the Group is
responsible for conducting the size test to determine if a
proposed loan would trigger any disclosure requirement
under the Listing Rules. The financial controller will also
review the information of the potential client to ascertain
if a proposed loan may constitute a connected
transaction under the Listing Rules. If the proposed loan
triggers any disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules, the financial controller will arrange the board
meeting for the directors of VC Finance and Executive
Committee of the Group to resolve the resolution in
relation to the approval of the proposed loan and make

necessary disclosure as required by the Listing Rules.

Principal of determining the interest rate

The basic interest rate charged to clients generally starts
from 18% per annum. Additionally, collateral may be
required following negotiations with the clients. However,
providing collateral does not automatically result in a
lower interest rate, nor does the absence of collateral
guarantee a higher rate. In certain cases, a lower interest
rate may be accepted due to strong client requests, with
the Group assessing the risk associated with lending, as
well as considering its cash position, finance costs, and

the opportunity cost of the funds involved.
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Monitoring and recovery

If a customer does not repay the loan principal or
accrued interest in accordance with the loan agreement,
the Finance Department would promptly report to the
credit committee of VC Finance including all directors of
VC Finance. The credit committee members of VC
Finance meet once a month to review the status of all
customers, discuss necessary actions required and serves
as an input for loan classification in calculating
impairment loss on loan receivables for financial reporting

purpose.

The actions taken for recovering delinquent loans would
include examination and evaluation of the relevant loan
status, discussion with the customer and internal
discussion about formulating possible action plan.
Recovery strategy involve a wide range of actions
including revision of repayment terms, addition of
collaterals/guarantee, execution of settlement agreement,
foreclosure of collaterals/enforcement of guarantees and
commencement of legal proceedings. The Group strives
to strike a successful balance in its business operations
and risk management by adhering to its credit policies in
order to control the quality of its loan portfolio. The
Group has also appointed an independent internal control
advisor to conduct independent review on adequacy and
effective of internal control systems of the Group's

money lending business.
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(I) Major terms of the loans granted

Summary

Number of active loan accounts

Average loan amount

Percentage of amount of total loans and

interest receivables from the largest customer

Percentage of amount of total loans and
interest receivables from the largest
5 customers

Average duration

Interest rate range (per annum)

Secured Loans

Percentage of loans secured by collaterals
including listed and unlisted equity securities
and legal charge on properties
(“Secured Loans")

Average duration

Interest rate range (per annum)
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L) 2 ER(BERER]D)
HERBEZBD L 37% 350
THER 11.8 months 9.2 months
11.818 A 9218 A
MEEE (FH*X) 12% to 18% 12% to 18%

12%Z18% 12%%18%
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Unsecured Loans

Bk

Percentage of loans with no collateral W R G 2 B
("Unsecured Loans") ([EmEREF])
EERBERE
Average duration 15 BAPR

A R & E (F 72

Interest rate range (per annum)

When determining the terms of unsecured loans, the
Group paid further attention on business background,
financial position, repayment ability and reputation
(including but not limited to their disclosed shareholdings
and directorship in various listed companies) of
respective borrowers and the Group's potential business
opportunities with them. The Group will take appropriate
legal actions against the unsecured borrowers with an
aim of recovery from their other assets in the event of

prolonged defaults.

The money lending licence has been obtained by VC
Finance since 2003. The business strategy of VC Finance
focuses on providing larger loan amounts to high-net-
worth clients, allowing the Company to charge higher
interest rates. These clients are usually being financially
well-established, typically seek loans to enhance their
investment opportunities. They possess strong investment
strategies and a high level of financial acumen, which
contributes to the protection of their wealth and the
management of substantial assets, thereby presenting a

relatively lower risk for the Company.

%)

I IFE A

2024 2023

—EnmF —E-=
63% 65%
8.0 months 7.8 months
8.018 A 7.818E A
8% to 18% 8% to 18%
8%Z%18% 8%Z18%

REEEBERERZ GRE  AEER
MIBEBRAZEBER  MHRR -
ﬁ%&’aéﬁﬂﬂ 2 (B %15 TR ERA
Bt WA e AN 5=
@EER%WJ\E%%%FEZ}%E%% °
HEERMBRZER  AEEKYHE
ERERARBURETE - AFEILE
KA R A& 2 U B 5ROR -

ERMEE —TT=_FEIGHEAR
R-EBMGZEBRBEEERNREE
FEEPRERABZENR  EALQF
ABH&HXF%‘WE cREREFPBEMANE
—RBRE AL BT &ﬁzm%
T RETARENKRERRE  BHE
BARFRMBEBE - HF Eﬁi’]ﬁﬂﬁ
BEREBSHNEREEAEEE M
WIS RRARFZzEBREAHRE -
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The abovementioned clients of VC Finance primarily fit
this profile. They are reputable or famous in the
investment field and/or possess the expertise to manage
and grow their financial portfolios effectively. By targeting
this specific client segment, VC Finance is able to
leverage the financial stability and strategic foresight of its
clients to mitigate risks and secure returns for the Group.
This strategy not only supports the growth of the money
lending business but also aligns with the Company’s

broader goals of achieving sustainability in long term.

In light of the significant changes in economic conditions
following the pandemic and the current market sentiment
in Hong Kong, marked by a stagnant stock market and
the downturn in the property market, the directors of VC
Finance have conducted a thorough review of the money
lending business strategy. It is also noted that many
previously successful investors (including individuals,
families and/or companies), who are the target clients of
the Group, are now encountering financial difficulties
such as bankruptcy and liquidation, the Company has
decided to adopt a more cautious approach in the money
lending business. As a result, the Company will be highly
selective in approving new loans until there is a clear
improvement in the economic environment. Concurrently,
the Company will focus on enhancing the management
of existing loan receivables and strengthening its cash
position. This prudent strategy will ensure that the
Company remains well-positioned to capitalise on future

business opportunities as they arise.
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() RFERZBIEHER

(1) Impairment recognition as at year end

The Group applies the general approach, which is often
referred to as “three-stage model”, under HKFRS 9, in
which Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") of loan receivables
are determined based on (a) the changes in credit
quality of the loan receivables since initial recognition,
and (b) the estimated expectation of an economic loss of

the loan receivables under consideration.

Under the general approach, there are two measurement
bases for allowance of ECL: (a) 12-month ECL, which are
the ECL that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date and are
calculated as the allowance for ECL on loan receivables
weighted by the probability of default accumulated over
the 12 months after the reporting date; (b) lifetime ECL,
which are the ECL that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of loan receivables and are
calculated as the allowance for ECL on loan receivables
weighted by the probability of default accumulated over

the entire life of the loan receivables.

The allowance for ECL on loan receivables are derived
from gross credit exposure, recovery rate and probability
of default. The Group uses the following ECL formula to

calculate the allowance for ECL on its loan receivables:

Allowance for ECL = gross credit exposure x adjusted

probability of default x (1 — recovery rate)

REBRBEREM GRS ERIFEHRK
R—EBRME HBERAI=ZKE
B Bt BRERZEREES
BEMEEERD DREQ@EKRE
RZEEEXRB VIS ERBARZ B
K(b)FrE Bz EWER 2 At EEE
BEHIMETE

REERHL BHREEBREREM
B EEH: () 12 AFEMEEEE -
Bpm&EARRI2EARNAIEHRLEZ
BROEMMEBRzAHEERE  HiZ
BEAHRNEAANRBZENRE
gz BREERZ BHREEEEEERT
H OEREFEHEHEESE A
REWERERSHAMAEAEREZ
BHOEMHMEBRZEREEBE  HK
EUERBEFEHRNREZENREX
iz B ERZ BHEE B EER

st
B o
Ea

U ER 2 BREEBERERDRERE
ERBRARE  WREREOBEREL -
AEBEFEAUATEREESEQIARE
BHERWERZEREEBEEER -

BHEEERER = EERARERE x
ABBABIE x (1 - WRE)
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For ECL assessment, the Group's loan receivables are

classified as follows:

0]

(i)

(iii)

Stage 1 (Performing) includes loan receivables that
have not had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at
the reporting date. For these loan receivables,

12-month ECL are recognised.

Stage 2 (Doubtful) includes loan receivables that
have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (unless they have low credit risk at
the reporting date) but that do not have objective
evidence of impairment. For these loan receivables,

lifetime ECL are recognised.

Stage 3 (Default) includes loan receivables that have
objective evidence of impairment and are
considered as credit-impaired financial assets at the
reporting date. For these loan receivables, lifetime

ECL are recognised.

Details of impairment recognition is as below:

Stage 1 F—HBER
Stage 2 FE MR
Stage 3 E=MER

SE

7%%?“1&%53)11;%???5 :

(i)

(iii)

B HE R
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i B2 53 T

AEEZRKE
/‘\*EQDT

F-BBR(RF) BEEVNIHER
AREE R e I A E IR0 - R
BEAZEERRRBEZEEE
Ko MRFRBERME - BHER
NREAEREEESE -

F_RER(ER BEAEVIER
ARAZ & R B B g (R 3ER
BERBZEERREER)  EXLE
EBRERRCBKENR - ZE
EWE RN E @ EEIARBEFES
EHEEER

o

F-BER(EY ERAETEERE
ERANBEBERS—HEER
BUBEEZRKRER - SAXEE
WERINE @ EEIREFENE
HEEREE -

BT :

As at

31 December
2023
RZEZ=%F
+=A
=+—H
HK$'million
BEBT

As at

31 December
2024
R-ZB-NF
t+=A
=+—H
HK$'million
BEBT

- 0.1
76.3 93.1
149.0 78.5

Total

et

225.3 171.7
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the above
estimation was under the management's credit
assessment on the borrowers’
performance to repay the loans. The rate of loans
receivable ECL range from 229% to 100% (2023: 1% to

100%).

(IV) Net impairment loss recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2024

Existing Stage 2 loans
— With ECL impairment
— With ECL reversal

— No movement
Existing Stage 3 loans
— With ECL impairment
— With ECL reversal

— No movement

commitment and

HEe-_Z_-_NE+-_A=Z+—HIt#F
B LillfEEt HIRBEEEHERAE
BERZAEABRRR ZEENGEEL -
BREFR HRAEEEBZFENT
22%F100% (ZTEZ=ZF : 1%=E
100%) °

VEBEZZ-_NF+-_HA=+—H
LHFERRZREEIEFE

No. of loans Amount
BEXREE 8
HK$'million
BEET
REE-_BBEER
- BEREHREEEERE 11 28.4
- BEEHREEEERE 2 (1.6)
— I ) 1 -
REE=-BREX
- BEEHREEEERE 4 26.8
- BEEHEEEERE N/A -
A iE A
— 7 -

Total

45t 25 53.6
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Analysis of significant impairment on certain customers for the

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRER AT

year ended 31 December 2024 are presented below:

Impairment amount

Annual Report 2024 £}

HE_Z_NWE+_A=+—HILFEFH

ETEPZERBEZONIZET

Detailed reasons for

additional impairment

BEEHE BHOIREZFARE
HK$'million
B&ET
Existing Stage 2 loans
REF_BRER
Customer A 7.8 No repayment despite with collaterals
EFA BEREREDRER
Customer B 5.0 Minimal repayment despite with collaterals
EFB BREBREREEERERER
Customer C 2.9  Minimal repayment despite with collaterals
®PC BEBREREEEREER
Customer D 2.7 Minimal repayment despite with collaterals
%FD BEAREREBEEREER
Customer E 2.7 Reduction in value of securities as collaterals and not
responsive
EPE BERmsBREETRETEELEE
6 other customers 7.3
HihREB% P
28.4
Existing Stage 3 loans
REF=ZBERER
Customer F 10.9  Adjudged bankrupt during the year
ZFF F R FEWE
Customer G 6.8  Under legal proceedings during the year
EPFG FRENERREF
Customer H 6.8  Substantial shareholder adjudged bankrupt during the
year and cannot be reached
EFH TERRFARHAERE B BEEBA
Customer | 2.3 Under legal proceedings during the year
R FRENEREF

26.8
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In summary, aggregate ECL impairment was approximately
HK$55.2 million (2023: HK$94.0 million) while aggregate ECL
reversal was approximately HK$1.6 million (2023: HK$0.6
million), resulting in net ECL impairment of approximately
HK$53.6 million (2023: HK$93.4 million) during the year.

Loan by categories and their collaterals details were as below:

A EXFl - FABEREEBRREE

¥4 /55,200,000 L (Z T ==
94,000,000;% L) MBHBEEEERRD 2
#BEEX /1,600,000 L (ZF = =4
600,000 7T) * B UL1S H B EE E BB R
6.2 F5#) 553,600,0008 7T (ZE-=4F:
93,400,000/ 7T) °

REUNEARRFREDZERWT

Receivables Interest
Number gross rate range
Category of of carrying per
borrowers Loan products loans amount annum  Collateral details
FE e BR
BRAER EXREm EREE HEH FREEE EHARFS
HK$'million
BEBT
Corporate Term loan 3 62.6 15.6%-18%  Shares of certain listed
companies
=3 EHIER AT EARRES
Term loan 6 84.4 8%-18%  Nil
EEE R i
9 147.0
Individual Term loan 1 20.1 18%  Landed properties in
Hong Kong
EA THER BEEME
Term loan 4 47.1 12%-18%  Shares of certain listed
companies
EHER T EFmARES
Term loan 11 138.3 12%-18%  Nil
EHER e
16 205.5
25 352.5
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Loan by borrowers' background or industry profile details were

as below:

BERAZESIAETEI D ZERAT

Receivables
Number of gross carrying

loans amount

FE W BR TH

ENHE HEEE

HK$'million

BEBTT

Private investors TLAREE 16 196.1
Substantial shareholder or director of LI RAREFERRKIES

listed companies 2 32.7

Financial services provider TRRGREMAE 3 793

Energy EERGES 2 21.7

Manufacturing BEHE 1 18.9

Subsidiary of listed company AR ZHE AR 1 3.8

25 352.5

The Group rely on its own credit assessment more particularly

described in this section above in conducting the money

lending business and hence does not obtain external credit

rating on the borrowers.

Maturity profile of the loans were as below:

Matured
To be matured in 6 months

£ 2 5
AN RS

AEE 2 REEB KB £ A
ZEEBHZERF G LRI ERER
ABUEINEBIEE AR -

ERZBHWARRET

Receivables
gross carrying No. of
amount rollover times
FE W EBRE
BeE REIRE
HK$'million
AEET
344.6 0-7
7.9 0-1
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The following factors have been principally considered when

evaluating a loan rollover:

Repayment Situation

If the borrower has demonstrated the ability and commitment
to meet repayment obligations and/or has made partial
repayments of the loan, indicating ongoing cash flow and

partial fulfillment of loan terms, the rollover will be considered.

Collateral or Security

The rollover of the loan will also be considered for any

collateral, securities with value, or guarantees are provided.

Terms of Loan Rollover

The Group carefully reviews the terms of the loan rollover
when approving it. The rollover period is generally assessed to
provide flexibility, enabling the Company to pursue repayment

at any time.

Market Conditions

It is important to emphasise that most of the loan rollovers
occurred between 2020 and 2023, during the COVID-19
pandemic. The Group has also taken the then prevailing
market conditions, including economic trends, interest rate
movements, and market prospects as well as the specific

government policy when considering a loan rollover.

For those matured loans, the Company held negotiations with
the borrowers in serious manner with an aim to agree
settlement plans or obtain further collaterals to protect the
Company's position. For those borrowers from whom
satisfactory responses are unable to obtain, the Company shall

take formal legal actions to recover the loans.

& i B2 53 HT

FEERRAREIEZRUTEE
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WERACDERE bﬁﬂf%&%%ﬁ%%’\%

BoUWE/ SREEEDHSER BEEDZR
%ﬁmﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁgiﬁi7/\LE&EE’D,\/7\1%/%7\5
EET AEgEZERERE-

7 p 2 HE AR
11 28 42 A ] #E9 om
neLTEEREM -

- BEEFRER A

7:5/‘:"@7?2// F74
TEBREBEHEREHR ST HEERBIE
Koo .:WEJEHEZ%F?H«;—xl«‘A%‘ﬁ'IU%K ’

VAR FF AR R B RE B B R [B1E 5K
iR

ABDERBHHOBER T _TFE
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REEREREBE  T&ZEE RSN
R BEEEBE  NEXEH mBEIRK
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Compliance with Chapter 14 and/or 14A of the Listing
Rules and Money Lenders Ordinance

The Group is required to, and has at all times, strictly comply
with all relevant laws and regulations. The Company has
complied with those requirements as set out in Chapter 14
and/or 14A of the Listing Rules when it granted or extended
the loans to each of the respective borrower whose loan was

still outstanding as at 31 December 2024.

In addition to the Listing Rules, the Money Lenders Ordinance
constituted a major governance on the Group's money lending
business in Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December
2024, VC Finance did not receive any objection from and was
not investigated by the Registrar of Money Lenders (currently
performed by the Registrar of Companies) nor the
Commissioner of Police regarding the renewal of the money

lenders license.

B FHAEANEI4E R HT4AE R

BEAMRDI.Z HE

REBAER (WD) E AR EA%E TP
BHREBERIER - ARRMEBEREEC
EoNFFT A=+ —HHREEER
HABRLKERERE - B BT EWHAE
14;&/&1%;?&%%&»‘5 °

//

g

W oF

B E TR AN RREREE 2 REEB T
TZXNEAGIEE BE_T_MOF
TZA=+T—HLEFE EBMBLERE
BREAEREZERBEAZIMERK (Ri
NRAEMEREERE) KEBRREELZ
EaRE  TEXHHFS -
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The Company has complied with requirements set out in
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules when it granted or renewed
loans to each of the borrowers. Renewal agreements were
entered into with the borrowers in all renewal cases. To the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief based
on internal records, the Company does not have any
agreement, arrangement, understanding or undertaking
(whether formal or informal and whether express or implied)
with a connected person with respect to the grant of loans to
the borrowers whose loans were still outstanding as at 31
December 2024.

The credit risk assessment of the unsecured loans was
performed by the Company using an internal process with
holistic consideration on background, financial resources,
source of repayment and repayment history of the relevant
borrowers and purpose of the loans. The Company's directors
consider the terms of each of the unsecured loans are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its

shareholders.

The Group has put efforts on implementing our credit control
policies and procedures to review our clients’ creditworthiness
and credit limits from time to time so as to minimise our
credit risk exposure. The Group's credit control policies and
procedures are principally based on the doubtful unsecured
exposure having assessed the fair value of the clients’
collaterals held, the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of the client accounts. The Group will take all
necessary legal actions against the relevant clients to follow up

the settlement of the outstanding loans.

ARBERAZERARLHBEBERE - 19
BT EMRRE 4B ZRE - EERBRT
BEERANTLEERE - BEFERAE
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BEFLEEEABERAZSS  HEE
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Placing and underwriting services

Meanwhile, the Group offers placing and underwriting services
to our clients, and acts as placing agent and underwriter for
Hong Kong listed companies’ fund-raising activities. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's placing and
underwriting commission was approximately HK$0.7 million as
compared with approximately HK$1.5 million for the same
period last year. The Group will continue to put efforts to
capture the opportunities towards the local initial public

offerings and other fund-raising exercises.

Overall, the brokerage and financing businesses recorded a
loss after tax of approximately HK$42.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024 as compared with a loss of
approximately HK$110.5 million for the same period last year.
The deterioration of the performance in 2023 was mainly due
to the substantial impairment loss in accounts receivable
based the ECL model.

Corporate Finance and Other Advisory Services

The Company through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC
Capital, provides corporate finance and other advisory services
to its clients. The Company through its another indirect wholly
owned subsidiary, VCCS, provides corporate services, including
company secretarial services, registered office and business

services, etc,, to listed and private companies.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company's
corporate finance and other advisory services recorded
revenue and loss after tax of approximately HK$3.8 million
and HK$4.3 million as compared with revenue of
approximately HK$4.8 million and loss after tax of
approximately HK$5.8 million for the same period last year,

respectively.
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Asset Management

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's asset
management segment recorded revenue of approximately
HK$2.3 million (2023: HK$2.2 million) and profit after tax of
approximately HK$0.6 million (2023: loss after tax of HK$0.6
million). Following the reopen of borders which allows the
Group's senior members visit potential clients in China, the
Group is optimistic on asset management of providing solid

results.

Insurance Brokerage

The Group, through Experts Management Limited, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary, was engaged in the provision for
insurance brokerage service. Experts Management Limited
owns insurance broker company licence and is entitled to
conduct long term insurance business. During the year, Experts
Management Limited recorded revenue of approximately
HK$7.2 million (2023: HK$6.7 million) with a loss after tax of
approximately HK$281,000 (2023: HK$274,000).

EEEEEK
HE-_Z-_M&EF+-_A=+—HIEFEE K
SECEEEBRBEEOBHEBRELD
2,300,000/ 7T (=& — =% : 2,200,000/
J0) KB 5 A 49600,0008 L (Z T ==
F: BRBIEEIE600,00087T) - BEEEIRE
- ARBzaRBERAINTRESREE
BR FAEBEUHAEEREBISBRER
EE S

REBEEZRBEE2ENE R FExperts
Management Limited¢ = 42 {8 iz £ 42 iR
7 o Experts Management Limited# 5 R & &
HARRR TARKERBRIRER - F
A + Experts Management Limited$% 15 Iz 47
7,200,000/ 7T (=T = = 4 : 6,700,000%
7T) R BR 12 B 18 £9281,0008 T (Z T ==
£ : 274,000/ 7T) °
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Proprietary Trading

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held equity securities
listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$116.4 million (31
December 2023: HK$155.1 million) as financial assets held-
for-trading, which was stated at market value. The fair value of
these listed equity securities represents about 26% of the
Group's total assets as at 31 December 2024 (31 December
2023: 27%). A few securities with relatively heavy weighs
within the portfolio were not performing well during the year
ended 31 December 2024, resulting in an overall loss during

the year.

The Group invests mainly through purchases in the secondary
market. The management follows strictly the internal securities
investment policy and seeks the approval from the Board,
when necessary, so as to enhance the financial returns to the
shareholders and limit the risk exposure associated therewith.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was net
sale in securities investment of approximately HK$71.1 million
(2023: sale of HK$129.3 million).

No revenue was recorded from the proprietary trading
business as at 31 December 2024 and for the same period in
2023. The Group recognised net loss of approximately
HK$44.0 million (including a realised loss of approximately
HK$66.6 million and unrealised gain of approximately
HK$22.6 million) on the trading investments for the year
ended 31 December 2024 as compared to approximately
HK$126.7 million (including realised loss of approximately
HK$112.4 million and unrealised loss of approximately
HK$14.3 million) for the same period in 2023.

REEEXK
RZE-_NF+_A=+—0 XEEFE
REBLEMZRAZS (BREEBEUKE
) #1116,400,0008 T (ZE =% +_ A
=+—H : 155,100,000/8T) * JHiR A
R -ZELTTRAB SR _Z_MNFE+ A
=+ —HAZAFEEREEREEL26% (=
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Below is an analysis of the financial assets held-for-trading

AEER-_ZE-_NF+_A=1+—HFHEE

held by the Group as at 31 December 2024: BZUBEESTAOT :

Unrealised

gain (loss)

Market value Percentage for the

as at to the  year ended

31 December Group’s 31 December

Industries 7% 2024  total assets 2024
B=E

—E-mEF

»n t=A

—E-NE =+-—8

+=A LFEEZ

=t+-—H hAEE RERKH

ZHE BEERIL (E#8)

HK$" million HK$" million

BEBTT BEBTT

Energy EENH 2.1 0.5% 7.0
Information technology BAEHR 1.7 0.4% 12.2
Consumer goods and services HE an MR 447 10.0% 11.1
Financials & 1.2 2.5% 13.8
Industrials T 56.7 12.6% (21.5)
116.4 26.0% 22.6

While the performance of different industries did vary, the
Group cautiously monitors the investment portfolio and shall
be determined to make any strategic moves. The loss incurred
during year 2024 was in line with the plummet of global
capital market. Overall, the Group’s proprietary trading
business recorded loss after tax of approximately HK$50.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
HK$132.4 million).

BETRTEZRRLZ2ZE  EXAEETFAR
BIEEHEE  TERTEEDERERE -
R _NEERGBERESKRERTISREYK
ZERER BEEME AEEBEEER
EBREE_ZT-_NF+-A=+—HILF
J£ £%15 950,400,000 7T 2 Br Bl 1£ E5 18 (=
T = =4 : 132,400,000/ T) °
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Property Investment

Following the completion of acquisition of Polyton China
disclosed above, the Group immediately entered into a rental
agreement for monthly rental since May 2024. It recorded the
revenue of approximately HK$280,000 and a loss after tax of
approximately HK$4.2 million as at the year ended 31
December 2024.

Unallocated administrative costs

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the unallocated
administrative costs amounted to approximately HK$26.0
million as compared with approximately HK$38.4 million for
the same period last year, which mainly included the
unallocated corporate operating expenses. The decrease in the
unallocated administrative costs of approximately HK$12.4
million in 2024 was mainly attributable to the steamlined of
manpower and absence of share-based payment expense
occurred in 2024.
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Income tax expenses/credh

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised
income tax expense of approximately HK$121,000 (2023:
credit of HK$5.5 million) which included deferred tax
expenses of approximately HK$121,000 (2023: overprovision
of approximately HK$4.0 million and deferred tax credit of
approximately HK$1.5 million). The deferred tax (credit)
expenses was recognised mainly in relation to the convertible

bonds issued by the Company.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$4.3 million (2023:
HK$3.8 million), out of which approximately HK$0.2 million
(2023: HK$0.6 million) was incurred pursuant to the effective
interest expense of convertible bonds issued by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2024, together with
some finance costs incurred in relation to the Group's
brokerage and financing businesses and interest expenses on

lease liabilities.

iRl Hk
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Headcount and employee information

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed a total of 56
employees (31 December 2023: 74), which excluded 12 self-
employed account executives for brokerage services and asset
management services (31 December 2023: 12), and 56 and
nil (31 December 2023: 64 and 10) were located in Hong
Kong and the PRC respectively. Salaries and staff benefit costs
(including the Directors’ emoluments) and staff commission
amounted to approximately HK$33.6 million and HK$1.7
million respectively for the year ended 31 December 2024 as
compared with approximately HK$52.5 million and HK$2.2
million respectively for the same period last year. The
decrease in the salaries and staff benefits costs of
approximately HK$18.9 million in 2024 was mainly
attributable to the drop of PRC staff due to disposal of sales
and marketing of digital asset segment and absence of

share-based payment expense occurred in 2024.

The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their performance and qualifications. In
addition to basic salaries and participation in Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also provides medical
coverage, sales commission, discretionary and performance
related bonus, discretionary share options and share awards to
its employees. Meanwhile, employees are provided or funded
to attend training and development programs which are

relevant to their works.

Liquidity and financial resources/capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group financed
its business operations and investments with internal
resources, cash revenue generated from operating activities,

convertible bonds and margin financing.
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The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy. As at 31
December 2024, bank balances and cash were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi as to approximately
HK$16.9 million and HK$1.1 million (2023: HK$15.1 million
and HK$2.3 million) respectively. The Group intends to
maintain minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks and
those Renminbi is mainly for the operation need. All the bank
balances and cash were put in saving deposits and current

accounts as at 31 December 2024.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group obtained margin
financing facilities from certain brokerage firms in the amount
of HK$15.9 million (2023: HK$18.5 million) and margin loans
obtained amounted to approximately HK$20.3 million (2023:
HK$20.8 million).

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group did not hold

any banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's bank balances and
cash, net current assets and total equity (other than clients’
segregated accounts) amounted to approximately HK$18.4
million (31 December 2023: HK$17.7 million), HK$349.6
million (31 December 2023: HK$462.0 million) and
HK$384.7 million (31 December 2023: HK$513.3 million)
respectively, representing increase of about 4%, decrease of
about 249% and 25% respectively as compared with that of
31 December 2023. Current ratio, expressed as current assets
over current liabilities, was at about 8 times as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: 9 times).

As at 31
ordinary shares of the Company were 2,473,523,040 (31
December 2023: 2,473,523,040).

December 2024, the total numbers of issued
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Charges on group assets

As at 31 December 2024, trading securities with fair value of
approximately HK$77.1 million (31 December 2023: HK$95.2
million) were pledged with certain brokerage firms to obtain

margin financing.

As at 31 December 2024, the investment property with fair
value of approximately HK$14.2 million were pledged for a
loan of HK$9 million from an independent money lender.

Foreign exchange exposure

It is the Group's policy for all operating entities to use
corresponding local currency as much as possible so as to
minimise exchange related risks. For the year ended 31
December 2024, majority of the Group’s principal businesses
were conducted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars. Impact
from foreign exchange exposure mainly Renminbi was thus
immaterial and no hedging against foreign currency exposure
had been necessary. In view of the operational needs, the
Group will continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure
from time to time and take necessary action to minimise the

exchange related risks.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group
did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Save as the legal actions taken by the Group as mentioned in
the section “Brokerage and Financing” above, so far as known
to the Directors, there was no other litigation or claim of
material importance in which the Group is engaged or pending

or which was threatened against the Group.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's gearing ratio,
expressed as total borrowings (being the margin loans, lease
liabilities and liability portion of convertible bonds) over total

equity, was approximately 11% (31 December 2023: 6%).
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Significant investments held, their performance and
future prospects

Financial assets held-for-trading

Included in the financial assets held-for-trading as at 31
December 2024 was the Group's investment in 61,688,000
shares or approximately 0.81% of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (Stock Code: 1341)
("Hao Tian") with fair value of approximately HK$48.7 million,
which amounts to approximately 11% of the Group's total
assets. Hao Tian and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in: (i) securities investment; (ii) provision of securities
brokerage and financial services; (iii) asset management; (iv)
rental and trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of
repair and maintenance and transportation services; (vi)
property development; and (vii) money lending. The
investment cost was approximately HK$33.1 million. During
the year ended 31 December 2024, its share price has
decreased by approximately 24%. During the year ended 31
March 2024, their group recorded loss attributable to
shareholders of approximately HK$512 million, and no
dividend was received from it. The loss was due to the fair
value loss on financial assets and share of loss of associates.
Hao Tian is a conglomerate with businesses diversified into
different areas and is an excellent investment target. The
Group was optimistic about its future prospect and intends to
hold the investment with an aim for long term capital growth.

Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

Save as completion of the acquisition of Polyton China and
disposal of D & K and VC Technology Assets disclosed above,
the Group's did not have any material acquisition or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets and their expected sources of funding in the
coming year

As at 31 December 2024 and as at the date hereof, the
Group had no other known plans with regard to material
investments or capital assets and their expected sources of
funding in the coming year.

Meanwhile, as at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have
any significant commitments contracted but not provided for
in respect of purchase of property and equipment.
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DIRECTORS
FU Yiu Man, Peter
Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Fu, aged 69, joined the Group in July 2016 and has been
appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director in March
2018. Currently, Mr. Fu is the chairman of the Executive
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the

Company.

Mr. Fu obtained a bachelor's degree from Wharton Business
School of the University of Pennsylvania in the U.S. He has
served in various senior positions in BNP Paribas, Peregrine,
Baring Securities, UBS, Citigroup Inc., CCB International and
CCB International (China), etc. He served as the vice-president
of GCL-Poly Group since November 2013. For the period from
March 2014 to June 2016, Mr. Fu had been re-designated as
the vice-president of GCL Oil and Gas Company. He was
responsible for overseas finance and M&A business for the oil
and gas projects of the company. Mr. Fu has almost 40 years

of experience in financial management, securities business.

WONG Kam Fat, Tony

Vice Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 62, has profound management experience in
working with charities and in the education industry as well as
possessing over 25 years of management experience in the
printing industry. Mr. Wong was a director of China Public
Procurement Limited (Stock code: 1094) from 12 July 2007
to 4 September 2009 and China Fortune Financial Group
Limited (Stock code: 290) from 11 September 2009 to 26
November 2015, both of which are companies listed on the

main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo
Executive Director

Mr. Lin, aged 54, joined the Group in January 2014 and has
been appointed as the Executive Director in April 2015.
Currently, he is a member of the Executive Committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin is the
Honorary Secretary of Hong Kong Skating Union Limited (the
associate member of the Sports Federation and Olympic
Committee of Hong Kong) and the Permanent Honorary

President of the Building Healthy Kowloon City Association.

Mr. Lin holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
and a Master of Science Degree in Marketing. The Institute of
Crisis and Risk Management awarded Mr. Lin as Fellow of
Certified Risk Planner in November 2019. He has over 20
years' experience in corporate development and business

strategy.

LI Cindy Chen
Executive Director

Ms. Li, aged 55, has been appointed as the Executive Director
in September 2021. Ms. Li graduated from the Shenzhen
University, majored in Chinese Literature, in 1989 and
obtained International MBA from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics and MBA from Webster University in
1999. Ms. Li had held senior position in a variety of
companies including Shenzhen China Motion Telecom,
Shenzhen Hongbo Communication Co. Ltd.,, Newman &
Associate Consulting Ltd.,, Wuhan Shun Qi Investment Ltd.,
Faye Consulting Ltd. and Shenzhen Han Hua Investment Co.
Ltd. Ms. Li has extensive experience in business operations
and has extensive business connections and industry
resources in communications industry, internet technology,

internet financial technology and new payment industry.
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WONG Chung Kin, Quentin
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 53, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director in March 2012. Mr. Wong is the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He has set up his own practice, Quentin Wong & Co. Certified
Public Accountants (Practising) since 1 January 2005, and set
up Quentin Wong & Co. CPA Limited in 2020. Mr. Wong was
an independent non-executive director of China Trends
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8171), a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2016 to August 2021 and Creative Enterprises
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3992), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2018 to October 2021.

Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors. Meanwhile, he is a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting and Financial Management from University of
Essex and a master degree of Science in Internal Auditing and
Management from The City University, London. He has over
15 years working experience in audit and accounting gained
from a sizeable international firm and has had over 10 years

of practicing experience.
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SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Siu, aged 67, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director in October 2016. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit

Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Siu graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Polytechnic Associateship in Building Technology and
Management and a Master of Science in Electronic
Commerce. He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
(General Practice Stream), Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (General Practice Stream) and Chartered Institute of
Arbitrator. Mr. Siu is an Authorized Person under the Hong
Kong Building Ordinance of the Government of the HKSAR. He
is also a Registered Professional Engineer (Building Stream)
and a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice

Stream).
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Currently, Mr. Siu is an independent non-executive director of
HG Semiconductor Limited (Stock Code: 6908), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
He is also a director of DBG Technology Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
300735), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Meanwhile, Mr. Siu is also a director of a consultancy firm and
engineering firm. He was an independent non-executive
director, and later on redesignated as an executive director, of
Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (Stock Code: 351), from
August 2016 to March 2018 and from March 2018 to
November 2018, respectively. Mr. Siu was also an
independent non-executive director of Sheung Yue Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1633) from October 2016 to
January 2018. Both companies above are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Siu was also an independent
non-executive director of Excalibur Global Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8350), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong from January 2018 to
December 2023. He had served in many public listed
companies as senior management and has over 25 years of
managerial experience in general management, commerce,
banking, finance, real estate development and construction

business.

Mr. Siu is actively participating in public affairs and charitable
activities. He is the vice president of the Association of Hong
Kong Professionals and the Hong Kong Real Property
Federation, the honorary president of the Hong Kong Kowloon
City Industry and Commerce Association and the chairman of
the Building Healthy Kowloon City Association. Due to his
dedicated service to local community, he was conferred the
Medal of Honour (M.H.) by The Government of the HKSAR in
20109.
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AU Tin Fung, Edmund
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Au, aged 67, graduated from the Business Management
Department of the Hong Kong Baptist University in 1982. He
obtained the Master of Business Administration Degree from
Upper lowa University in 2006 and the Honorary University
Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2021. Mr. Au
is the founder and a director of Latitude n Longitude

Consultancy Limited.

Mr. Au had worked in senior positions in a variety of
companies licensed under the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Insurance Authority. He was an
independent non-executive director of China Fortune Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 290) from December 2005 to
May 2006, an independent non-executive director of China
Public Procurement Limited (stock: 1094) from August 2007
to September 2009; and an independent non-executive
director of CCIAM Future Energy Limited (stock code: 145) in
October 2009 and redesigned to executive director from
October 2009 to September 2011.

Mr. Au is currently a member of Entrepreneur Committee of
Hong Kong Baptist University Foundation. He was also the
Honorary President of Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association Limited in 2017 and the vice president of
Hong Kong Kowloon City Industrial & Commerce Association
Limited from 2010 to 2012.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lai Choi Ling

Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Ms. Lai joined the Group in September 2013. She obtained a
Bachelor Degree in Accountancy in the Queensland University
of Technology. Ms. Lai has over 19 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and company
secretarial practice. She is a member of both The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia.
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The board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. As such, the maintenance of a high
standard of corporate governance has been and remains a top
priority of the Group (the Company and its subsidiaries). The
Group is committed to promoting and maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance, with the objectives of (i)
the maintenance of responsible decision making; (ii) the
improvement in transparency and disclosure of information to
shareholders; (iii) the continuance of respect for the rights of
shareholders and the recognition of the legitimate interests of
shareholders; and (iv) the improvement in management of

risk and the enhancement of performance by the Group.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE PROVISION OF THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE STRATEGY, BUSINESS MODEL AND
CULTURE

The Group's corporate strategy is to enlarge the revenue base
through fostering core businesses, meanwhile tapping into
new and potential markets with expanded business initiatives.
Leveraging its deep customer knowledge and comprehensive
portfolio of financial products and services, the Group is
committed to unleashing its strengths as a professional
financial service provider. The Group also manages to address
the challenges ahead and strive for continuous improvements
in its operations, so as to remain flexible and agile to adapt to
the market changes, thus bringing long-term sustainable

returns for its shareholders.
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Adhering to the corporate strategy, the Group endeavours to
create enterprise value as it enhances its business model by
applying prudent commercial principles despite volatility within
the industry, global economy, financial markets and investor
sentiments. The Group is also committed to developing a
positive and progressive corporate culture, and is always
striving for promising business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. As such, maintaining the highest standard
of corporate governance has been and remains a top priority

of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions set out in code provision A.2.1
of Part 2 of the CG Code:

1) to formulate and review the Group's corporate
governance policies and practices;

2) to review and oversee the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

3) to review and oversee the Group's policies and practices in
compliance with any requirements, guidelines and rules
that may be imposed by the Board or which may be
incorporated into any constitutional documents of the
Group or which may have been provided by the Listing
Rules, applicable laws and other regulatory requirements as
well as by applicable institutional governance standards;

4) to formulate, review and oversee the code of conduct
of the employees and Directors of the Group; and

5) to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code as
adopted by it from time to time and the disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report as set out in the
annual reports of the Company.

Annual Report 2024 £}
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the
Board and delegated to the management. The Board provides
leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a
view to enhance shareholders’ interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the management
with proper supervision from the Board. The Board reserves
for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, corporate governance, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters. Each
Director has a duty to act in good faith in the interests of the

Company.

i. Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 7 Directors, with
4 Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter
(Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony (Vice chairman),
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo, and Ms. Li Cindy Chen; and 3
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin, Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH and Mr.
Au Tin Fung, Edmund.

Pursuant to Article 105 of the Articles of Association, one
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office, thus becoming eligible for re-election at each
annual general meeting of the Company. The Directors to
retire every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election. In accordance with this
article, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter, Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony
and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo shall retire at the AGM,

and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Pursuant B.2.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, if an independent non-executive director serves
more than 9 vyears, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin has served
as independent non-executive Director for more than 9
years and shall retire at the AGM, and being eligible, offer

himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the retiring Directors have been set
out in a circular, which will be sent to shareholders
together with this Annual Report, to assist shareholders to

make an informed decision on their re-elections.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors, all of whom
are independent of the management of the Group's
businesses, are highly experienced professionals with
substantial experience in areas such as legal, accounting
and financial management. Their mix of skills and
business experience is a major contribution to the future
development of the Group. They ensure that matters are
fully debated and that no individual or group of
individuals dominates the Board's decision-making
processes. In addition, they facilitate the Board to
maintain a high standard of financial and other
mandatory reporting and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and

the Company as a whole.
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The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board,
including without limitation by reviewing that the
independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
qualifications and expertise from time to time with
sufficient time commitment to the Group, that the
number of independent non-executive Directors comply
with the requirements of the Listing Rules, and that
channels are established (including without limitation by
questionnaires or at Board meetings) to assess and
evaluate the independent non-executive Directors’
contribution and views. The implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms will be reviewed by

the Board on an annual basis.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms but subject to re-election
requirements under the Company's Articles of
Association. Under Article 105 of the Company's Articles
of Association, all Directors, including non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in the Company's annual general meeting and
each Director is effectively appointed under an average

term of 3 years.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin has served as independent

non-executive Director for more than 9 years.
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The nomination committee of the Company has assessed
the independence of Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
during a meeting held in December 2024, where the

following were discussed:

«  Throughout his directorship with the Company, he
has not been involved in the daily operation of the
Company nor in any relationship or circumstances
which would affect each of his independent
judgement and he has been able to provide
independent and professional views to the

Company's affairs.

« He has participated in Board meetings and Board
committee meetings to offer impartial advice and
exercise independent judgement, and has attended
general meetings of the Company to gain a

balanced understanding of the Shareholders’ views.

«  The continuous appointment of Mr. Wong Chung
Kin, Quentin as an independent non-executive
Director will help to maintain the stability of the
Board as he has, over time, gained valuable insight

into the business strategy and policies of the Group.

«  He has never engaged in any executive management
of the Group. Taking into consideration the
independence nature of each of his roles and duties
in the past years, he is considered to be
independent under the Listing Rules despite his

years of services with the Company.
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In view of the professional qualifications and extensive
experience of Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin in the
financial advisory field, the Board believes that he is
capable of providing constructive contributions in relation

to the Company's affairs.

The nomination committee of the Company is satisfied,
and the Board is of the view that Mr. Wong Chung Kin,

Quentin is independent.

The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the

guidelines in 2024.
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Securities Dealings by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities dealings on terms as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in Appendix C3 of the Listing
Rules (the "Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry
of the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by

Directors as set out in the Model Code in 2024.

The Board has also established a “Code of Securities
Dealings by Relevant Employees” for relevant employees
of the Company to regulate their dealings in the
securities of the Company so as to comply with the
directors’ obligations under code provision C.1.3 of Part 2
of the CG Code.

Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package to ensure that he/
she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operation and business as well as his/her duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and
the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary also provides
the updates on the latest development and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory

requirements to the Board from time to time.

Meanwhile, the Directors are provided with monthly
updates on the Group's financial performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.

=E
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the year, each Director had
participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/workshops/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and had provided the training records to the

Company.

Name of Directors EEgA

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter 53 3@t
Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony EHIRE LA
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo HEFTRE
Ms. Li Cindy Chen FREL
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin =N S A
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH BY LA
Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund BHEx4

Note:

Topics on training covered (a) Regulatory and corporate

governance updates; and (b) Finance related issues.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance (“D&O Insurance”) coverage on
Directors’ and senior management's liabilities in respect
of legal actions against them arising out of corporate
activities of the Company. The D&O insurance will be

reviewed and renewed annually.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year and additional meetings are held as and when required
to discuss significant events or important issues. At least 14
days notice is given for regular Board meetings to all Directors
enabling them to attend and reasonable notice will be given
in case of special board meetings. Agenda accompanying
board papers are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each regular board meeting. The Group ensures that
appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group's latest developments thereby assisting them in

discharge of their duties.

The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company attended the board meetings to advise on statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters of the Group. All
businesses transacted at the meetings were documented and
maintained in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

In 2024, the Board had held a total of 4 meetings. The details
of the attendance record of each member of the Board are
provided in the section "ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE
DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS" below.

PROCEDURE TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO SEEK
INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company, the Board has established written procedures to
enable the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company's expense,
in appropriate circumstances. No request was made by any

Director for such independent professional advice in 2024.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

i. Management Functions
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the board committees and the management. Both the
Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various internal
control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The Board
has established in writing which issues require decision
of the full Board and which can be delegated by the

Board to the board committees or management.

ii. Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and to
facilitate effective management, certain functions of the
Board have been delegated by the Board to various
board committees, namely, executive committee, audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The committees review and make

recommendations to the Board on specific areas.

Each committee has its defined scope of duties and
terms of reference and the committee members are
empowered to make decisions on matters within the
terms of reference of each committee. The terms of
reference of the board committees are given at the
Company’s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee is made up of certain Company's
Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter (Chairman)
and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo and the Company's Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary (non-voting capacity),

namely, Ms. Lai Choi Ling.
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It oversees the implementation of the Company's strategic
objectives and risk management policies and the business and
operations of all of the business units of the Group.
Meanwhile, it is also responsible to develop, review and
monitor the Group's corporate governance policies and
practices. It holds meetings from time to time to discuss the
Group's financial and operational matters and other new
projects. Other details of the roles and functions of the
Executive Committee are given at the Company's website

under the section “Corporate Governance”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin (Chairman), Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH
and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund. Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management
expertise, as requested by the Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing

Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review
the Group's financial statements and published reports; (b) to
provide advice and comments thereon to the Board; and (c)
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
Other details of the roles and functions of the Audit
Committee are given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.

In 2024 the Audit Committee had held a total of 4 meetings,
among other matters, to review the Group's final results for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2024. The details of the
attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
are provided in the section "ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE
DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS" below.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Au Tin Fung,
Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin and Mr.

Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on policies and structure for remuneration of directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration, assesses performance of and determines the
remuneration packages for executive directors and senior
management and makes recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive directors. Other details of
the role and function of the Remuneration Committee are
given at the Company's website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.

In 2024, the Remuneration Committee had held 2 meetings,
among other matters, to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
details of the attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee are provided in the section
"ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD
MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS" below.
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Remuneration Policy

The formulation of the Group's remuneration strategy and
policy is based on the principles of equity and market
competitiveness so as to drive staff to work towards the
mission of the Group and to retain talents. As a long-term
incentive plan and with the aim of motivating Directors
and employees in the continued pursuit of the
Company's goal and objectives and to recognise their
contributions to the Group, the Company has adopted
the share option scheme under which the Company may
grant share options to the Directors/selected employees/
eligible persons to subscribe for the shares of the

Company.

Emoluments of Directors

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with
regard to the performance of individuals, the Company's
operating results and market standards. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee has (i) considered and reviewed the salary of
Directors and senior management of the Group; and (ii)
considered and reviewed the discretionary bonus
payments entitlement for Directors and senior

management of the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Siu Miu
Man, Simon, mH (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board; identifies individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and makes recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

Other details of the role and function of the Nomination
Committee are given at the Company's website under the

section "Corporate Governance”.

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out
the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship
with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Group's business.
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When making recommendations regarding the appointment of
any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee considers the following factors in assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate(s): (a) reputation for
integrity; (b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in
the industry and other relevant sectors; (c) commitment in
respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
Company's business; (d) diversity in all aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural/educational and
professional background, skills, knowledge and experience in
assessing and selecting proposed candidates for directorship;
(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company's success; and (f)
compliance with the criteria of independence for the
appointment of an independent non-executive director as

required under the Listing Rules.

The following nomination procedures shall be followed:

—  The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall obtain
background information about the candidates from Board
members, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee itself may also

nominate candidates for consideration.

— In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such individual and
make recommendations for the Board's consideration

and approval.
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— In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed

candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

— The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election at a general meeting.

In 2024, the Nomination Committee had held 1 meeting,
among other matters, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board of the Company, independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Board diversity
policy. The details of the attendance record of each member
of the Nomination Committee are provided in the section
"“ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD
MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS" below.

Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity
policy, the main purpose of which is to achieve diversity on
the Board. Based on the policy, the selection of candidates for
board membership will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited, to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Details of the Board
Diversity Policy are given at the Company’s website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.
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As at 31 December 2024, the workforce consists of
approximately 56% male and approximately 44% female. The
Human Resources and Administration Department shall review
the workforce in diversity perspective and advise the
Nomination Committee should any gender diversity issues

arise.

The Nomination Committee was of the view that the
Company's Board Diversity Policy was suitable for the size of

the Company.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT
BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

AND GENERAL MEETINGS

EXZEER ESTZEEEERR
RAEZESHELR

Attendance record of Directors in 2024

“ECMEEEHERE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee 2024 AGM/
Name of Directors Expg Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting EGMs
—B2omE
RRBF
ENZEEE FMWZEEE REZEE KE/RE
Ezee3 EE g3 Ef BHAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter RN L 4/4  N/ANER  NATNER  NATER 2/2
Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony BEREELE 44 N/ATER  NATEEB  NATESR 2/2
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo EEIEE 44 NATERE  NATER NATEER 2/2
Ms. Li Cindy Chen FEUL 4/4 N/ATN i F N/ATNE N/ATiE F 2/2
Mr. Zhang Nu (Note) RE &£ (M) /1 NARERE  NARER  NATER 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors 1 F#17E F
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin FNRLE 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1 2/2
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH RYEE - W 4/4 3/4 2/2 1/ 2/2
Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund BHE%E 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1 2/2
Note: Wi

Mr. Zhang Nu was resigned as an Executive Director on 9 July 2024.

RELRER-Z_MFLBNANEBERTES -
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. The Company's
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies have been
adopted and applied consistently, and that judgements and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements and the reporting responsibilities of the external
auditor are set out on pages 123 to 127 of this Annual

Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
i. Responsibility
The Group has established Risk Management Policy to:

a. define the roles and responsibilities of the relevant

parties in the risk management process;

b. provide a practical framework to the management

for mitigating various risks; and

c.  promote risk awareness within the Group.
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The Directors and the Board Committees have an
oversight role to determine that appropriate risk
management processes are in place and that these
processes are adequate and effective. The Directors
should determine the level of risk that the Board is willing
to accept in pursuit of its business objectives by
considering whether the risk against reward ratio is
appropriate. Management should be responsible for the
identification, assessment and mitigation of material risks
faced by the business unit(s)/group function(s) which
they are responsible for. The management should also
regularly conduct review and monitoring of the Group's
compliance with the risk management process, system

and internal control.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and
the Group's assets; to maintain proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information; and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
It aims to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement, fraud or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to

achieve the Group's business objectives.
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The Board Committees review the following annually: (a)
the changes, since the last annual review, in the nature
and extent of significant risks (including ESG risks), and
the Company's ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; (b) the scope
and quality of management's ongoing monitoring of risks
(including ESG risks) and of the internal control systems
and the work of internal audit; (c¢) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the
Board (or board committee(s)) which enables it to
assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk
management; (d) significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been identified during the period.
Also, the extent to which they have resulted in
unforeseen outcomes or contingencies that have had,
could have had, or may in the future have, a material
impact on the company's financial performance or
condition; and (e) the effectiveness of the processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

Process used to identify, assess and management
of significant risks

The Group's risk management process involves the
identification, evaluation, response, monitoring and
reporting of risks. After risks that may potentially affect
the Group's business and operations are identified by the
management of the Company, the Board will perform risk
assessment by prioritising the identified risks to
determine key risks exposed to the Group and discuss
measures to mitigate such key risks. Besides, existing risk
mitigation measures are subject to regular monitoring by
the management of the Company, which will review the
Group's risk management strategies, and report such

results and make appropriate suggestions to the Board.

If material internal control defect was noted, the
Company conducted continuous tracking for the
improvement of internal control defects, and counseled
and supported the persons in charge of internal audit

function to ensure good rectification results.
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Management Supervision

The Board has assigned the Executive Committee to
oversee the implementation of the Group’s internal
control and risk management (including ESG risk) and to

monitor the business and operations continuously.

The Executive Committee and management have defined
the organizational structure of the Group with clear
reporting lines and authorities. Competent personnel are
recruited to facilitate the establishment and maintenance

of the risk management.

System and procedures are in place to identify, control
and report on the major types of risks. The management
endorses policies, procedures, codes and guidelines to
mitigate significant inherent risks embedded in the
operational and financial activities. The “Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics” is formulated and communicated to
all staffs with the aim of cultivating high integrity and

ethical values within the Group.
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The Group operates multiple lines of defenses to effect a
robust control framework. At the first level, the operating
business and support units are responsible for the day-
to-day management of risks inherent in the various
business activities. The second line of defense sets the
policy and guidelines for managing specific risk areas,
provides advice and guidance in relation to the risk.
Internal audit function forms the third line of defense
which evaluates significant risk exposure and contributes
to the improvement of the risk management and control

systems.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has in place an internal audit function within
the Group. The annual internal audit plan is reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee. During the year under
review, the Group has engaged an independent
professional adviser (“Internal Control Adviser") to
perform independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of certain subsidiaries’ risk management
(including ESG risk) and internal control system for the
year. The Internal Control Adviser reports directly to the
Audit Committee. The Internal Control Adviser
independently reviews and assesses the design and the
effectiveness of the major subsidiaries’ system of internal
control by adopting a risk-based audit approach, focusing
on major processes and activities which are quantitatively
or qualitatively significant to the Group. The Internal
Control Adviser reports all significant internal control and

risk management matters to the Audit Committee.
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Audit Committee Supervision

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee has been assigned by the
Board to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control procedures of the Group.
The Board also, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of risk management and internal control
covering all material controls, including financial,

operational and compliance controls.

The Audit Committee conducts regular meetings with
Senior Management, the Internal Control Adviser and
external auditor to review the financial statements and
auditor's reports on financial and internal control matters.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant
internal control matters, suspected frauds or irregularities,
alleged infringement of laws and regulations, which come

to their attention.

The Audit Committee, through the Internal Control
Adviser, has conducted comprehensive risk assessments
and internal control reviews on the design and the
effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control for
the year ended 31 December 2024, which covers the
key controls for mitigating the major risks associated with
the significant processes. During the year under review,
no major issue but areas for improvement have been
identified.

The Audit Committee has considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are
appropriately designed, effective and adequate. The Audit
Committee has also assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications, experience, training programmes and
budget of staff of the Group’s Finance Department and

considered that it is adequate.
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v. Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the

Group:

a. has developed Inside Information Disclosure Policy
in relation to the disclosure of inside information
about the Group companies, its officers and
substantial shareholders. The disclosure can
communicate such information to investors for

investment decision on equal and informed basis;

b. has established Corporate Communications Policy
for responding to all media related inquiries,
interviews and conference on the corporate issues.
Authorized persons are assigned to act as
spokespersons to speak on behalf of the Group and

to respond to external enquiries; and

¢.  has included in its Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics a strict prohibition for all employees of the
Group on the unauthorized use of confidential or
inside information.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE-BLOWING
POLICIES

The Group has adopted an anti-corruption policy to govern
acceptances of advantages by employees and a whistle-
blowing policy to provide guidance to employees to external
stakeholders to report concerns about any suspected or actual

improprieties relating to the Group.

Eﬂ:

V.
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DIVIDEND POLICY IR B BE

The Board has considered the general principles that it ZEZ@EEZIRERE (AR EHRE) Fk
currently intends to apply when recommending dividends for ~ SIR{EM P HIR S0 - B EH B 5k E R
approval by the shareholders or when declaring any interim 2 —fFRA| - EE SR e X — B ET KR F
dividends. The actual dividend that the Board may EEZHSETEKRE BEEKRESHEBETT
recommend or declare in respect of any particular financial — WEZREE &8 ERE 2 (EREEZMR
year will be subject to the factors outlined below as well as  #RBR - R B A FEBIR S H B MHF A IRE -
any other factors deemed relevant by the Board. Dividend

may be distributed either in cash, or in the form of shares.

The dividend policy is as follows: B BERE ST

« In determining the dividend payment ratio in respect of . AETE BTV HREEZRELE

any particular financial year, the Board will take into N o EEesBaEdEERAREAR
account a desire to maintain and potentially increase EEAEBEEEAEET  feigk
dividend levels within the overall objective of maximizing HEEE2INKREKE: &

shareholder's value over the longer term, and;

« If an annual dividend in respect of a financial year is to AT E—REERNE2ERS
be paid, the dividend would generally be paid in form of B E Y — AR s R EA S B
an interim and a final dividend. 2R o
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In considering the level of dividend payments, if any, upon
recommendation by the Board, various factors will be taken
into account, including:

«  the level of cash and retained earnings;

«  the expected financial performance;

« the projected levels of capital expenditure and other

investment plans;

»  the taxation consideration;

«  the possible effects on the Group's creditworthiness;

«  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

« any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

There is no assurance that the Company will be able to

declare or distribute any dividend in any financial year.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, audit and non-audit

services provided by the external auditors of the Company, are

BB AT =

BHE-_Z-_ME+-_A=1+—HILEE K
N AISNEE AZ BREM AT (2 B A% I IR AZ AR 7

as below: R
SHINEWING CCT &
(HK) CPA Partners
Limited  CPA Limited Total
EXH M
(B#8) BB
BEMEH ES 3
FARAR BRAFE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TExT
Audit services BRRE
Audit of the consolidated financial BRAKEZ FEHBERE
statements and the review of the REHASB ML %E
preliminary announcement of the N
result of the Group 1,400 - 1,400
Audit of certain subsidiaries of HASEETHERAET
the Group B - 195 195
1,400 195 1,595
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board and is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matter. The
Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less

than 15 hours of relevant professional training in 2024.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the value of providing current and
quality information to its Shareholders, both individual and
institutional. It also recognises the importance of maintaining
continuous communication with Shareholders and constantly
looks for ways to ensure the Group maintains an open and

ongoing dialogue with the existing and potential Shareholders.

i. Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy to ensure an effective ongoing
dialogue with Shareholders. Such policy shall be reviewed
by the Board on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness, which is confirmed by Shareholders’
participation in the Annual General Meeting. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has
reviewed and are satisfied of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy
on the basis that sufficient channels of communication
has been maintained with the shareholders. Details of
the Shareholders’” Communication Policy are given at the
Company's website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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The Company’s Website

The Company's website at www.vcgroup.com.hk provides
comprehensive and most updated information about the
Company, including financial results, announcements,
circulars, composition of the Board/Board committees
and their respective terms of reference, biographical
information of Directors and Senior Management, and
other corporate documents such as Articles of Association

and other policies adopted by the Company.

Annual General Meeting

The Company regards the annual general meeting
("AGM™") an important event as it provides an opportunity
for the Board to communicate with the Shareholders.
Notice of AGM and related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting.
The Company supports the CG Code's principle to
encourage Shareholders’ participation. Questioning by the

Shareholders at the AGM is encouraged and welcomed.

Enquiries

The Company Secretary responds to letters and
telephone enquiries from Shareholders/investors.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to raise
enquiries through the Company’s email contact
info@vcgroup.com.hk or by mail to our Company
Secretary at 6th Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of General Meetings

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), Shareholders of the Company who
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may request the Directors of the Company
to convene general meetings. The requisition must state
the general nature of business to be dealt with at the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company at 6th
Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. Shareholders may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended

to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must proceed to convene a general
meeting within 21 days from the date of receipt of the
requisition. Such meeting should be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given. If the Directors fail to
convene the general meeting as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the meeting. Any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.

For more details, Shareholders may refer to the

requirements as set out in the Companies Ordinance.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote, or
at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to
vote may (a) put forward proposal at general meeting;
and (b) circulate to other Shareholders written statement
with respect to matter to be dealt with or other business

to be dealt with at general meeting.

The requisition must be sent to the Company in hard
copy or in electronic form and must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given. It must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and be received by the
Company not less than six weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request related, or, if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

For more details on the Shareholders’ qualifications, and
the procedures and timeline, in connection with the
above, Shareholders may refer to the Sections 580 and

615 of the Companies Ordinance.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The consolidated version of the Company's Articles of

Association is given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.
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The Board (the “Board") of Directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the "Company”) is pleased to
present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2024, together with the audited comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year including the
description of the Group’s business and its external
environment, business objectives and strategies, business
model and development and principal performance drivers are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 to 47

respectively of this Annual Report.

Further, the Management Discussion and Analysis also
contains the information about the Group's financial
performance analysis and financial position assessment,
number and remuneration of employees and remuneration
policies, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that had occurred since the year ended 31 December 2024

and the Group's likely future development in business.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group encourages environment protection, complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environment protection to the employees. The careful use of
resources and adoption of the best practices across the
Group's business shows our commitment towards
environmental protection. The Group adheres to the principle
of Recycling and Reducing. Stationeries such as envelopes,
letterheads and business cards, as well as interim reports and
annual reports delivered to the shareholders are printed on
environmentally friendly paper. It also implements green office
practices such as encouraging double-sided printing and
copying. Obsolete computer equipments, after removal of data
storage devices, are either donated to charities or passed to
recyclers together with used computer consumables such as

ink and toner cartridges.

Compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
financial services business

The Group’s financial services business is mainly under the
supervision of Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"),
including securities brokering and dealing, margin financing
services, corporate finance services as well as asset
management, and other authorities for the insurance
brokerage and money lending services. As such, the Group
has to comply with the rules and regulations of SFC and other
related regulators and authorities. In order to comply with all
these rules and regulations, the Group’s Compliance
Department has tailored-made some specific operation
manuals and implemented the internal control procedures to
regulate the Group's daily business activities. Regular testing
are conducted on the Group's operations to minimize the risk
exposures and take appropriate remedial actions, when
necessary. Meanwhile, the Group will engage independent
professional bodies to provide advices and assistance on the

Group's compliance issues, when necessary.
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In addition, the Group has adopted a more targeted approach
to customer due diligence through the use of a sophisticated
software provided by a third party financial service provider.
This simplifies and accelerates the customer due diligence for
the entire customer base of the Group, which includes
screening for money laundering, sanctions and threat finance
and also enables detailed monitoring of politically exposed
person relationships and networks and is also customizable to
identify a variety of specific third party risks, when necessary.
All these measures are important in increasing the efficiency
and effectiveness in dealing with the regulatory and
operational burdens and risks the Group’s regulated

businesses are facing.

Relationships with customers and suppliers and
major customers and suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers. To do so, the
Group delivers its financial services and products in
professional attitude to procure clients’ trust, which help to
create new business opportunities to the Group. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between

the Group and its customers and/or suppliers.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the aggregate
revenue attributable to the Group's largest customer and five
largest customers combined are approximately 12% (2023:
11%) and 34% (2023: 29%) respectively, of the Group's
total revenue. During the year, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers. For 2024, all the five largest
customers have an average of 3 years of business relationship
with the Group and none of them are listed companies in
Hong Kong. Besides, the Group had no major supplier due to

the nature of principal activities of the Group.
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Relationships with employees HES ZBRF
(a) Emolument policy and employee benefits (a) FHHEKIESEF

The Group understands that employees are valuable
assets, therefore it provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The
emolument policy of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. The Group's
employees are selected, remunerated and promoted on
the basis of their merit, qualifications, performance and
competence. Regular revision for each employee is
conducted annually. Meanwhile, the emoluments of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Remuneration Committee and/or the
Board, having regard to the performance of individuals,
the Group's operating results and comparable market

statistics.

Apart from the basic salaries and participation in
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also
provides medical coverage, sales commission,
discretionary performance-based bonus, discretionary

share options to all employees.

As above-mentioned, the Company has a share option
scheme as an incentive to the eligible persons of the
schemes, whom including the Directors, employees and
others of the Group. Details of the schemes and the
movements of the share options granted to the eligible
persons during the year are set out in the sections of
“DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES” and "SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" in this report.
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(b) Training and development

©

Employees of the Group are encouraged to attend
training and development courses so as to keep abreast
of their skills and knowledge. Our Compliance
Department organizes in-house training courses for all
employees of the Group, specifically for those are
licensed persons registered under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance, and provides ongoing
compliance updates and regulatory requirements to them.
The Group also funds the Directors to attend continuous
professional development training including updates on
regulatory requirements and corporate governance
practices. Relevant employees are also funded to attend

external training courses which are relevant to their work.

Health and safety

In order to provide a safe working environment, offices’
workstations are regularly checked and maintained by the
Administration Department of the Group. Besides,
cleaning of carpets and air-conditioning systems are
regularly carried out so as to provide hygienic working

conditions for the employees.
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Principal risks and uncertainties of the Group

The Group's core businesses are (i) provision of financial
services comprising securities brokering and dealing, financing
services and corporate finance and other advisory services,
asset management and insurance brokerage; (ii) proprietary
trading; and (iii) property investment. Due to the nature of the
Group's business, the Group may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties associated with its key financial services
and products. It mainly divided into two categories, namely
operational risk and financial risks. To ensure implementation
of the appropriate measures in managing and monitoring
these risk exposures on a timely and effective manner, policies
and procedures are established by the Group. Details of the
key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group and the
ways on how the Group encounters these are given as

follows:

(a) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed operational processes, people and
systems or from external events. In the other words, the
operational risk arises from non-compliance of policies
and procedures and lack of control. The Group has
established some operational policies and guidelines,
delegation of authorities and reporting requirements for
helping each employee of the Group to develop a set of
personal practices in performing their job to the highest
level. The operational policies provide detailed guidelines
for various functions of the Group in executing most of
the business transactions such as accounting and finance,
operations, legal and compliance, human resources,

information technology and administration.
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Meanwhile, detailed compliance and procedural manuals
and policies are designed for the major subsidiaries of
the Group which carried out the finance services
business. The internal policies and manuals aim to
ensure that the major subsidiaries of the Company
comply with all rules, regulations, codes and legislations
governing every aspect of the Group's regulated activities
at all times. All sales staff and/or investment
representatives are required at all times to fully
understand and follow the regulated requirements, which
will be updated from time to time in response to changes
of rules and regulations. Training programs and active
communications are continuously provided to promote
their awareness. Internal control procedures are applied
to monitor compliance of the Group’s policies and
guidelines. Appropriate disciplinary actions shall be taken
against the responsible staff, who is guilty of serious
misconduct. Further, for the proprietary trading business,
securities investment policy has been established
providing investment guidelines and reporting procedures

for the responsible persons to follow.

The Group’s Compliance Department and Internal Control
Adviser are responsible for identifying and monitoring the
key operational exposures and report regularly the
potential risk issues to the management and the Audit

Committee of the Group respectively.

Financial risks
In the course of business activities, the Group is exposed
to a variety of financial risks, including market, credit and

liquidity risks.

() Market risk
The Group's market risk primarily includes currency
risk (foreign exchange rate risk), interest rate risk

and equity price risk.

(b)

Annual Report 2024 £}

[ i - E%$’$Ii«<%é\rzﬂﬁ&ﬁ“%%2
TEMBARRFFAGRLIEFZF
i e BUSR o Wéﬁﬁﬁlﬁ&?ﬂ%a MR
NAEZ EEMB QR MEA RS E ST
%E%$%@§%E%?é§bﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz—tﬂ
BB R STRIROES - FREHER
IR/ FRERKEEMEEHREZE
THEEERREER mMBEBEREH
REH - ARBRBAINROIZE - BIR
BREZED  SRERHKEIRER
TEREE o A %'J&FE?‘"JEEH LA
EREAEERERERESIZARIE
BEETREREERE BERE ﬁ““iE
RED - WI REEEEXEBHMS
AEEDHFTEFRERIARNEER
BRMHIRERESIRERESF

AEEARMPIRAMEZEARE AR
AIRERTELERR YFEHRAE
BEEERECZEQERECRAR

B R B

E/\%f’z@% &EP

A o
AR

RNEEEY ZEM
1m§&//|h§bﬁiﬂ

() TEEE
AEEZTSAREIEZRBBEEERE
@ (SNEERRE ) MR E R &
EEEN g Y



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZZERERAT
Annual Report 2024 £f

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EESiR&=

Currency risk — It is the Group's policy for each
group entity to operate in local currencies as far
as possible to minimize currency risks. Most of
the Group's principal businesses are conducted
in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the Company, with a
rising proportion of business in the Mainland
China resulting in certain Renminbi exposure.
Since the impact of foreign exchange exposure
is still minimal, no hedging against foreign
currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. The Finance Department
will manage and monitor the relevant risk from

time to time.

Interest rate risk — The Group is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
accounts receivable from money lending
business, in which the risk is considered to be
insignificant as the majority of the amount is
carried at amortised cost. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate accounts receivable
from brokerage and financing businesses such
as cash clients and margin clients, which is
mainly relating to the fluctuation of prime rate
or bank’s cost of funding arising from the
Group's interest-bearing financial instruments.
The Finance Department has prepared
sensitivity analysis on the exposure to cash flow
interest rates for the Group's interest-bearing
financial instruments on a semi-annually basis
and note that such exposure to the Group is

not significant.
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«  Equity price risk — The Group is exposed to
equity price risk arising from fluctuation in the
price through the Group's investment in listed
equity securities. Management regularly reviews
and monitors the Group's investment portfolio

so as to limit the risk exposure.

(i) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is the risk of losses from a
borrower or counterparty defaulting on an obligation
which will result in financial loss to the Group. The
risk mainly arises from the following business

activities undertaken by the Group:

«  Financing from brokerage business — In relation
to the financing from brokerage business, the
credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and
clients' trade settlement. When the market goes
downside, the possibility of doubtful debts will
arise. The clients may be unable or unwilling to
settle the sum owed. As such, credit
assessment and continuous management of
credit exposures are indispensable. The Group
has established the credit policies and
procedures setting out in details the structure
of the credit risk management, the credit
approval and monitoring mechanism, and the
issue for provision for doubtful receivables.
Meanwhile, the management of the Group has
delegated a team forming the credit committee
for setting the direction of the credit risk
management and to oversee the Group's
overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the work
of the credit officer who is responsible for the
daily credit management activities, determine
and review the credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

debts and receivables from the clients with
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shortfalls. Ad hoc discussions and meetings
may also be held by the credit committee
whenever necessary. Moreover, the Group
closely evaluates the borrower's credit rating,
financial background and repayment abilities.
The assessment is based on a closely
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual account and on management's
judgement from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrowers,
collateral value and the past collection history

of each individual borrower.

Money lending — All individual loans are
currently assessed and approved by the Group's
management. The Group closely evaluates the
borrowers’ credit rating, financial background,
repayment abilities and the value of securities
collateral. The assessment is based on a close
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual borrower and on management's
judgement from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrower,
collateral value and the past collection history
of each individual borrower. The management
of the Group has delegated a team forming the
credit committee for setting the direction of the
credit risk management and to oversee the
Group's overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the status
of individual borrowers and determine if any
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts and receivables from the clients. The
Finance Department is responsible for the daily
monitoring of the borrowers including the
adequacy of the collateral value and any default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments
in accordance with the contractual terms, and
promptly report to the credit committee, when

necessary.
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Furthermore, the Group has monitored its concentration
of credit risk in different aspects. The Group's
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is
mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has policies in
monitoring both client concentration risk and stock
concentration risk. The Group regularly performs stress
tests on stock concentration to evaluate the Group's
credit risk exposure and capital adequacy in the event of
abnormal and significant changes in market condition. As
at 31 December 2024, the Group has concentration of
credit risk on the accounts receivable as the aggregate
balances with the five largest clients representing
approximately 439% (2023: 45%) of total accounts
receivable. The fair values of the securities collateral held
by the Group for these four largest customers are in
excess of the relevant carrying amounts as at 31
December 2024. Regarding the remaining one customer,
as he being bankrupt during the year and other actions
shall be followed when necessary. Accordingly, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is closely
monitored. The Group has no other significant

concentration of credit risk.

(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due.
The Group's liquidity risk management includes
making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources. The Group's
operations are mainly financed by internal generated
cash flow and margin loans. In managing the
liquidity risk, it is important that the Group maintains
an adequate level of cash and credit facilities to

finance the Group's daily operations.
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Indeed, the Group’s major subsidiaries are regulated
by SFC, which are subject to SFC's liquid capital
requirements. Under the liquid capital requirements,
the regulated subsidiaries must maintain the
minimum liquid capital, which shall in excess of
HK$3 million or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities,
whichever the higher. The Finance Department
monitors the Group’s major funding positions on a
daily basis so as to ensure adequate financial
resources are available to meet the Group's financial
obligations as well as to comply with SFC
requirement. It is believed that the Group has
adequate working capital to meet its financial
obligations and the regulated subsidiaries have no
non-compliance with the liquid capital requirements

during the year.

(c) For more details about the principal risks and
uncertainties in which the Group are facing and also the
relevant risk management objectives and policies, please
refer to section “Financial Review” contained in the
Management Discussion and Analysis and notes 38 and
39 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
286 to 311 of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 and the Group's financial position at that date are set
out in the Group's consolidated financial statements on pages
128 to 131 of this Annual Report.

No interim dividend was paid to the Shareholders during the
year (2023: Nil). The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: Nil).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options
of the Company during the year are set out in notes 35 and

36 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked

agreement during the year ended 31 December 2024,

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2024. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the

Company's shares during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2023: Nil).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to Nil (2023: Nil).

FIVE YEARS' FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial
years as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements is set out on page 336 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Yiu Man, Peter, Chairman

Mr. WONG Kam Fat, Tony, Vice chairman
Mr. LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Ms. LI Cindy Chen

Independence Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin

Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH

Mr. AU Tin Fung, Edmund
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Pursuant to Article 96 of the Articles of Association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. As at the date of this annual report,

none of the directors fall into this category.

Pursuant B.2.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code, if
an independent non-executive director serves more than 9
years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. In accordance with
this code provision, the continued appointment of Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders, and being eligible, offer

himself for re-election.

Pursuant to article 105 of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire
every year shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last election. In accordance with this article, Mr. Fu Yiu Man,
Peter, Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Fu Yiu
Man, Peter, Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo and Ms. Li Cindy Chen
are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year
and up to the date of this report include Mr. Leung Chi Ho,
David, Ms. Ho Wing Man, Ginny, Ms. Chan Tik Man, Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Mr. Wong Chi Ming, Mr. Ma Chi Keung, Mr. Sam
Hon Fai, Mr. Yu Wai Hong, Johnson and Mr. Chan Wing

Kwong, Frankie.
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STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF
THE GROUP

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
senior management of the Group as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 48 to 54 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities (to be fullest extent permitted by
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Director is interested in any
business apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to complete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's businesses which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests of the Directors and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ"), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code"), were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

(a) Ordinary shares of the Company
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Number of shares

R E

Personal Spouse Corporate Approximate%

interest interest interests Total of shareholding
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Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter 20,000,000 - — 20,000,000 0.80%
R k%

Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin 500,000 - - 500,000 0.02%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of B EXFIEEIN R _WNF+ A
the Directors and their respective associates had any interests =+—H EZRFEEFZEZHBHEATHNA
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or NAEI R EBEBER (BB 5L BHEEMNE
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation  +HE7EE) 2 &% - BERMD N EES
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been /- BIEEEIARNRRRIBEES MRS 1%
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to  ffl$352/&F & 2 & M A 2 (F A 4 25 50%

Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the & - S(BIFEEFEIE R h%ﬂ%ﬁgn
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. 23 fff 2 {E Al 25 sk & & o
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE FERFTERAKRLATRMD P 2 EH
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of REQXTRG HEROGZER

the Company

Approximate

Number of % of total

Number of  underlying  Aggregate issued

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares held ~ shares held interest  ordinary shares

HERIT

gzl EERAY

% g1/ EEME FERa#E RHe#A BRAE R

Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric Beneficial owner 348,352,000 - 348,352,000 14.08%

EEMEE ERERA

Note: Bat -

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's total issued ordinary shares RZE-_WNEF+-_A=+—H ARAIZB#7T
was 2,473,523,040. ELiBIR 4B /52,473,523,0400% ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the
Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 14 June 2018, by passing an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Summary of the

principal terms of the Share Options Scheme are listed below.

Summary of the Share Option Scheme
(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise
the contribution made by the participants to the Group
and also provide them an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to motivating them
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the
benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship with
them whose contributions are beneficial to the long term

growth of the Group.

(b) Farticipants of the Share Option Schemes

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
its discretion, to make an offer for the grant of share
options to the employees or directors of the Group or
such other persons who are eligible for participation in
the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company subject to the terms and conditions

stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.
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(c) Total number of shares available for issue under

(c) WRIEAERE & A] ZFTTZROABE

the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to

time.

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Share Option Scheme. The Company may seek approval
of the Company's shareholders in a general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme
save that the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon the exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
under the limit as “refreshed” may not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at

the date of approval of the limit.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the shares of the Company issued

and to be issued upon exercise of the share options

(@
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granted and to be granted to any participant (including ZHERE(BEETE - SEEEEK
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) THEZERE) RITERETFRITZA

in any twelve months up to the date of the grant to such
participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the

Company.
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(e)

®

9)

Time of exercise of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, any share option
may be exercised in accordance with its terms at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each grantee, save that no share option may
be exercised more than 10 years from the date on which
the share option is deemed to have been granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The Board may provide restrictions on

the exercise of a share option during the option period.

Payment on acceptance of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option within 7 days from the date of grant of

the share option.

Basic of determining the subscription price of share
option

The exercise price per share option under the Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date when share option is
offered; and (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date on which share option is offered.
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(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will continue to be in full force
and effect for a period of 10 years commencing on 14
June 2018 (save that the Company, by ordinary
resolutions in general meeting or the Board, may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option
Scheme). After termination, no further share options will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and
effect and the share options which are granted during the
life of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their respective terms of

issue.

On 31 May 2023, by passing an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting, the Company adopted another share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) and
terminated the Share Option Scheme. No options were

granted since the adoption of the New Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the New Share Option Scheme

(a) Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Group to grant options to the eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group; and (ii) to enable the Group to attract and
retain high calibre personnel that are valuable to the

Group.
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(b) Participants of the New Share Option Schemes

Eligible Participants for the New Share Option Scheme

include:

0]

(i)

(iii)

Employee Participant(s) including the Directors and
employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
(including persons who are granted Options under
the New Share Option Scheme as an inducement to
enter into employment contracts with these

companies);

Service Provider(s) including person(s) who provide
services to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
on a continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and
usual course of business which are in the interests

of the long-term growth of the Group, namely:

a. supplier of goods or services to any member of

the Group; and/or

b. adviser, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or representative of
any member of the Group but, for the

avoidance of doubt, excluding (i) placing agents

or financial advisers providing advisory services
for fundraising, mergers or acquisitions of the

and (ii)

professional service providers such as the

Company or its Subsidiaries;

Auditor or valuers who provide assurance or are
required to perform their services with

impartiality and objectivity; and

Related Entity Participants including the directors and
employees of the Related Entity, provided that the
Board may have absolute discretion to determine

whether or not one falls within the above categories.
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(c) RIEFAEIREZ A 7808 < 17

(c) Total number of shares available for subscription

under the New Share Option Scheme

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and all other share option schemes
existing at such time (including the New Share Option
Scheme) (the “Relevant Scheme(s)”) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the New
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit").

Within the Scheme Mandate Limit, the total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted to the Service Providers under Relevant
Scheme(s) must not in aggregate exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the New Share Option Scheme (the “Service Provider
Sublimit”), which shall not be valid unless: (i) the Service
Provider Sublimit is separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting; and (ii) a circular
regarding the Service Provider Sublimit has been
despatched to the Shareholders in a manner complying
with, and containing the matters specified in, the relevant
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (including,
amongst others, the basis for determining the Service
Provider Sublimit and an explanation as to why the

Service Provider Sublimit is appropriate and reasonable).

The Scheme Mandate Limit and/or the Service Provider
Sublimit may be refreshed by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders in general meeting after three years from
the date of the Shareholders’ approval for the last
refreshment (or the adoption of the New Share Option

Scheme).
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(e)

®

The total number of the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted and to be granted to any participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any twelve months up to the date of the grant to such
participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the

Company.

Time of exercise of share option

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, any share
option may be exercised in accordance with its terms at
any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Board to each grantee, save that no share option
may be exercised more than 10 years from the date on
which the share option is deemed to have been granted
and accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The Board may provide restrictions on

the exercise of a share option during the option period.

Payment on acceptance of share option

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option within 7 days from the date of grant of

the share option.
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9)

(h)

Basic of determining the subscription price of share
option

The exercise price per share option under the New Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date when share option is
offered; and (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date on which share option is offered.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will continue to be in full
force and effect for a period of 10 years commencing on
31 May 2023 (save that the Company, by ordinary
resolutions in general meeting or the Board, may at any
time terminate the operation of the New Share Option
Scheme). After termination, no further share options will
be granted but the provisions of the New Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and
effect and the share options which are granted during the
life of the New Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their respective terms of

issue.
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The number of share options available for grant under the
scheme mandate limit of the 2018 Share Option Scheme as
at 1 January 2024 was 247,352,304. The 2018 Share Option
Scheme was terminated by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2023. Since
then, no further options shall be granted under the 2018
Share Option Scheme. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2024,
the number of options available for grant under the then
available scheme mandate under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was nil. As at 31 December 2024, 126,200,000
outstanding share options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme but not yet exercised shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2018 Share

Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not have any
other share schemes except for the New Share Option
Scheme, and no share options had been granted under the
New Share Option Scheme. The number of shares that may
be issued in respect of the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2024 divided by the weighted
average number of issued shares of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2024 was approximately 10%. The
number of share options available for grant under the scheme
mandate limit of the New Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2024 was 247,102,304 (including the service
provider sublimit of 24,710,230), representing approximately
9.99% of the issued shares of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME BREE

On 14 June 2018, by passing an ordinary resolution at the WZ-ZT—N\FXA+MHH  ARQRAEZN
extraordinary general meeting, the Company adopted the ﬁ%/”ﬂﬁ@t‘ B2 EBRABZRRD ﬁ%ﬂﬂ%@
share option scheme (the “2018 Share Option Scheme"). HE([ZE—NFHEBRETE]) o

On 31 May 2023, by passing an ordinary resolution at the RZZE-_=FHA=+—H ARAIEER
annual general meeting, the Company adopted another share B REFAES BB TRRABZERNS —
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme") and TEEEMETE ([FHERETE]) WR LR
terminated the Existing Share Option Scheme. BHERERTE -

Details of the movements of the share options pursuant to HE__Z_MFE+_A=+—RILEERE
Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31  FH#RBISE17.0716FE 2 EBREZSHMT

December 2024 are as follows:

(Closing price
per Share Outstanding Qutstanding ~~ Fair value
immediately at Granted Brercised Lapsed gt peroption
Category of before the Erercise Vesting Erercise IJanuay  duingthe  duingthe  duringthe 31 December  atthe date
Participants Date of Crant ~~ date of grant piice period period 2024 period period period 2024 of grant
(note)
ﬁ/\\\
3 kSl 2 R
ZERE a2 TR RERH
A& 8% -A-H St-B BhEhReE
BEZE] RHAE Ry fiftf SEH {15 WRAE  BARY  BAGE BRXE BRAE Z0TE
(M)
Employees
ke
In aggregate 31 January 2025 HK$0.145 HK$0.145 Vesting immediately 31 January 169,400,000 - - (43,200000) 126200000  HK$0.0655
014587 01457 202410 006557 7C
30 January 2027
fif “RzE-f DESE it a1
=t-8 —E =t-BE
.
-A=tH
Tot 169,400,000 - - (43200000) 126200000
&3t
Exercisable as at 31 December 2024 126,200,000
WZEZRETZA=+-RUFE
Note: et -

These share options can be exercised at any time commencing from ZEERBEIRREBHEE - BFEEREA
the first anniversary from the date of grant up to the date falling on 3 HEFE—RBFRH -_FEBRBRITE-

years from the first anniversary from the date of grant.



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRER AT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEEiR&E=

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no share option
was granted, exercised, reclassified, lapsed or cancelled under

the New Share Option Scheme.

During the year, no share options were cancelled under the

Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are disclosed in

note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the related party transactions fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected

transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements and results for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and is satisfied that these have
been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and fairly presented the Group's financial positions

and results for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EESiR&=

Information on the work of the Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”

on pages 66 and 73 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 55 to
87 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2024.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited
Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B {Z &Nk &

TO THE MEMBERS OF VALUE CONVERGENCE
HOLDINGS LIMITED

ERZRERADF

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 128 to 335, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy

information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House, & B iR
311 Gloucester Rd,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Bl {Z &Mk &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B {Z &Nk &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from

money lending services

FREXEE (#)
B AR 75 7 Wi B RKORL (B 22 18

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements and B2 M4 E T IEHR KM F27RE170E 25

the accounting policies on page 170 to 177.

The key audit matter
HRESSR

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had accounts
receivable from money lending services with carrying
amount of approximately HK$127,200,000. The
Group has identified loans based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

RZZE_WNE+-_A=+—H ' EEEKENRE
R#zEEERZBEEENR127,200,000/%8
e BEXEEREEVFBRRELREMEREY
D Ek 3% A & 4 R B 1 3B B B K o

The assessment of impairment for accounts
receivable from money lending services involves
significant management judgements and estimates
on the amount of expected credit loss at the
reporting date.
FHERBBMERE 2 BEERZBER Y REEE
HRERHEREEBESBEEDLERHE &G
&t

1778 28T HE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ETNMEEZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group's
forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL") model used
to estimate the impairment loss.
BANEARTFEETER EEEARKREER
FARELESREEERE((RMEEEE]) EXAAN
R 3% N 1 o -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management, practices and key controls over the
application of the impairment methodology, and
assessed the Group's impairment provisioning policy in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9, including
an evaluation of management judgement on (i) the use
of reasonable and supportable credit risk information
that is available without undue cost or effort; and (ii)
the staging criteria for determining if a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred.

HMEEGY BEX£EEERRER FHERME
FEZEBRBRERNTE L h S£EERE
ERVBHMELERNEORRTE L MERBHRR - BT
HEBEHOEABAMNE DL ERARESE 7 ENAE
BeeaBERAXHNEERRER  R(INVETEEMR
B RBEEE MG DB ERFEMEL 2 HE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Bl {Z &Mk &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

RREZEE ()

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from 4 15 PR 7 L BR RORL (B B 4 (48

money lending services (continued)

The key audit matter
BRETBHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ESNAEEZEE

We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increase in credit risk and
the basis for classification of exposures into the three
stages. Our testing included the checking to loan
overdue information, and considering the stage

classification determined by the Group.

ZHEAE BESEEBEEERRESBRZIENR
HRBRIBES=-—EARERNEERSSE - RANARA
BEBREERAHEN AEE BEXEETNHRER

D e

We have evaluated the Group's estimation methodology
of expected credit losses, and checked the parameters
to external data sources where available, including the
price volatility of selected underlying collateral, valuation
of the collateral and other sources of cash flows, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group's assessment.
BMEFE EXENEHEEERMG A TR
B RENIINBERRREE  2EETHEERR
ZERES BEHmtERRESRENEMAIR - I
HIESBEHEENTERREEH  NE SEENTMG
fELLER ©

We also assessed the financial statement disclosures
relating to the Group's exposure to credit risk.
HZMITENHEH ESEEDYHEERROMBE®RE
W -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B {Z &Nk &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

HREZSE(H)

BAVEIGRREHMBEZEBARER
ZHMBEEZGE

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and B2 HEGA T KERRMF25RFEIBE 2 &

the accounting policies on page 168.

The key audit matter
BRETER

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, comprising unlisted equity investments, of
approximately HK$14,312,000.
R-ZE-_WE+-_A=+—H BEXEHFERAL
TEINEREEMZHBRAREE M BEERRE
JEEMRAIRE 414,312,000/ 7T °

J

We have identified the valuation of the investment
in unlisted equity securities included in the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income as a key audit matter since significant
judgements and estimates, including use of
significant unobservable inputs, have been used in
the fair value estimations by the management at the
end of the reporting period.

BB ARATEIRRERLME2ERAREE
ZUHBEERZIELTRABFRE 2 HEBRHNA
BAREFTFE AREEEBAEMGINBERARZA
FEBRAERAEG LG  BEERTAIHER
AEIE °

SHEOK -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPWESNAEEZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
reasonable of judgements and estimates, including
selection of valuation technique and use of significant
unobservable inputs adopted in the fair value estimation
by the management.

BB FE EHHE R A 2 a8 BRI E R
BREREBEMTATFEZBIETMEZ HERMN K
IR ERTAI B SR8 A IR °

We have also reviewed the methodology and the input
data used with reference to the latest market data.
BMMEZ2REHMSEE WSR2 ERE
AU o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and our agreed
terms of engagements, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

«  lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the

Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the Group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
the purpose of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Mr. Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P05589

Hong Kong
28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z&8EEREM2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_NWF+-A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-mEg —E-=4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 FERT FHET
(Audited) (Restated)
(REZ) (r8&51)
Continuing operations BEREXER
Revenue W zm 5 69,062 73,315
Other income HAth Ug A 5 1,301 2,435
Other gains or losses, net Hfth U 25 s E5 48 )% 28 7 (47,569) (129,018)
Impairment losses on accounts FEWBR R 2 R E & 18
receivable, net FEE 27 (72,775) (137,586)
Impairment losses on goodwill B 2R EER 17 - (694)
Impairment losses on other receivables £ fth & W BE 7% 2 S8 (&
E1a 28 (2,721) -
Staff costs BTRA 8 (35,274) (54,744)
Commission expenses kA3 (7,770) (7,766)
Depreciation of property and equipment % MREITE 20 (660) (846)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 23 (6,956) (7,150)
Amortisation of other intangible assets — E b 2 & = # 44 18 (287) (215)
Finance costs A& AR 11 (4,279) (3,766)
Other operating expenses H a2 sk (18,891) (24,888)
Share of (loss) profit of associates DR E AR Z (BE)
it A (89) 61
Loss before tax B T Al S 1B (126,908) (290,862)
Income tax (expense) credit Frigi (FAs) % 12 (121) 5,470
Loss for the year from continuing REBEREXK
operations FEEE 14 (127,029) (285,392)
Discontinued operation ERIEREEL
Loss for year from discontinued ERIEREXRB 2
operation FEEE 13 (2,117) (2,806)
Loss for the year FEEE (129,146) (288,198)
Other comprehensive expenses FEHMPEMAX
for the year
ltems that will not be classified HEeEr g B ERER
subsequently to profit or loss: 2R
Fair value change of financial assets BRATFEIIERERM
at fair value through other PHBAREE I
comprehensive income BEELAFEE 25 (2,127) (6,153)
Exchange differences on translation of  #EEINEK 7 E K
foreign operations ZH 17 (90)
Total comprehensive expenses FETHEMAXARE
for the year (131,256) (294,441)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME &8 R EM2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—E-mE = e
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B et FHERT FET
(Audited) (Restated)
(RRER) (&RE7)
Loss for the year attributable to: ATATEEFEREE :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEF SN
— Continuing operations —FHEKEED (127,018) (285,381)
— Discontinued operation —BRIHEEER (1,407) (2,373)
(128,425) (287,754)
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRE R
— Continuing operations —FHEEEED ) (1)
— Discontinued operation —BERIEREER (710) (433)
(721) (444)
(129,146) (288,198)
Total comprehensive expenses NTALTEEZERMX
for the year attributable to: #Ea
Owners of the Company RAGHEA A
— Continuing operations —FBKEER (129,145) (291,531)
— Discontinued operation —BRIMEEER (1,405) (2,463)
(130,550) (293,994)
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRE R
— Continuing operations —RBKEED amn (14)
— Discontinued operation —BERIEREER (695) (433)
(706) (447)
(131,256) (294,441)
Loss per share (HK cents) FREE OBWL) 16
From continuing and discontinued FERE R IERE
operations )
- Basic and diluted —ERR#E (5.19) (12.05)
From continuing operations FEREETS
- Basic and diluted —ERR#E (5.14) (11.95)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &Mk R«

As at 31 December 2024

R-_ZE_WFE+—_A=+—H

2024 2023
ZEINEF =%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ot FERT FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Goodwill S 17 7,630 7,630
Trading rights R 5 19 - -
Other intangible assets Hitv | & E 18 4,000 4,287
Interest in an associate REtE QA 2 i 24 749 838
Property and equipment LEPNE 20 882 1,487
Investment properties BEMHE 21 14,230 -
Statutory deposits EERE 22 1,592 1,518
Rental and utility deposits HeERKERZRSE 1,537 523
Right-of-use assets EREEE 23 7,526 7,170
Financial assets at fair value through RATEYERER
profit or loss nREBZHMBEE 26 = 12,700
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEINERER
other comprehensive income 2 EBAREIE 2
IEEE 25 14,312 16,439
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 3] = 143
52,458 52,735
Current assets RBEE
Inventories TE = 1,339
Accounts receivable JE UK BR 3k 27 261,982 312,861
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE - Re Rk
other receivables H b E B BR X 28 2,334 29,363
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEIERER
profit or loss mRERBECMEEE 26 116,436 155,133
Bank balances and cash RITEHRKES 29 18,391 17,721
399,143 516,417
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable FEfHBR X 30 2,003 3,429
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE&T B & R H b Bt
AR 30 13,592 23,204
Other borrowing E M ER 33 9,000 =
Margin loan payables ERRBLE X 30 20,318 20,838
Lease liabilities HEARE 23 4,586 6,967
49,499 54,438
Net current assets RBEEFHE 349,644 461,979
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAER 402,102 514,714
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2024 2023
ZEINEF T =F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt it TERT FHT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 31 690 537
Convertible bonds AR ES 32 13,476 -
Lease liabilities HEAaE 23 3,244 895
17,410 1,432
Net assets BEEFRE 384,692 513,282
Capital and reserves BEXARREE
Share capital AR 35 1,810,848 1,810,848
Reserves 15 (1,426,121) (1,297,131)
Equity attributable to owners of the AATHEEAELER
Company 384,727 513,717
Non-controlling interests IR ER (35) (435)
Total equity ERBE 384,692 513,282
The consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to 335  S$128E Z F335HAH 26 M B MK L

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZEFE®WR_T_HAF=A_+/\BHHERE

directors on 28 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: FiT WHTIEFRAKREE
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo
RFREX k& EEILHE
Director Director

EF EF
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HE-_T-_WFE+-_A=t—ALEFE

Attributable to owners of the company

ARREEAER
Convertible Investments Share Non-
Share Capital bonds  Exchange revaluation option Other  Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Totl  interests Total
G 3 RE
Ra xRk BERE  ENRE  EGGR BREBE  HRBRE  RiHER & FERES Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TR ThR ThR ThR ThR ThT ThT ThT
(note a) (note b)
(Ha) (Kb
A1 Jenuary 2024 RoZ-ME-A-E 1810848 123758 = (677) (191195 11,088 (46) (1239643) 513717 (435) 51328
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (128425)  (128425) (1) (129,146)
Other comprefensive EFEMZARY
expenses for the year -
Fair value loss on financil RATESIRREL L
assets at fair value through 2ARARRE LM
other comprehensive income  BEEZAFEEE
(note 25) (B3225) - = = = @,127) - . S (2,127) = (@121)
Exchange differences on BREBINEHZ
translation of foreign operations  EXZE - - - 2 - - - - 2 15 17
Total comprehensive expense £ 2EHXEE
for the year = = = 3 @127) . - (128425 (130550) (106)  (131,256)
Recognition of equity component B2 k%2
of convertible bonds (note 32) A A (#232) - - 1,060 - - - - - 1,060 - 1,060
Deferred tax liabilties on AEZTARER
recognition of equity s yd i
component of convertible bonds & & - - (175) - - - - - (175) - (175)
Release upon disposal of kNG i
subsidiaries (note 41) (Wita1) - - - 675 - - - - 675 1,106 1,781
Lapse of share options (note 36)  ERIEXM (#i#36) - - - - - (2828) - 2,828 - - -
At 31 December 2024 g St 3
+=A=1-H 1810848 123758 85 - (19331) 8,260 (462) (1365240) 384727 (35) 384692
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Convertible Investments Share Non-
Share Capital bonds  Exchange revaluation option Other  Accumulated controlling
capital Teserve feserve feserve feserve feserve reserve losses Total interests Total
Bk RE
hx  AARE  BRERE  ERBE  ENGE BREEE  AbEE  ZHR & FERER Eh
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L L T ThL T T T TR T T AT
(note 3) (note b)
(Wita) (Hith)
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=F-F-8 1760344 123,758 1,565 (590)  (185,042) 4,604 (767)  (956,234) 747,638 12 747,650
Loss for the year FEBE = - - - - - - (87,754) (287,754 (444)  (288,199)
Other comprehensive expenses  £EE 2 EREX
for the year
Fair value loss on financial assets %A T E R A4
at fair value through other SEUAREE 2B
comprehensive income KEEZLTEER
(note 25) (Wi25) = = = = (6153) = . 5 (6153) = (6153)
Exchange differences on REENEHL
translation of foreign operations X EE - - - (87) - - - - (87) ©) (%0)
Total comprehensive expense R ERLEE
for the year = = = ®)  (61%) = - QBIT3E) (293994) (447)  (294441)
Recognition of equiy-settled share BEFZMBAE A 2
option expense (note 36) BIRERR (i436) - - - = = 11,134 = = 11,134 = 11,134
Issue of share upon conversion of FHER T AR EHT
convertible bonds (note 32) Bk (Hiz) 644 - (144) = = = - - 500 = 500
Issue of consideration shares BIRERR 13,863 - - - - - - - 13,863 - 13,863
Issue of shares by placement  EREMETRA 36,000 - - - - - - - 36,000 - 36,000
Release upon cancellation of ~ REHTARESM
convertible bonds Bk - - (1,421) - - - - - (1421) = (1421)
Release upon disposal of & RLEHBARM
subsidiary i - - - - - - 305 (305) - - -
Transaction costs atributable to ~ EEEM &R (A
issue of shares by placement  FE£ZR5HA () - - - - - - - ©) - ©)
Reversal of share option reserve  EERIER M/
upon forfeiture/lapse of share KK A RERiE
options e - - - - - (4,650) - 4650 - - -
At 31 December 2023 RIBZZE
+=ZB=1-H 1,810,848 123,758 = (677)  (191,195) 11,088 (462)  (1,239,643) 513,717 (435) 513,282
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BE_Z-_NW&F+_-_A=1+—HItFE
Notes:
(a) Capital reserve

(b)

Pursuant to a scheme of capital reorganisation, which became
effective on 28 May 2003, the High Court of Hong Kong had
approved the reduction of the capital of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and the cancellation of the
Company's share premium account. The credit arising from the
reduction of the share capital account and cancellation of the share
premium account, after eliminated against the accumulated losses,
in the aggregate amount of HK$123,758,200 was transferred to a
capital reserve account of the Company. Such capital reserve
account will not be treated as realised profits, and shall be treated
as an undistributable reserve of the Company until and unless the
creditors of the Company as at the date of the sanction are fully
settled. In view of the fact that the Company had already fully
settled the relevant debts due to the creditors, the Company is of
the view that the reserve is distributable to the Company’s

shareholders.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the differences between the purchase
considerations and the amounts acquired from non-controlling
interests arising from acquisitions of the remaining equity
interests of 9.90% and 8.84% in VC Capital Limited and VC

Asset Management Limited respectively completed in year 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, VC Asset
Management Limited had been disposed and the related
amount of other reserve approximately HK$305,000 had been

eliminated.

Wit

(@

(b)

BN

BER-_ZZT=FAA -+ N\BERZEAR
BAGFE - BARFERIERRERZER
BRAR(TARARDBRARFHARRZK
17355 (B R o BB AR 7N BR I+ 88 IR 1) )i (8 BR P
EECERBRITERBYEECHAER
123,758,200 7T ' EBAR R Al 2 & AN
B - ZEARBERT SRR ABEREF -
MERAERARZ A DIRFER  AERR
FARARZELE R ZEMNEEBESER
Bl - ERAANBERHENEREEAZ
BREL  WMARARE LEHBBEADIK
FADNBRE -

Ho A 17 5

HivEERmFEERERSD W EERRE
ERRABREREEEERERARSER T
29.90% [ 8.84%R% A #E %5 2 g B (B B A
WEZBEzENEE ERKRBER =2
——FxEK -

BHE-_Z-=%+-A=+—HBItFE " E
BEEEBERAADTHE  MEMHKE
2 1B £ 5 49305,0008 700 T 4§ o
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operation (note 13)

Adjustments for:
Interest income from authorised
institutions
Other interest income
Interest expense on the convertible bonds
Interest expense on margin loan payables

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Interest expense on bank overdraft
Interest expense on other borrowing
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Share of loss (profit) of associates

Depreciation of property and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Written off of inventory

Fair value change on contingent
consideration payables

Unrealised loss on financial assets
held-for-trading

Fair value change on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of property and
equipment

Fair value change on investment property

Impairment loss on accounts receivable,
net

Impairment loss on goodwill

Impairment loss on other receivables, net

Equity-settled share option expense

FLOWS Z8RE&RER

2024
11 3
HK$'000
FTHERT
KEEE
B B AT ES 1B
—FRKEER (126,908)
—BRIFEEER
(K1a£13) (2,183)
FAEIEE -
RERAHE 2 FEBA
(759)
H A S WA (495)
AmRESZFERE 213
ERHRESERZFHE
X 3,179
HEBEZFERX 299
RITELZ 2R BHXZ 3
HMER R ERX 585
HEKB AR Z W (424)
DR E N R 2 EE
Ca ) 89
MERBETE 696
EREEENE 6,956
Hfth K B 287
FEME 688
BRI AREZRTE
)] =
REBEEVBEEL
REREIE 43,999
ZRAFEYERREERE
BREZHBEEEZ AT
BEZ -
S 3 R R 2 W a
(230)
REME 2 A TFEE 3,770
JE Us BR SR 2 R B B 18 R 5B
72,775
HMEZREERE -
Hth R BR R 2 BB B B
F 2,721

PABSZR 32 A5 2 B BECHE A 2 -

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FATT

(290,862)

(2,735)

(877)
(1,099)
588

2,655
489
34

(2,437)
61)
906

7,150
215

(335)

126,663

5,400

137,586

694

11,134

135
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2024 2023
—E-mEg —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Operating cash flows before movements HEERBPRICLER S
in working capital me 5,261 (4,892)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FEERA (38hm) 573 (827)
Increase in accounts receivable JE WU BR SR 2 42 0 (21,809) (51,058)
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BATHAEY R REERR
through profit or loss BREZHBEEZ RS 7,398 18,799
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TR FRIE - Re RHE M ER
other receivables BR S 2 Rk A 5,030 12,066
(Increase) decrease in rental and utility HekKEZRE 2 (3EM)
deposits Ve (1,014) 1,085
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable FE AT BR 2 48 00 O ) 2,471 (1,799)
Decrease in margin loan payables EHREFESERZ B (3,699) (206)
Decrease in accrued liabilities and EitBEREMENERRZ
other payables Vs (3,267) (1,342)
Cash used in operations KEMARS (9,056) (28,174)
Bank interest received B BERITH B 759 877
Income tax refund BERREMEN 66 =
Income tax paid BERMEH = 71
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& E8mAR S %5 (8,231) (27,368)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREES
Net cash (outflow) inflow on acquisition WERBARZEE (RL)
of a subsidiary A FRR (2,000) 316
Deposits for acquisition of a subsidiary HUEHBRRMNZIRS - (16,000)
Proceed from disposal of property and HEMHERZEZAERA
equipment 230 =
Purchase of property and equipment BEMEREE (136) (118)
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HE&WB AT ZEEHA
F R 1,789 180
Payment of statutory deposits EFERE N (596) -
Refund of statutory deposits ETERE R 497 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES "EEHMAREFHE (216) (15,622)
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2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Proceeds from issue of convertible bond BATAIRRE H 2 TS RIB 8,400 =
Proceeds from issue of shares by E B TR 2
placement F {5 518 - 36,000
New other borrowing raised MBHEHEMER 9,000 -
Payments for transaction costs attributable ST EBLE TR
to issue of shares by placement FTEEZRSKA = ©)
Repayment of lease liabilities and interest EEEEREMNE (7,643) (7,595)
Interest paid B A (588) (34)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEERBAEHSFRE 9,169 28,368
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASHAND IR&KRIBE&ESEIBE 2N
CASH EQUIVALENTS OR ) % 28 722 (14,622)
Effect of exchange rate changes EXEHrTE (52) 34
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOzHekBELEFE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR BE 17,721 32,309
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRzBERBCEE
AT END OF THE YEAR BH 18,391 17,721
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BE—
1l

B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE
GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 44.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency

of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
which are effective for the Group’s financial year

beginning 1 January 2024:

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
HKFRS 16
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
HKAS 1 and the related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

—REHR
ARRAR—FKREBEAMKILZARE
RAE EBRORELEBAERHMAER
AE(TBERFT]) BT o AR GEM S
BREFELEEME AN FRARF
BR—EPRE -

ARBZIBEXBRIEREER - EH B
NAIZEBXBHNHT T4 -

%%E LA/%TEEJ/T\ BILIF AR

RAREITEENKEREEA
((EEMBEREEL])

RAFE  AEBEEXRANUNTHE
BEtArg (B8t g]) &
MIENAEE—_ZE_NE—H—-BRK
ZHBEEERLETBTBV B RE
HR([EBHBHRELER]) :

AN BREE
F16% 2 B3]

ERAEOR ST RERR

BB e A BEEABRRDAIRB N
F1R B RERRBESR(ZE-F
F)ZRBET : BHake
2R -ERAHITEREL
BRER EHETER
PE

ERESEAZ N KERORGERDAR
pa 4|
BRGHENFIRE HEARERH
BRHBREER

ELiva H)
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HE-_T-_WNF+-_A=1+—ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2. RAKEBITERYBREER
((EEMBREED] (&)

RAFRRAEETEBM B RS EL
HAFERBEFEAKBEZHBERR
R BHRRE, S a M B RERAE
REFRLEEATE -

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not CEGEMKRER T EGREE
AIEBMBREER

REBEWERARAATEBMBER AR
EY B REERTRAEY B RE L

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective. 8l :
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements® EABREREANE 18T, UBRRZFREE
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: EAMBREENEI19% FLRMEMELR
Disclosures?® R%:
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’ EREHENEN R, BMEZAAAN
e
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement EEMRREENFEIR SREBSBENEL
and HKFRS 7 of Financial Instruments? REBRBRE L FHE
FIR 2B
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature — dependent BEMBRERAESE SREBEAGELEES
and HKFRS 7 Electricity? RAB BB RS LR Nz akr
FIR 2B
Amendments to HKFRS ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting EARBREERNEY  AERBEREENSR
Accounting Standards Standards — Volume 112 B2 BT B2 FRHUE
~&11%2
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor EAMBREENFI0 REFHABENT
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture* REBSHENENE  GALNERCEE
ZE] HEgTE

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

L R-ZE_AF—A—HBHEUNEHBZ
FEHAM AR -

2 RIZEBEZARF-A-BH=HUERBZ
FFHARM AR o

3 RZZEZEF-A—BHUNEBERABKZ
EEHRAEK -

¢ REGTHHINERBZFEEEM
R e

ARARMEEEY BT AEN RAH
fil ¥R 4 M ARERT BB R IS R
AEBEXAMMBARLEERZE -
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 sets out requirements on presentation and
disclosures in financial statements and will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. HKFRS 18
introduces new requirements to present specified
categories and defined subtotals in the statement of
profit or loss; provide disclosures on management-
defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the
financial statements. Minor amendments to HKAS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows"” and HKAS 33 "Earnings per

Share" are also made.

HKFRS 18, and the consequential amendments to other
HKFRS Accounting Standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early

application permitted.

The application of HKFRS 18 is not expected to have
material impact on the financial position of the Group but
is expected to affect the presentation of the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
statement of cash flows and disclosures in the future
financial statements. The Group will continue to assess
the impact of HKFRS 18 on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

2. RAKEBITERYHREER

((EEMBREER] (&)

© 28 1B [ K 4 Rz # 5 e B AR 4B
Al & BB IS S XA (&)

BB B HEERE 18— BEHEXZ
Z5RFEE

BB W1 s 2R F 185 8 51 B 75 3R
RZIRWERTE LHMREBES
AREAFIR M BHRRZZ25] - BB
I mEER B 18RSI AFBE - €18
;R P 2R E 2R RERE 2/ F
BE G EMBEHRERMERREEEEE
BIREREE ARBEVBRERAE
BENMZERNDRE - -BEETERE
THRIRERERIRBEETERFES
SR AM ] IREHEMERT

BEMBHRELENE ISR REMEE
B & £ R & 5 R 2 M RERT KR
TECAF-A-RARUERBZFE
HAR AR WAI4RATER -

EREAVBREENFISHEBEHN
SUAKEZMBRABREATE -
BEHEeYERRMBRRPZIBRR
HEt2mBARRBRERERZZI R
WEE - AEBEBEETETEVBRE
ERF 1SR AKEZEM B RE 2

4

s
&

o

R

I



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRERA T

Annual Report 2024 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B8R KMt

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of
fair value measurement are explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

3. EXERBEES

HEMBHRRIREBESAMAEMR
BBV BRELARE - LI - &
BMBHRREIIE X AC(ES EHARRD
(TEMRA]) R(EE QAR RE
ZERBEER -

B TR BB - A B BRE
TEESRAEEGRE  HETFONE
BRERERR L ATEIE -

FELRAR—RERERRBERE @ MR
BN zREZRFE:

RFHERRFERPMSZ2EERTE
(XEBEHN) THLEZEFRXRHPRER
THRALEEERN MK ERABAX
2 B (B E) - Ak E S
RN EEBESERE MG ERMNE
it APEFEZHBRTIXAEZE
AR PR -

BEREFTHEHINMT -
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company

«  has power over the investee;

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the

date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisition

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further

assessment is needed.

Assets acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets and financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does

not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisition of businesses are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs incurred
to effect a business combination are recognised in profit

or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS

19 Employee Benefits, respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of the acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with the share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below);
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

« assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held-for-sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard; and

« lease liabilities are measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments as if the acquired
lease was a new lease at the acquisition date,
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets
are measured at an amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared

with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another
standards, are measured at acquisition-date fair value
except for non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured either at fair value or at the
present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net

assets on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at

cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU") (or groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit

from the synergies of the combination.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A CGU (or groups of CGU) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or groups of CGU) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the CGU (or groups of CGU). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in subsequent periods.

The Group's policy for goodwill relating to an associate
that included in the carrying amount of the investment is

set out in “investment in an associate” below.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method, except for the investments
classified as held for sale in which case it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the equity
method, investment in an associate is initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and changes in the other
comprehensive income of the associate, which is
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively after the date of acquisition. If the
Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the
associate’s accounting policies conform to those of the
Group when the associate’s financial statements are used

by the Group in applying the equity method.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment,
any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate is recognised as goodwill and is

included in the carrying amount of the investment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 36 Impairment of assets
issued by the HKICPA are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate is recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate that are unrelated to
the Group. The Group's share in the associate’s gains or

losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group applies HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued
by the HKICPA, including the impairment requirements,
to long-term interests in an associate to which the equity
method is not applied and which form part of the net
investment in the investee. In applying HKFRS 9 to long-
term interests, the Group does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by HKAS
28 — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures issued
by the HKICPA (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount
of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses
of the investee or assessment of impairment in
accordance with HKAS 28).

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

«  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

«  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract

«  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

« Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

«  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series

of distinct goods or services that are substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

« The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's

performance as the Group performs;

«  The Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is

created or enhanced; or

«  The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with
a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf of

third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer. A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,

a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities

of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Principal Versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group

is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a

customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue
in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the

specified goods or services to be provided by the other

party.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

The Group recognised revenue from the following major

sources:

«  Brokerage commission and other related fee from
dealing in securities and futures and options

contracts

«  Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing and sub-

placing commission

«  Arrangement, advisory, referral fee and other fee

income

« Insurance brokerage service

. Interest income

. Dividend income from financial assets held-for-

trading

«  Sales and marketing of digital assets

Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures and options contracts. Commission
income is recognised at a point in time on the execution
date of the trades at a certain percentage of the
transaction value of the trades executed. The Group
provides custodian and handling services for securities,
futures and options customer accounts. Fee income is
recognised when the transaction is executed and service
is completed (i.e. at a point in time), except for custodian

service fee which is recognised over time.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Corporate finance and other advisory services

The Group provides underwriting, sub-underwriting,
placing and sub-placing services to customers for their
fund raising activities in equity and debt capital markets.
Revenue is recognised when the relevant underwriting
and placing are completed. Accordingly, the revenue is

recognised at a point in time.

The Group also provides corporate advisory services to
corporate clients for their corporate actions. The Group
considers that all the services promised in a particular
contract of being a corporate advisor are interdependent
and interrelated and should be therefore accounted for
as a single performance obligation. As there is
enforceable right to payment for the Group for the
performance of services completed up to date based on
the contracts with customers regarding corporate advisory
services, the revenue is recognised over time based on
the stage of completion of the contract, the services
transferred to customers up to date. The Group provides
corporate secretary services to customers. Revenue is
recognised over time or at a point in time with reference
to the detailed terms of transactions as stipulated in the
contracts entered into with its customers and

counterparties.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Asset management

The Group provides asset management services to
customers. The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Asset management fee income is
charged at a fixed percentage per month of the net asset
value of the managed accounts under management of

the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when
there is a positive performance for the relevant
performance period and it is recognised at the end of the
relevant performance period, when it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently

resolved.

Insurance brokerage

The Group owns insurance broker company licence and
is entitled to conduct long term insurance business.
Insurance commission income is recognised at a point in
time of completion of dealing insurance brokerage

service.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Dividend income from financial assets held-for-
trading

The Group invests mainly through purchases in the
secondary market. The management follows strictly the
internal securities investment policy and seeks the
approval from the Board, when necessary. Dividend
income from financial assets held-for-trading is
recognised when the investee company declares dividend

distribution.

Sales and marketing of digital assets

Revenue from sales and marketing of digital assets is
recognised at a point in time when control of digital
assets is transferred to customers. The Group facilitates
upstream digital assets suppliers to sell digital assets to
downstream users. The Group does not control specific
digital assets prior to the purchase by the downstream
users. Thus, the Group is acting as an agent and

recognised the revenue on a net basis.

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
a right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Definition of a lease (continued)
The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at
inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value
assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. The lease payments are
discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses

its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise:

« fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

«  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

« the amount expected to be payable by the lessee

under residual value guarantees;

«  the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee

is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

«  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

«  the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using revised discount rate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

« the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to a
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a

revised discount rate is used).

« a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement
of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date and any initial
direct costs, less lease incentives received. Whenever the
Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and
remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37
“Provision, Contingent Liabilities and a Contingent Assets”.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,

unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line

in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
They are depreciated over the shorter period of lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the

lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any

identified impairment loss.

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreement as a lessor with
respect to its investment property. Leases for which the
Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or

loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any

subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period

when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date

(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in business combination with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis

as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers issued by the HKICPA.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at

FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") and
FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for

managing them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are

met:

«  the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

«  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are

subject to impairment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating

interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt

instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost
of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss

allowance.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other
than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so

that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is

included in the “Other income” line item (note 5).

3.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.
Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held-for-trading or if it is contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred

to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Revenue” line

item in profit or loss.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. Specifically:

«  Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held-for-trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business

combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

«  Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any

debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Fair

value is determined in the manner described in note 39.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and

effective hedging instrument).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL") on accounts receivable, and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of

the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable from dealing in securities transactions,
provision of corporate finance and other advisory services
and contract assets. The expected credit losses on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money

where appropriate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of

a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost

or effort.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

«  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability

to meet its debt obligations;

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

+  significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

< an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its

debt obligations.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
(except for term loans where a longer period of “past
due” has been applied by the directors of the Company
in view of the nature of the operation of the business
and practice in managing the credit risk), unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) the debt instrument has a low risk of default, (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has
a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.

EXEREERER (&)
ETERE (&)

HEEE (&)

B EERE(E)

15 B /7 [ B 2 1% 1 (#F)

TE LR EZER - WE KON FaE
HBiB30B (EARREFERNEK L E
HEREERREREN M EHE
REABRKRIBAHHRIKI) - AEH
BBREMBEEZEERR BV LR
BEERM RIEAKERAERASE
BERBRERER

BEEM LA EREBRERES
BHRHEREERRRE  NEEAD
RREBEBEZEERR B VTS HABR
WHEBERN - HEBTNIBER EHR
BEeRHAEREERRRE  HEKRE
BEAORRRBE: (MERXRABRREZ
RNBTRBAZEHNHEEREERE
RDNEERBERREZEHTFZ L
BrARET—EEREERABITEAS
MREREREEZRES - HWEBREHR
BIRERF (REE2HBAZER)
ZHNERAE B RF AR Bk (fis O BUAS SM AR R
B)ZEEBRBIRF| 2AREEF
FRAAREEBRZEEZEERRIR
K- [RIFIBEXZEHFHBRARRE
I @R o

173



174

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B 1R R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—
Bl

B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable:

«  when there is a breach of financial covenants by the

debtor; or

« information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by

the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due, (except for term loans where a
longer period of “past due” has been applied by the
directors of the Company in view of the nature of the
operation of the business and practice in managing the
credit risk) unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

«  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

« a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

« the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise

consider;

« it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

« the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the

reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted

at the original effective interest rate.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for financial assets that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial

asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In
addition, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but

is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity

instruments.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies are measured
in accordance with the specific accounting policies set

out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised

costs

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent
consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
2) held-for-trading, or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the

amortised cost of a financial liability.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity instruments is

classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is

included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EAEHBEREN(A)
(continued)
Convertible bonds (continued) AR ES (E)
Convertible bonds contain liability and equity ARRELREOS B EREZDSS (&)

components (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised. Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be released to the accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
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proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity RIEZNK - BHEBELSEB IR HK
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction REtABEISLD ZEEE - R R
costs relating to the liability component are included in BEAHR NIRRT R F KLY -
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Borrowing costs EE G

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and

deductible temporary differences.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year which the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle current tax liabilities and

assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax
asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a

deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXEHEBEEN(E)

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and other
eligible persons. Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at

the grant date.

SN

RiEREEREEER 205 HRKE -
NZERTAE E\’r% A?\\ZE%(?I\%)
ETZXPUEXZBRERERER
ERAEDEER (AREBKEEME
TELEMWRBZER) AR RBEH
RINEEECEBBRBEARZBZ
EREXRENHRE - MR FEIERIA
SNEEBZIFERREDRATFEEE
BHIZERERENRBRE - RINEBHE
RAGTEZIFEWIBERBAENERE -

REEEBIEERENREEKIARR
EXZERZBENEL 2 RN EZR
IR FER o

LR BEBRETRKS
KBESZ N Z AR BERNAL S
BETEF REREMBAERALZR
Pt - [AEE R EMBEHBEURE Z A
A PARRAR ST A 2 DA R £ 43 BB A5 3K
DERFEEAHRARBEZ A TVEE -



186

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B 1R R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_NWF+-A=+—HIFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve). The Group measures the
recharge based on the fair value of the equity
instruments of the Company at the grant date and
allocates that recharge to each subsidiary based on the
proportion of services received. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting condition.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss. When the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Shares awarded to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of shares awarded at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (awarded

shares compensation reserve).

When The VC Share Purchase Scheme Trust (“Trust”)
purchases the Company's shares from the open market,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as shares held for share
purchase scheme and deducted from total equity. No
gain or loss is recognised on the transactions of the
Company's own shares. When the Trust transfers the
Company's shares to grantees upon vesting, the related
costs of the granted shares vested are reversed from
shares held for share purchase scheme. Accordingly, the
related expense of the granted shares vested is reversed
from awarded shares compensation reserve. The
difference arising from such transfer is debited/credited

to accumulated losses.

When the share awards are forfeited before the vesting
date, the amount previously recognised in awarded
shares compensation reserve will be reversed

immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of
property and equipment for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement

date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on

the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective

fair value measurement.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF") are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or

permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

3.

EXERERER (H)

EHREMRAESERF

REEERM N EE RERBERE
BN Z @M RGNS ERER - 7
EEHEEBRMNOBERRMAX  HES—
TRE B WIS 2 RIRR E 3 A A AE A
ABEZRAER S ER o

BEZIERFEMNFREBAB/MNTS
RIBERNEXNERRER/AE -

mEMEHAESEMNER CABIIIZE
AAEEREEEERS BHRHEZR
BmEstz KRB RE 2 REFE -
HRBKA - FIEREHMFEEHER
ZEEELR ZEAEBO N IEERE
RS —HBEEMBRELEARENL
RAEFABEZAANER S ER -



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRERA T

Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B8R KMt

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—BILFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of
property and equipment, right-of-use assets, and
intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication

that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or the CGU) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

3. EXEBRES (H)
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is

treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

3.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to

make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and
demand deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
are short-term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather for investment or other

purposes.

3. EXEBRES (H)
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BE—
4.

B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial

statements.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group is considered as an agent for its contract with
customers relating to the sales and marketing of digital
assets as the Group did not obtain the control over digital
assets before passing on to customers taking into
consideration indicators such as the Group is not
primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise and not
exposed to inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognises a
commission revenue in the amount it expects to be
entitled. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group recognised commission revenue relating to sales
and marketing of digital assets amounted to
HK$ 1,345,000 (2023: HK$2,823,000)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

4.
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BE—
4.

B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of accounts receivable

The impairment provisions for accounts receivable are
based on assumptions about ECL. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, bases on the
number of days that an individual receivable is
outstanding as well as the Group's historical experience
and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the
assessment and it may be necessary to make additional
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2024, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable from securities transactions, provision of
corporate finance and other advisory services, money
lending services, asset management service, insurance
brokerage service, sales and marketing of digital assets
and rental income approximately HK$128,090,000,
HK$545,000, HK$127,200,000, HK$5,627,000,
HK$415,000, nil and HK$105,000 (2023:
HK$139,889,000, HK$539,000, HK$165,977,000,
HK$5,917,000, HK$225,000, HK$314,000 and nil)
respectively, net of accumulated impairment losses of
approximately HK$70,574,000, HK$3,636,000,
HK$225,331,000, nil, nil, nil and nil (2023:
HK$51,372,000, HK$3,646,000, HK$171,748,000, nil,

nil, nil and nil) respectively.

4.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2024, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of certain tax losses of approximately
HK$1,030,631,000 (2023: HK$938,637,000) and
deductible temporary difference of approximately
HK$6,376,000 (2023: HK$6,720,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisable of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, or changes in facts
and circumstances which result in revision of future taxation
profits estimation, a material recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or

loss for the period in which such a recognition takes place.

Estimated fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI

As described in note 39, the directors of the Company
use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. For financial assets at
FVTOCI, assumptions are made based on inputs not
quoted in an active market adjusted for specific features
of the instrument. If the inputs and estimates applied in
the model are different, the fair value of these financial

instruments may change.

4.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI
(continued)

The carrying amounts of the financial assets at FVTOCI
and as at 31 December 2024 was approximately
HK$14,312,000 (2023: HK$16,439,000). The directors
of the Company believe that the chosen valuation
techniques and assumptions are appropriate in

determining the fair value of these financial instruments.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue principally arises from the (i) financial services
which consists of the provision of securities, brokering
and dealing, provision of margin financing and money
lending services, provision of placing and underwriting
services, mergers and acquisitions services, and corporate
finance and other related advisory services; (ii)
proprietary trading; (iii) asset management; (iv) insurance

brokerage service and (v) rental income.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

5. WaERkEMUEA ()

2024 2023
ZE-DNFE 2 _—T_=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(Fe&E51)
Continuing operations REREXR
Revenue from contracts with customers & BB 3R &2 RSB 1557 € H
within the scope of HKFRS 15 REZEFITIENZWE
Disaggregated by major services lines BREZREE D
— Brokerage commission and other related —BEB#HHABELAHAES K
fees from dealing in securities HibEREE B 4,758 4,414
— Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing — 8 7 8#  BEEKk
and sub-placing commission DERERE 689 1,459
— Asset management —BEER 2,338 2,165
— Arrangement, referral, advisory and —ZH - E#N - BER R
other fee income HEi &AW A 3,847 4,813
— Insurance brokerage —RRE&LR 7,223 6,663
18,855 19,514
Revenue from other sources R E H A RR 2 W
— Interest income from clients —REEFZHMEWA 49,927 53,801
— Rental income for investment property ~ —&EHE NIREDE
under operating leases — fixed lease HeBA—EEEENK
payment (note) (K1at) 280 -
50,207 53,801
69,062 73,315
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) Wi Rk H WA (&)
Note: An analysis of the Group's net rental income is as B - REBZFESWASIFTAT :
follows:
2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHBT
Gross rental income from investment property R E&EME 2 LS WA 280 -
Direct operating expenses incurred for FAHRBHESRAZIRE
investment property that generated rental MEMEEz BEKE
income during the year (include property MY (BEWERS)
expenses) (58) -
Net rental income FHS WA 222 -

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

BEEFITLEHNFERE ZER

customers by timing of recognition BFEE o
2024 2023
—E-lmNE —T-o=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET
(Restated)
(&=E751)

Timing of revenue recognition s 2 T 28 B

At a point in time J — {8l s 1 B4 13,004 12,862
Over time R — BRI A 5,851 6,652
18,855 19,514
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5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) 5. W REMKA ()

Transaction price allocated to the remaining BRBEITBERGZBNERE

performance obligations

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount of
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) is
approximately HK$1,071,000 (2023: HK$2,110,000).
The amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from corporate finance advisory

service. The Group will recognise this revenue as the

it

R-ZEBE-_WNE+_A=+—H 2=
RET (HHP KRBT 2BHNEEZ
RSEHEELA1,071,0008 T (=ZF
Z =% :2,110,00087T) ° ZKIEATE
HIR AR R TR < D m & & E B8 AR
2 e o AN G A 1R AR 7% R RE R
HEEFHRARIEARNEE

service is provided, which is expected to occur over the “E=F128R) - FuieBETE
next 12 months (2023: 12 months). The above amounts BBz J#RE -
do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.
Other income Hi A
2024 2023
—EBECoME —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(gEE= %)
Interest income from authorised institutions % 3 52 A # 18 ~ A1 2 g A 758 870
Other interest income H b A B A 495 1,099
Total interest income F B A B RE 1,253 1,969
Government grants (note) BT+ B (B 72 ) 30 430
Sundry income HIRWA 18 36
1,301 2,435
Note: During the year 31 December 2024, the Group Wit BE-FT-_NF+=-A=+—H1t

recognised government grants of HK$30,000 (2023:
HK$430,000) related to Hong Kong Institute of Human

Resource Management Job Creation Scheme provided

by the Government of the Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund.

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other

contingencies attached to the receipts of those

subsidies.

FE - AEEREAFINTHE R
BZHERBEEETZEAANE
RE BB A SR B ERBT
#B130,0008 L (Z T = = F -
430,000/ 7C) - LR EMBM E -
I R E R 2 M AR R B A S A
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are organised and
managed separately, according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of the other operating segments.

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which

are organised by different business lines.

Information reported to the Group’s Executive Committee,
being the chief operating decision maker ("CODM"), for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment is prepared on this basis. The Group has
identified the following six (2023: five (restated))
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

as follows:

(i) the brokerage and financing segment engages in
securities brokering and dealing, provision of margin
financing and money lending, and placing and

underwriting services;

(i) the corporate finance and other advisory services
segment engages in provision of corporate financial

advisory services and company secretarial services;

(i) the asset management segment engages in provision

of asset management services;

7 #B &

REBEEEEEBHETRUER LR
BIHESRABRER SHHA—
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BEZ
6.

“MOFEt-A=1+—HLFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(iv) the insurance brokerage segment engages in

provision of insurance brokerage services;

(v) the proprietary trading segment engages in trading
of equity securities, debt securities and other

financial products; and

(vi) the property investment segment engages in earning

rentals from investment property.

Property investment segment was commenced during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

An operating segment regarding the sales and marketing
of digital assets was discontinued in the current year. The
segment information reported on the next pages does
not include any amounts for this discontinued operation,

which are described in more details in note 13.

6.

2 EBE K (4E)
(iv) REBELET
LR

% o3 BB e F IR IR BR AT

(v) B2EEXBOBUERAES
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i) MERBEEBHHHERIREY

E itk
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(F)
The following tables presented revenue and results of TREJNEEZ_ZE_NFER_T_=F
these reportable and operating segments for the years +_A=+—HLEFEZFETHRER
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. KEDE 2 W R EEE R ©

Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_Z-_NF+=-A=+—HLEFE
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other

and advisory Asset ~Insurance  Proprietary Property Segment

Continuing operations financing senvices  management  brokerage trading  investment total  Eliminations Total

LEHER
f£R  EfER  BEEE  RREE  AEEE  HERE
FREEER HEXE  BEEH £ £ E3 £ F H it

HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
TR TEn Tin TR TR TEn Tin TR TR

Segment revenue Aha 55374 3847 2338 1 - 280 69,062 - 69,062
Inre-segment sles APEHER 360 1,560 - - - - 1920 (1,920) -

55,734 5407 2,338 1223 - 280 70982 (1,920) 69,062
Segment (oss) proft A (EE) & (42.250) (4321) 568 (81)  (50387) (4184  (100835) - (10083)
Unéllocaed adminstative costs FORFRAA (25992)
Cain on disposalof a subsidiay HERBATZhE 8
Share of logs of associates AMBEATEE (89)
Loss before tan hRiER

L+

(continuing operations) (FEZEEH) (126,908)
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHEL (&)
Year ended 31 December 2024 (continued) BE-_Z_NE+-_A=+—HLFE
(%)
Other segment information Hitt 5 #H&EH
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and advisory Asset Insurance  Proprietary  Property  Segment
Continuing operations financing seices  management  brokerage trading ~ investment totel  Adjustments Total
LERER
B£R  AfER  BEEER  RREE  AEER  HERE
FREEER HEXE  REEH £ £ £ o AR L )
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TEL TERL Tn THT T#L TE7 T7 THL T#L
(note)
i
Amounts included inthe measure of  FEAFEREHAL
segment proftor loss: 2%
Net realised and unrealised loss on~—~ {FEEBIEEEVER
financial assets heldHor-ading RRAZRERFE - - - - 43,999 - 43,999 - 13,99
Interestincome from authorised REZTEEZFIA
insftutions (648) (105) - - - - (153) ) (159)
Inerest income from convertble bonds 7 &R (% 2718 4\ - - - > . = - () 6)
Other interest income EfFENA ) (492) - - ) - (495) - (495)
Fair velue loss on investment property &£ 2 ATEEE - - - - - 370 370 - 3770
St costs EIfE 8,687 3,99 - 605 - - 13,288 21,986 35,274
Commission expenses fems 863 - - 6,841 425 - 8129 (359) 7,710
Depreciaion of property and equipment 1% kR E % 325 - 3 - - 0l 2% 660
Impairment loss on accounts receivable, B3 ZESE
net #8 12,185 (10) = > = = 1,175 = 1,175
Impairment loss on other receivable, net 4 ENEZ 2SR
i - - - - - - - YNyl 2l
Finence costs BEAA 2517 - - - 700 BN OO 4
Amounts regulty provided o e EERETAEEYS
Croup's Erecuve Commitee but ot~ E S B384
incuded in the measure of segment  BRETRAL
proftor logs 28
Additions to non-current asses RYEERE 9% 6 - - - 18,000 18,104 7344 25,448
Depreciaton of right0f-use assets FEREENE 2701 - - - - - 2,701 4255 6,956
Income far expenses fisRAL - - - - - - - h] n
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHER (&)
Year ended 31 December 2023 (Restated) BE T _=F+_A=+—HItFE
(&)
Corporate
finance
Brokerage ~ and other
and aduisory Asset Insurance ~ Proprietary Segment
Continuing operations financing senices  management  biokerage frading fofal  Eiminafions Total
PXHER
ERR  EpBR  AEEE  RRER  BEEE
FEEEEN BAZE  REXE ) £ 3 B 4 5y
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T T Thn TEn THT T ThT TR
Segment revenue e 59,674 4813 2,165 6,663 = 73315 = 13315
Inrz-segment sles PEL 70 0 - - - 1642 (164) -
603% 5755 2165 6663 - M (8 BIS
Segrent loss Y968 (10531 (5788) (630) ) 30 (4959) - (95%)
Unallocated adminisative costs RARRHA (38,367)
Fairvalue change on financia assets ~ RATFEFI B REERE
at TRL REZIHEEL
NTERY (5.400)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaies HENBAAZ4E 2437
Share of profi of an associte MEBERT L8 6l
Loss before tar RRiER
(confinuing operations) (RREZZH) (290,862)
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BEZ
6.

E_MEF_A=+—BLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023 (Restated) (continued)

6. PEER (&)
BE-_E-_=F+-_A=+—RIt&EE
(&E5) (8)

Other segment information Hitt 5 #H&EH
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and advisory Asset Insurence ~ Proprietary Segment
Continuing operations financing senices  management  biokerage frading fotdl  Adustments Total
PREER
ERR  EpBR  AEEE  RRER  BEEE
REEERK EEES S 01} 4 £ 3 S L L)
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK% 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEL i TET T ThT Tk ST T
(note)
(ki)
Amounts included in the messure of  HFESHERRIAL
segment proftor loss: £8:
Net redlised and uniealised loss on~—~— #{EEEHHEEL
financil assets heldor-eding BERRAERER
i = - - - 1666 126663 - 126663
Interest income fiom authorised REZIREZAEHA
insftutions (10) (116) (31) - - (867) ) (870)
Inerest income from convertble bonds T E% 2 I8 A - - s = - : (200) (200)
Other interest income -0 FIEV/ON Q) (898) - - (200) (1,099) - (1,009)
Staff costs ERl 1,771 479 1,006 536 = 18,108 36,636 54744
Commission expenses B2z 1221 - - 6,330 3 7590 176 7766
Depreciton of property and equipment 12 R &4 & 5 m - | - 380 466 846
Impaiment loss on accounts receivable, ERER 2 AR
net 8 136,076 1510 = = = 137,586 = 137,586
Finance costs BERK 30,19 - - - 6791 36989 (33203) 3766
Amounts egulaty provided tothe EEREFAEERA
Croup's Frecutive Comitiee but ot~ £ 5 &18318 7
ncluded in the measure of segment  EXETRHAZ
praft o loss: £F:
Addiions to non-current assets FRDEERE 5615 2 = 10 = 5,646 17 5,663
Depreciton of ightof-use assefs FRELENE 2026 - - - - 2026 5,124 77150
Income tax credit fERES (395) - - - - (395) (1519) (5470)
Note: Adjustments include the unallocated administrative costs Bt ABRBEVYEEESIEEZEAE(CZT

that are not directly allocated to the six (2023: five
(restated)) operating segments and also represent the

intra-group sales, finance costs and management fee

which are eliminated at consolidation.

=F:REEEN)) 8Lz
ﬁ@EfTEKﬁJZK Ik SN I S B B4 AR
EARKHE ESBEANRAREE
‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&a@§°

o H>>I+\I
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BE—
6.

B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by/loss from each segment, before the deduction
of unallocated administrative costs, fair value change of
financial assets at FVTPL, gain on disposal of subsidiaries
and share of (loss) profit of an associate. This is the
measure reported to the Group's Executive Committee
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as they
are not regularly provided to the Group’s Executive

Committee.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong
(country of domicile) (2023: Hong Kong (restated)).
Almost all of its non-current assets and other than
financial instruments are attributed to the operations in

Hong Kong.

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group's revenue is derived from customers in Hong
Kong (2023: Hong Kong (restated)). Accordingly, no

analysis by geographical segment is provided for revenue.

2 EHEFR (&)

BEREDH 2 A RRENEIMLZ
AEESHHRE K- DHEREED
EATEREZm A EEZBE - AR
BRARDEITHARN - BAFEIIRRE
BaRRECHMBEEZAFEES
HEMBAR 2 Wa kD IEH#E AR Z
(BB AN - W RAKERTEZES
BEARDEERRFERRIELE -

HROMEERBELEEHEETA
EEMTEES WA EZ2INEHEEH -

ih & & R
AEBEBURES (FEM) (ZF
Z=F - BEREY))  cHEBRIH
RDEE (BREREEINHEEB
550 -

BRASEXRBINBEFZBEZZER
BREBHAEWEY -BE_FT _HNF
TZA=+—HLEE AEREZ K=
REEBERP(ZZ_=%F: A (KE

51)) o Eitt - WERRHRRBES B 2K

EOHT o
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DMEH (&)
Information about major customers FREXEEFZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year RERFEEERASBERKRERI0%
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group ZEPKEMT :
are as follows:
2024 2023
—EomE —To=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Customer A' EPA 8,317 8,458
U Revenue from the segment of brokerage and financing [ W KB L RBEER D I
OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET 7. Htt SR EEFRE
Continuing operations BEKEXY
2024 2023
—EomE —T-o=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(Fe&E51)
Net exchange loss EREEFER (38) )
Gain on disposal of property HE YR RHE W
and equipment 230 =
Fair value change of financial assets BRAFEIIRREBRREE
at FVTPL ZHBEEZRATFERSY - (5,400)
Fair value change of investment property & &% 2 A F(EE & (3,770) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) H &K B QA 2 Wzs (Hat41) 8 2,437
Net realised and unrealised loss on RIEEBEVKREECZEZER
financial assets held-for-trading REREEFE (43,999) (126,663)
Others H At = 609
(47,569)  (129,018)
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BE—
8.

Z_MNEF_A=1T—HILFE
STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 8. BEIRA(BREEMS)
EMOLUMENTS)
Continuing operations BEKEXEK
2024 2023
—E-MFE —FT-_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
(Restated)
(Fe&5)
Staff commission SI/E<® 1,684 2,235
Salaries and wages HehIE 30,409 37,954
Staff welfare = = 1,558 2,049
Recruitment costs BB AR 8 21
Termination benefits B A2 ) 67 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K48 | 5t & fit 3% 798 846
Discretionary and performance related BIERIEE RS &
incentive payments and provision of KM S B
gratuity 783 369
Equity-settled share option expense VAR 7R 32 A5 2 B B v Al <2 = il 574
Other staff benefits Hih 8 THRF (33) 136
35,274 54,744

The Group participates in a Mandatory

Provident Fund

Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
December 2001.

separate trustee-administered funds.

Ordinance in

The assets of which are held in

Both the Group and the employees contribute a fixed

percentage of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.
The contribution by the Group is capped at HK$1,500

per employee per month and is expensed as incurred.

AEBBTR-_ZET—F T+ ARE(AE
Hl1E A TE R EHRGID & 7 2 58 il D
Ee st &l ([ %E/i\EJri‘H) BERstE
LEEREAERESIRARESR -

AEEREEVRAEBFEZETEAD
ferseE et a8l R - AREZHR E
RAGXEES® A1,5008 7T HRTD
REBEERIIMEFRX °
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9.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 8 (2023: 8)

directors of the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors
Fu Yiu Man, Peter
Wong Kam Fat, Tony
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo
Li Cindy Chen
Zhang Nu (note 1)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH

Au Tin Fung, Edmund

Note:

EEME

BN REMAQESL (=

B)EFZMEMT

Year ended 31 December 2024

211

T =4

BE_B_ME+-A=t-HLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contribution  emoluments
&R RIKEF
e Hinig Al HEREEN B e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TR TER TER
HITES
R - 1,221 18 1,239
HIRE 600 - - 600
ERT - 672 18 690
2R 560 - - 560
RE (fiit1) 394 - - 394
BYFGTES
ER/NES 216 - - 216
B3  MH 216 - - 216
=HeE 216 - - 216
2,202 1,893 36 4,131

1. Mr. Zhang Nu was resigned as Executive Director of the

Company with effect from 9 July 2024.

Witz -

1. REZER-_T-_NFLANBRE

EARARBRITES -
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9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Executive Directors
Fu Yiu Man, Peter
Wong Kam Fat, Tony
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo
Li Cindy Chen
Zhang Nu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Waong Chung Kin, Quentin
Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH

Au Tin Fung, Edmund

HTES
HFRX
HRE
ERL
=B
RE

BYFHITES

HIRE

qYx

BRAHE

MH

9. EEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-=F+_A=+—RHIEE

Retirement

Salaries benefits
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contribution  emoluments

ek RIKREA
ik Hfty 72 7 AR BHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FHET FHET
= 2,009 18 2,027
1,182 - - 1,182
= 945 18 963
1,182 = = 1,182
1,063 = = 1,063
216 = = 216
216 = = 216
216 = = 216

4,075 2,954 36 7,065
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. EEME (&)

Aggregate emoluments paid to
or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as

directors, whether of the
Company or its subsidiaries

undertaking

ESHARHEZESRE (TmR
READAREWBAT) MEEX

Aggregate emoluments paid to
or receivable by directors in
respect of their other services in
connection with the management
of affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking Total
EEpRUEEELA D RAEHE
BeHEMRE (FREREXQAR
HH R D E) M E B X EKER

NRERRZHMEAE ZMemE st
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—EB-QmEF —F-=F —EB-NF —E-=H —g-MmF —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTHET TR TET THERT FTHET
2,202 4,075 1,929 2,990 4,131 7,065
For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no BE-_ZT-_NFR-T==F1+=A
ordinary shares were awarded to the directors of the =E+—RIEFEAR  BERERG ZE
Company under share incentive award schemes in STERARREERRAAREERE 2R
respect of their services provided to the Group. Further AR EREE BN - BHE - THEBEH

details of which are set out in note 36.

RHIFE36 -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR 10 BN EESHEERSREERE
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS Z&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AEBRfUZEFMALTH  —6 (=
the Group, one (2023: one) was the director of the EZ=F:—f) RARAIESE ' &b
Company whose emoluments are included in the SEBHNMT - AT (ZE ==
disclosures in note 9. The emoluments of the remaining FpOp) A zBeEZnT -

four (2023: four) individuals were as follows:

2024 2023

—E-NE —E=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH& T FAT

Salaries and other benefits & REMEF 5,438 6,533

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 17}? B8R EH & 3k 72 72

5,510 6,605

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in note MREIFAOFMBBEEE 2CME/N &2 FH
9, the emoluments of the highest paid employee fell BEZMENF T E&HE :

within the following bands:

Number of individuals
AE
2024 2023
—EmE —FT-=

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001;%8 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 3 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 1 4
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T - =

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - =
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR

11.

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The senior management represents key management
personnel of the Group, other than directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in note 9. The
emoluments of the key management personnel are

included in note 42.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as inducements to join or upon

joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

10. AN GBS HFEERSREEE

ZHE (4)
EREEBAAEBZEEEEAR (T
BEARAEE BEZMEERHE
OFFE) TEEEABZHMEHR
B zE42 o

BE_ZT_NEFR_ZT_=F+_H
E+—RLEFEARA AREBTEAAR
REENASBANESFALTINAR
FEREMB S - 1ER B ZAREE SR
B BE S ERBEREE -

FINANCE COSTS 11. @& R A
Continuing operations RFEKEREK
2024 2023
—EBEoNE —E_=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Interests on: IATIEEZHE :
Bank overdrafts RITHEXZ 3 34
Convertible bonds issued (note 32) BEERBITAIRRES (HiF32) 213 588
Lease liabilities (note 23) HE&E(MZ23) 299 489
Other borrowing (note 33) H gk (#7i233) 585 =
Margin loan payables ERHREEER 3,179 2,655

4,279 3,766
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

12. FREHiMAx (%)

2024 2023
ZEBE-NFE 2 _—T_=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
(Restated)
(Fe&51)
Continuing operations FERE X

Over provision in prior year MEFEBEEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBEMNEN = (3,952)
Deferred tax (note 31) RIERRIE (H7E31) 121 (1,518)
121 (5,470)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2million of profits of qualifying
corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2million will be taxed at 16.5%. Hong Kong Profits
tax of the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The profits of other Group entities in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will

continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008

onwards.

Pursuant to the rules and regulation of the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income

tax in this jurisdiction.

BEEBFNESHIMARESNE 68
1% 7% B B2,000,0007% i@ Il 2 T X B
8.25% - 8 352,000,0007% JT & # 2
ER165% RNEEETAERERY
7 15 3 12 R 45 B MR AR B 2 6 E AT
o REBEEMTRHE MG MR X
HEBR 2 EAERABERE —MX
16.5% R X, ©

BEFEAREMBE Z S EMERE
([REMRBHE]D) REERGHREERE
Gol - FEMBARIZHEG_TEN
F—HA—H#EAE25% -

REABEZHS ((REBREXES])
BRI RRG - NE BB AN RERE
&2 EMFH -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued) 12. FREHBE X (ER) (§)

The tax credit can be reconciled to loss before tax per the HMEERETEGSA BN EME2E YA

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other KZBHAEEERAT
comprehensive income as follows:
2024 2023
—EBEDNE T _=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
(Restated)
(r8&51)

Continuing operations FEREET
Loss before tax BT ATES 1B (126,908) (290,862)
Calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate & B F S HFH L 16.5%

of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) (ZF==%F : 165%) & (20,940) (47,992)
Tax effect of share of loss (profit) of DEEEAREBECER) 2

associates MR E 15 (10)
Tax effect of income not taxable for MBIEM 5 BABRBAZ

tax purpose B8 31) (1,740)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ FFIBEBME TAIHF T 2

tax purpose MG 5,955 3,126
Over provision in respect of prior year BEFEHBEBARE = (3,952)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERZ MR EZRE Y

difference not recognised MR E = 69
Utilisation of deductible temporary E) R R 2 AT H0 350 B B

difference not recognised 5 (57) =
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BANERERZHIEEE

tax losses (402) (637)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBEEBEB MG E 15,581 45,666
Tax expense (credit) for the year FEMBERY (E2) 121 (5,470)
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BE—
13.

EoNME+—A=+—HILFE
DISCONTINUED OPERATION
On 19 September 2024, the Company entered into sale

and purchase agreements with an independent third
party to disposal its wholly owned subsidiary, D&K Asset
Management (HK) Limited and VC Technology Assets
Limited. Through this disposal, 100% directly held
subsidiary by D&K Asset Management (HK) Limited and
its 100% and 51% indirectly held subsidiaries ((together
with D&K Asset Management (HK) Limited and VC
Technology Assets Limited, collectively referred to as the
“Disposal Group”) were also disposed of accordingly, at a
cash consideration of an aggregate amount of
approximately of HK$60,000. The Disposal Group carried
out all of the Group’s sales and marketing of digital
assets segment which represented a separate major line
of business of the Group. As a result, it has been
presented as a discontinued operation in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2024 and 2023. The disposal was completed on 27
September 2024, on which date the control of the

Disposal Group was passed to the acquirer.

13. ERIEREXRH

RZZE_MEARTNAE  ARARIEE
NEZRENEEHE  NHEHEE
MBARE®HEEER(BEA) ARA
AIRERMEEEBRAR - BBARK
HE  EHEETE(EB)ARAAE
B E100%2 M B8 2 & K& FH100% K&
S51%HEZEFRBEZMBEAR GEREBE
EER (BR)ERRAAIREANMKE
EERARSGHEIEEEE]) HEED
& IS HBIRE R ERR60,000E T -
HESBREAREHBEEELK D
ZIBHERERERY 2o ABERE
VENZAEEFTZER - Bt - RE
E_ZT_NFRZFT_=F+2_AH
=St+—BIEFEZGEBRERAMEE
WARF  ZHHBERINBERIELS
X% -BFHALEHEER-_T-_MFNA
ZHtBEA - mEE SR S I
RREBEBEWRES -
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 13. O 4R 1F 4 2 58 (48)

The loss for the period/year from the discontinued ERIEREEB 2 FAEES T
operation is analysed as follows: (N

1/1/2024 - 1/1/2023 —

27/9/2024 31/12/2023

—E-ME —EB=%F

—A—H=%E —A—HE

—B-EF S

hAA=t+tB +=ZA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Loss of sales and marketing of digital ~ HIA, A BB EEHE

assets segment for the period/year MEEEB > 2 E1E (2,533) (2,806)
Gain on disposal of sales and HESITEEHE MR

marketing of digital assets segment o e

(note 41) (Hait41) 416 -

(2,117) (2,806)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The results of the sales and marketing of digital assets for

the period/year were as follows:

13. ERIERE R (F)

B EEHERBEES 2B FRE
LR

1/1/2024 - 1/1/2023 —

27/9/2024 31/12/2023

—EBE-ME —E-=F

—A—HZE =l = =

—ECMIEF —E-=F

hA=++tH T+TZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Revenue Yo zs 1,345 2,823
Other income H A ug A 1 11
Staff costs 8T (792) (2,673)

Depreciation of property and MERRZENE

equipment (36) (60)
Other operating expenses HEMgEERx (3,117) (2,836)
Loss before taxation R Al & B (2,599) (2,735)
Income tax credit (expense) FrefiE e () 66 71
Loss for the period/year HE R EE (2,533) (2,806)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

Loss for the period/year from discontinued operation has

been arrived at after charging:

FERERBE
BITARA % 2R
H A 18 7 R AR R A8 A
E IR

BE k& EITE

Impairment loss on inventories

Staff costs — salaries, allowances, other
benefits and contributions to
retirement benefits scheme

Depreciation of plant and equipment

1/1/2024 -
27/9/2024
—E-NEF
—A—H=%E
—E-mEF

hB=++tH

HK$'000
TERT

688

792
36

13. BERIEEERE ()
BERIEESEE 28/ FRERENR
TH &R G :

1/1/2023 —
31/12/2023
T =%
—H—B=%
—E-=F
+=-—A=+—8H
HK$'000

TET

2,673
60

The information on cash flows incurred by the

discontinued operation is as follows:

mT

LSRR (FTA) TSRS
activities F R

KREZBTABRESFRE

Net cash (used in) from operating

Net cash used in investing activities

BE&IE

1/1/2024 -
27/9/2024
—EoNE
—A—B=%
—s-ma

hB=Z++H

HK$'000
TERT

(893)

BERBRELZ RS REEN

1/1/2023 —
31/12/2023
o=
—A—H=z
—EF-=F
+=—A=+—¢H
HK$'000

TAET

263

(17)

The carrying amounts of the total assets and liabilities of
the discontinued operation at the date of disposal are

disclosed in note 41.

EREREXBRHERMCEEREA
BRBZEEERME41IRE -
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14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 14. FEBE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: FEBELNR T SERZIR
Continuing operations BEKEXY
2024 2023
ZEBE-NFE @ _—_T_=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(Restated)
(ge=E= %)
Included in other operating expenses: BERAEMSERX
Auditor's remuneration % AT B & 1,595 1,694
Depreciation of property and equipment ~ ¥ ¥ R R EITE 660 846
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,956 7,150
Entertainment and travel expenses JE B 2= PR B 2
(mainly incurred for business (FEMEBERMES)
development) 3,168 5,979
15. DIVIDENDS 15. B &
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended WERBZE_Z_NF+-_HA=+—H
31 December 2024, nor has any dividend been HFESINSREZZEAME - INEBA R
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2023: EHREREZRANKRE(ZE =4

nil). ) o
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16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BREE
From continuing and discontinued operations BFERCRIERERXR
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share ARRIEEARMBFERERIEKEEE
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable B2 ER R EEE TR B AT E
to the owners of the Company is based on the following BErE
data:
2024 2023
—EBEoNME T _=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
(Restated)
(s E=5)
Loss Ei8
Loss for the purpose of basic and M EERERNREEEE
diluted loss per share FTAZEE (128,425) (287,754)
2024 2023
—EDNE T -=%F
‘000 '000
TR F &
Number of shares IR BB
Weighted average number of ordinary MR EERERNREEEE
shares for the purpose of basic and PR 2 B R AR ke 19 2

diluted loss per share 2,473,523 2,388,954
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16. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

16. ZIREE (&)

From continuing operations RFERERB
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KAREE ABEIFE

from continuing operations attributable to the owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BB

FHEMT

g

Ey =Y e
EARANEBERIRENATEIRAE

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(Restated)
(F&&E5)
Loss for the year attributable to the RRFHEER ABRIEFEEER
owners of the Company (128,425) (287,754)
Add: Loss for the year from discontinued il : ERIEELEK 2
operation FEBE 1,407 2373
Loss for the purpose of basic and R ERFECEEB TR
diluted loss per share from EXREEBEMAC
continuing operation 8 (127,018) (285,381)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed

above for both basic and diluted earnings per share. R e

BREANEERNAA D H
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BE—
16.

“ME+ZA=+—HIEFE
LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operation is HK$0.06 cents per share (2023: HK$0.10
cents per share), based on the loss for the year from the
discontinued operation of approximately HK$1,407,000
(2023: HK$2,373,000) and the denominators detailed

above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company's outstanding
convertible bonds since their exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company's share options
because the exercise price of those share options was
higher than the average market price for shares for the
years ended 31 December 2024. The computation of
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s options since their exercise would result
in a decrease in loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2023.

16. FREE (&)

ERIEREER
BRIEEEERZBREARBEER
RER0.06HBII(ZZE==% : §&0.10
B - DRBERIEREXEBZFE
B 18 491,407,000 T (ZFE = = F :
2,373,000 7T) K& X EFat gt B AR E AR
LEEBEB O NEE -

SAESRESERRITERIAQAR
BEURRESFDRK  BI1TEHE @R
MEEBHRBE_T_MFR_T_=
FH+—A=+—RLEFEZSREBR

Do

HEERBEERRTERKAATZ
BRESITE AZSEEREZTEE

ERRMREBEE-_T_NONF+=A
S+ —BLEFEZTFHETE -FEER
BEEBERTEREARACERER
1 AT EEEFNEEEREE—
T=F+-A=+—RHLEFEZER
B e
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17. GOODWILL 17. &8
2024 2023
—E-lmE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Cost BN
At 1 January n—HA—H 8,324 2,016
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary FhUL R BT B B i 2 A
(note 40) (K1 #40) - 6,308
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 8,324 8,324
Accumulated impairment loss 2FREEE
At 1 January R—H—H 694 -
Impairment loss VEREN SRS = 694
At 31 December R+Z—HA=+—H 694 694
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December R+=-—B=+—H 7,630 7,630
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

17. B& (H)

Impairment testing on goodwill and other

intangible assets

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and

other intangible assets including Hong Kong Securities

and Futures Commission (“SFC") licence and customer

relationship set out in note 18 have been allocated to

two individual cash-generating units, comprising one

subsidiary in the insurance brokerage business and one

subsidiary in the asset management business. The

carrying amounts of goodwill and other intangible assets

(net of accumulated impairment losses) as at 31

December 2024 and 2023 allocated to these units are

as follows:

BERAMELEE ZRERNR

HBEARANS  BEREMETLEE
(BREMTI8AHEcBEAEFRAES
BERZEG ([FEGBRREPRP
BRESPEZEMEEANCREEELE
i AR —FERERERELEB B
RAR—HREEEEREBIHMER
Ale PEEEREEM 2 HERHMET
BE (HBREZFFREER RN
FRN-_E-ZF+-_A=+—HZE@
(ERUNNE

2024 2023
—B-NE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET
Insurance brokerage business R R
Experts Management Limited (Unit A) Experts Management Limited
(B fZA)
— Goodwill e 2,016 2,016
Asset management business EEEERER
VC International Asset Management EREREEEEARAA
Limited (“VCIAM") (Unit B) (ERBEEEER])
(Ef7B)
— Goodwill kS 5,614 5614
— Other Intangible assets —HtEPVEE 2,754 3,041
8,368 8,655

For the purpose of impairment assessment, other

intangible assets that generate cash flows together with

the related goodwill are also included in the respective

cash-generating unit.

SUREREME - RAREE -—REL
ReREZEMBLEETAAEEZ
ReELEM-
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill and other
intangible assets (continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised

below:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation which requires the use of
assumptions. The calculation used in cash flow projection
was based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rate stated below. This growth
rate is consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports specific to the industry in which the CGU

operates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the
CGU:

~BHEERE
— KA
— BB

— Budgeted gross margin
— Terminal growth rate

— Pre-tax discount rate

17. B& (&)

BMERHEMERLEE ZBEYR
(%)
tRBReEABEM I NESEEER
HEXZHBHREMADT

EfZA
ReELBUZARESRVIZERE
EEZEE  EPFEEARRK 5
BEREAZEERERNAESEELE
ZHEHPBRERER -

TFHPRER RS RETIRA Nl &
FHERERER - ZERTEFHREE
EBEUREMETEMBEIITRRS
RZIEB %

TREJABESELEEUMBZER

B

2024 2023
—B-mE —T-=

% %

25.0 5.0

3.0 2.0

16.9 13.0
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BE—
17.

ZHFEFTZA=T—RILFE
GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill and other
intangible assets (continued)

Unit A (continued)

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development. Terminal growth rate
is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the budget period. The rate is
consistent with forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks

related to the relevant unit.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
management of the Company determines that there is no

impairment on goodwill of Unit A.

Unit B

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation which requires the use of
assumptions. The calculation used in cash flow projection
was based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rate stated below. This growth
rate is consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports specific to the industry in which the CGU

operates.

17. B& (H)

BERAMELEE ZRERNR
(%&)

E VA ()
AREEREENRSEEMAIEE
REXBEFEN —FMERZTFHE
ME > BREB\ARXRUERFAHTIS
TERMIL I - K AIER KRS —IF T
HREEEX  BRENRERUNR RS
MEB - ZMEREBITERED 2R —
HoPMTAZMRESHAMIRE IR
BRABBEEL 2 R B R

ST HLEFE ARAEEEEEE
LAY s BB E

EfuB
ReELBN A ROSEIRERE
Bt ELEE ETFEERRRK - &t
BEhERAZBRenERANERER L
ZHEHPHERERER -

RFEHNRZBAESREDNRA TR 24
FHEREMER - ZERXBAHHRSE
EBEMEERETRMBRZIITRRS
R IR %
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill and other
intangible assets (continued)

Unit B (continued)

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the
CGU:

— Budgeted gross margin —REEMNX
— Terminal growth rate — kAR R
— Pre-tax discount rate — B AT AL IR &

17. B& (&)

BMERHEMERLEE ZBEYR
(%)

B {uB (%)
TREBIRBEELELMAZEE
B :

2024 2023
—ED@mE O —E =

% %

63.9 46.7

3.0 3.0

15.8 15.8

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development. Terminal growth rate
is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the budget period. The rate is
consistent with forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks

related to the relevant unit.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, due to the
unforeseen business environment for the asset
management business and short-fall of recoverable
amount of approximately HK$8,655,000, impairment loss
of approximately HK$694,000 on goodwill of Unit B was

recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, management
of the Company determines that there is no impairment

of goodwill of Unit B.

AREEREENERDEEMAIEE
REZBREFEA—FRERZFHE
ME - BREBERERLERAHTS
TRMIBM - KAERE S —IANEF
BRER AREAREHNR RS
ME - ZMNEEBITERED 2R —
HoMTAZMRESHAMERE IR
BRAB R B 2 A R

BHE_ZTZ-_=Z=F+-_A=+—HBItF
B EREETERBZERBRELR
T ER 28 LA E €8T 2 HE
#18,655,000/8 7T * Bt EUBZ HE R
T R {EEE #1694,000% 7T °

BE_ZT_NWNF+_A=t—HLLF
[ERRIVINYN

ARrEEEETEMBZBEY

R (B
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. EthEFEE
Customer Club
SFC licence  relationship membership Total
RESHR EFR#% efes @zt

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THEL THEL TAT TAT

Cost KA
At 1 January 2023 W-_Z-=F—-f—A - - 1538 1,538
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary S =Gy 64
(Note 40) (Hrit40) 1,536 1,720 - 3,256
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 RZBZ=%+-A=+-H"
and 31 December 2024 “E-MFE-A-BR

R WET-A=+—H 1536 1,720 1538 4,794
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 24 84 [ il
At 1 January 2023 RZZEZ=%-H—H - - 292 292
Charge for the year FRARX - 215 - 215
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZZZ=+-HA=+—HEK

“F-mE-A-H - 215 292 507
Charge for the year ERFX - 287 - 287
At 31 December 2024 R-B-HmE+-A=t+-A - 502 292 794
Carrying value REE
At 31 December 2024 R-B-mE+-A=1-H 1,536 1218 1,246 4,000
At 31 December 2023 R-B-_=f+t-A=t-H 1536 1,505 1246 4,287
The above intangible asset other than SFC licence, club PR EESRR  SREERERES
membership and debenture has finite useful lives. Such B EEARTEAERFH %%
intangible asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over BREER T R AE RS

the following period:

Customer relationship 6 years BEFBIE 6%
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18.

19.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Other intangible assets include club membership with
indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts based on fair value less costs to
sell. The fair value is determined using an observable
market price or recent market transaction price and no
indication of impairment was noted during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The additions during the year ended 31 December 2023
arise from the acquisition of a subsidiary with SFC license
and customer relationships aligned with the asset
management service of approximately HK$1,536,000 and
HK$1,720,000 respectively at the date of acquisition.
Particulars regarding impairment testing on SFC license
and customer relationships have been disclosed in note
17.

18. HittBILEE (&)

H At f% 72 & B B 45 B fEBR 5E 7] (5 AR 4F AF
ZEMEHE  YUAFERBEEXEE
EXEZFURAGEAEARATKRE S
B UNETRENSR - 2 FERBAEH
RemEBISCGAAMSERSERETE RN
BE-_ZT-_NEFER-_ZT=_=F1+=A
S+—HEFERTEEBEREDIR

BE_ZE-_=F4+-_A=+—RHLEE
ZRBTIE £ B W B A 7w EST
BEEERBTRFESEBREP
BE ERKRBEHZEE RN A
1,536,000 7T &% 1,720,000 7T - & 8
FEERBREFPHARZABNAFE
M 1785 -

TRADING RIGHTS 19. X5 &
HK$'000
FHET
Cost B AR
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R-ZE-_=F—-—HA—HA ZZT==
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 +=ZA=+—RH ZE-mWFE—A—H
k—ZF-_mMFE+=-B=+—~H 4,198
Amortisation 55
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, RZE-=F—H—H Z—ZE=-=%
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 +=-A=+—RH —E-_WmWF—A—H
—E-ME+-HA=+—H 4,198
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2023 and RZBEZ=ZF+_A=+—HK

31 December 2024

—EoNFE+=-—A=1+—H -

Trading rights are amortised over 10 years from 6 March
2000, the effective date of the merger of the Stock
Exchange, HKFE and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC").

RHEA_TTEF=HANA (AR
i  BEAMRAARBEETREEBRA
A(BERE]) AHERER) B+
FHEH -
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20. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 20. MENFZE
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures and equipment Motor
improvements equipment  and software vehicles Total
HENE AR -BE BERER
R RERZRB Bt RE #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THER FET TET THER
Cost N
At 1 January 2023 W-_E-_=%-A—H 5,883 3,502 5931 3,300 18,616
Additions NE - - 118 - 118
Write-off i 3 - © 37) (22) (68)
Realignment BHRE - (1) () - 9
At 31 December 2023 RZZT-=%F
TZA=+-H 5,883 3,492 6,011 3,278 18,664
Additions NE = 6 110 20 136
Write-off se = - - (960) (960)
Disposals e - - (23) - (23)
Disposal of subsidiaries & KB 7l
(note 41) (Biz41) = (43) (156) = (199)
At 31 December 2024 ~ RZEZ[
+ZA=+-A 5,883 3,455 5,942 2,338 17,618
Depreciation neE
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%—H—H 5,847 3,088 5,607 1,799 16,341
Charge for the year FARX 36 249 157 464 906
Write-off ik - © 37) (22) (68)
Realignment BHRL - (1) () - @
At 31 December 2023 ~ RZZZ=F
T-A=+-H 5,883 3,327 5,726 2,241 17,177
Charge for the year FARX = 61 176 459 696
Write-off iz = - - (960) (960)
Disposals HE - - (23) - (23)
Disposal of subsidiaries  {H & i B2 ]
(note 41) (Hit41) - (28) (126) - (154)
At 31 December 2024 ~RZZTZM4
+-RA=+-H 5,883 3,360 5,753 1,740 16,736
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2024 ~ H=Z=NF
TZA=t+-H - 95 189 598 882
At 31 December 2023  RA=Z ==
“A=1+—H = 165 285 1,037 1,487
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BE—
20.

A1F

B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term not
exceeding three years
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Computer equipment and  33%

20. IR K H ()
EMERREER HUERERAT
FRHHNE -

HEMEERE TiRE =4 2 18 8

\\Yf

R BERE 20%
R A
BIERERETE  33%

software
Motor vehicles 20% TEHE 20%
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 21. REW=
2024 2023
—ECME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHE T
At fair value BEATHE
At 1 January m—HA—H - =
Acquisition of a subsidiary accounted WHEM B AR ARIMER E
for as asset acquisition (note 40) Wk (B it40) 18,000 -
Fair value change N EEE (3,770) i
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 14,230 -

The above investment property represented a residential

property being leased in Hong Kong.

The Group's investment property is located in Hong Kong
and held under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes, which is measured using
the fair value model and is classified and accounted for

as investment property.

PR EMEE -—BUREELAELE
ZIEEWE -

REEBZREMEMRER  HUKLE
BEFXFEURNESNEEREE
R WARTFEEXFTE THEK
ABRBIREME -
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 21. REYXE (E)

The fair value of the Group's investment property as at
31 December 2024 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out by an independent qualified

professional valuer.

The valuation was arrived at by using market comparable
approach, which reflects recent transaction prices for

similar properties in the similar locations and conditions.

The following table gives information about how the fair
value of the investment property as at 31 December

2024 is determined (in particular, the valuation

REBREMENR _Z_MFE+ A
=T HZAFEDNBEBIAERE
HEEEMETZEHEFTESD -

5 L E T 45 B e B (B B B %
RO R 3 R B E AR 5 8
B -

TERBINEHNABEERENER-F
“HE+ZRA=+—BZAFEZEH
(BRI RAARAZ BERMEEARER)

technigue and inputs used):

Fair value
as at
Fair value 31 December
hierarchy 2024 Valuation technique and key inputs
R=-Z2-MmMF
+t=-A=t+—AH
NTEEER ZAFE MFERTREZZE@HAZE
HK$
BT
Investment property located Level 2 14,230,000 Market comparison approach — by
in Hong Kong reference to recent sale price of
comparable properties on a price
per square feet basis using market
data which is publicly available
URBEBBZREME E28 MHELEE -2 ZALRYE 2 i 8

EE UBFHFRERAER I
HEAARESZTHEE -
B2 -_Z-_WNWFE+_A=+—HBI*F

T AT ESEH ZMIEmEE -

There were no transfers between levels of fair value

hierarchy during year ended 31 December 2024.

R-ZE-_WNME+_-_A=+—8 ' A&H
ZIREMEDERTEMERK -

At 31 December 2024, the Group's investment property

was pledged to other borrowing.
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HE-Z-_NWF+-A=+—HIFE

22. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 22. FERE
2024 2023
—B-NFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
The Stock Exchange B 22 PAT
— Compensation fund deposit —-BEEEES 200 200
— Fidelity fund deposit —ERESE® 200 200
HKSCC BEREE
— Guarantee fund deposit —-REESES 299 200
— Admission fee deposit —RHEBRS 200 200
— Stamp duty deposit —ENfER IR 5 30
China Securities Depository and FRESFELEERR
Clearing Corporation Limited Ra/NC] 688 688

1,592 1,518
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23. LEASES

23. #HE

(i) Right-of-use assets () FAREE
2024 2023
—EC-NE —E=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
Leased properties HEWME 6,897 7,170
Motor vehicles RE 629 -
7,526 7,170

The Group has lease arrangements for its office

premises, staff quarters and motor vehicles. The

lease terms are generally ranged from one to five

years.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year

ended 31 December 2024 amounted to
approximately HK$7,312,000 (2023: HK$5,545,000),

due to new lease of properties and a motor vehicle

(2023: new lease of properties).

AEECHRBSFEYE BEIBS
RABIVHERH - HBAE—RR
_:tﬂﬁz °

ERMERABZHITRN (ZF
—ZEYEZHITEN)  BHE
ZENF+ A=+ —BLFE
ZIERAEEERNE /417,312,000
BT (ZF = =% 15,545,000/

JT) °
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23. LEASES (continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

23. HE (&)

(2023: one) in respect of renting a property and a
motor vehicle (2023: a property) and recognised
lease liability of approximately HK$7,312,000

(2023: HK$5,545,000).

(i) Lease liabilities (i HEEE

2024 2023
—B-NFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Non-current FERE 3,244 895
Current mB 4,586 6,967
7,830 7,862
2024 2023
“RIWE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHT
Within one year —F R 4,586 6,967
After one year but within two years —FREMEA 2,950 -
After two years but within five years MEREBREA 294 895
7,830 7,862

Less: Amount due for settlement w12 A RNELEEZ

within 12 months (shown under FIE (BRI B

current liabilities) aET) (4,586) (6,967)

Amount due for settlement after 12 A& BTS2 HIA
12 months 3,244 895
During the year ended 31 December 2024, two BHE_Z-_NWFE+-_A=+—H1t
new lease agreements had entered by the Group FE - AEBREAYERATE (=

Eo=F YR LMEHEE
WE(ZE_=F:—H) r TER
MEBEAN7,312,0008 T (=

=% :554500087T) °
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23. LEASES (continued)

(iii) Amounts due recognised in profit or loss

23. HE (&)

(iii) REHRER 2 BN KRE

2024 2023
—EoNE T =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Depreciation expense on right-of-use FRAEEE 2 T ER X
assets
— Office premises - RFEME 4114 4,283
— Staff quarters —BImE/E 2,701 2,867
— Motor vehicle — A 141 -
Expense relating to short-term leases R EHEEHE 2 M X 557 809
Interest expense on lease liabilities HERBEZMERXZ
(note 11) (Hati1) 299 489
Others Hih
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the total BHE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HBILF

cash outflow for leases amount to approximately

HK$8,200,000 (2023: HK$8,404,000).

24. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

E -HEMELAZRBASTRENR

8,200,000/ 7T (==& = =4F : 8,404,000

BIL) e

24 RBE QT 2 &

2024 2023

—EBoNE T -=fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Cost of investment in an associate NN D = § DN 360 360
Share of post-acquisition profit and AR EE RN R B2 E

other comprehensive income WA 389 478

749 838
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24. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 24 REgE N T 2 fEm (18)
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the details of the JrAp

Group's associate are as follows:

W
Country of Principal place ~ Class of Proportion of ownership Proportion of
Name of entity Form of entity incorporation  of operation  shares held interests held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
(1511 L1078 AMRYER IREERE  FRERGRN AERAGHERRRLA FrEREERL A IEEH
2024 2023 2024 2023

CE-mNfE  -$--F CZBE-@WE -3--F

Speedy Billion Holdings ~ Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 20% 20% 20% 20%  Operation of catering
Limited business
RESERRAA KL &% &% EER RERRZH
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 25. B AFEIEREEEMZE K
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFZEEHKEE

2024 2023
—EDNE —_T-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET

Unlisted equity securities designated as BT AZATFEINERE

at FVTOCI (note a) HEt2ABRARBRIEZ
FELENRARE S (Bita) 14,312 16,439

Analysed for reporting purpose as HWE BN ITIEIERE
non-current assets ‘E 14,312 16,439

Notes: Hia -

(a) According to the valuation as at 31 December 2024 (@) BEBISEXHMEMNR _T_m4F
performed by an independent professional valuer, the fair +-—A=+—RBETHE FFURE
value of these securities acquired was approximately mE T NFEL14,312,00008 7T (=
HK$14,312,000 (2023: HK$16,439,000), a fair value loss — =% :16,439,0005 ) c REMZ
of approximately HK$2,127,000 (2023: HK$6,153,000) MW AEZERBERIAFLEEIBY
was recognised in other comprehensive income. 2,127,000t (=& = = &

6,153,000/ 7T) °
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

25. BAFEIRRERMEZEY
ARBEZBBEE (&)
B - (&)

(b) The investment in equity instrument is not held for trading. b)) RBRAEBEZEHZELEFIEEE M

Instead, it is held for medium to long-term strategic
purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity
instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising
short-term fluctuations in these investments' fair value in
profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group's

strategy of holding these investments for long-term

purposes and realising their performance potential in the

long run.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Details of financial assets at FVTPL are set out as follows:

ZHMBEE

EZFBEINET

EEPERARBEAZES - Bt - A
RAEBEFCDEERZERERARZRZ
REEERBATEIEREEME
HWRAKRREE RAREERR NE
mEERZERECEHAFERS
BEAREERMBEZERERER
SLERBEZRERREN 2RI

26. EAFEHIRREERRERE

BRAFEIEREBEREEZMBE

2024 2023
—F-NMFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Financial assets mandatorily measured o R A FE R &
at FVTPL EERRRIECHBEE
Convertible bonds AR &5 = 12,700
Listed equity securities listed in Hong Kong R&E®B L2 R AEH 116,436 155,133
116,436 167,833
Analysed for reporting purpose: MEBEBE DN
— Non-current assets —ERBEE = 12,700
— Current assets - RBEE 116,436 155,133
116,436 167,833
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
On 6 January 2022, the Company had acquired a 3-year

2%, unsecured non-redeemable convertible bonds by
Virtual Mind Holding Company Limited (“VM" Stock Code:
1520) issued on 6 January 2022 for a principal amount
of HK$10,000,000 at a consideration of HK$10,000,000
(“VM Convertible Bond") through a placement. The initial
conversion price of the convertible bonds is HK$0.1496
per share. The transaction was completed on 6 January
2022.

The fair value of the VM Convertible Bond was
approximately HK$12,700,000, HK$18,100,000 and
HK$17,600,000 as at 31 December 2023, 31 December
2022 and 6 January 2022 respectively. The fair values
were calculated using Binomial Model by an independent
professional valuer in which the parameters were

summarised as follows:

Share price of the issuer BIIAZKRE
Effective interest rate of the issuer 17 A 2 BB FI=X
Risk free rate 2 B ) R
Expected volatility of the issuer BITAZTRERIE

Dividend yield of the issuer BIAZRE X

26. EAFEHIRREERRER

2B EE (&)
RZEZZF—HXAB ARFRIEHAE
ERGRBIZERBRAF (TR#E] - &
=R 15200 R T —F— AH
BTz =FHunE s EKHBTaED
AR ES (K€% 7%R10,000000%
7T) R {8 &10,000,000/% 7T ([ K 1# AT
BRIRESR]) - AIRRESF 2 S RRE
RER01496E T - AR HER-E
ZZF—ARNAEK -

AEATRBREFR T _=F+=HA
=+—H -ZFZZF+=ZH=+—H
F=ZZ=—F—ARNBZRAFED RN
7%12,700,0007% 7T + 18,100,000/ 7T K
17,600,000 7T - Z A FEHBEIHHE
HEMKA—BEXEXGE  EFHMA
DEPMAOT

31 December 31 December 6 January
2023 2022 2022
—E-=F —E-_F —E-fF
ZH=+—B +ZA=+-—H —HRRH

HK$0.1577% 7T HK$0.2397 7T HK$0.24478 7T

14.20% 14.00% 14.00%
4.07% 4.14% 0.99%
70.09% 85.00% 112.36%
0% 0% 0%
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The effective interest rate of the issuer was determined
with reference to the average of the bond yields of the
comparable companies with similar businesses and credit
rating of the issuer. Risk free rate was determined with
reference to yield of Hong Kong government bonds over
the exercise period near the valuation dates of 31
December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 6 January
2022 respectively. Expected volatility of the issuer was
determined using the historical volatility of the issuer's
share price over the exercise period as at the valuation
dates of 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 6
January 2022 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, VM approved

the conversion of the VM Convertible Bonds.

Subsequent to the reporting period, all VM Convertible
Bond had been converted to VM shares on 17 January
2025.

26. BAFEHIRREERRERE

ZUHBEE (&)
BITAZEBRMNEN2ERETAEY
RIEEFBEEZAALBRRARZTY
BEEEREBTE - ERARBRAETHZ2ER
BRAEFNEEBR _T-_=F1+=
A=+—RA -ZZ==F+=ZA=+—
BR=ZZE=Z=—F—A/NARERIT{EH
NZEREETE - BITAZBBRKIED
ERARBERR T -_=F+_7
=+—H -ZT=—=F+=-A=+—H
FZZEZ—F—-ARNBRITEHRAZE
TAREBELKIBETE

HEz_Z_NMF+-_A=+—HLF
& - REEBUE T AT E 5 2 B -

RI|BERER - AERBITBREESER
TE_RF-ATLtREBRARB K

||

e
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

27. EWBR X

2024 2023
—EBE-MNE 2 —T =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Accounts receivable arising from the EHEEBKBEDEET
ordinary course of business of NTRSGMEEZ
dealing in: JE U BR 3K
Securities transactions (note a): BHERG (Hita) :
Clearing house A E T 1,314 1
Rolling balance cash clients BEERRERF 82,059 48,994
Less: Impairment loss B REEE (14,267) (5,021)
69,106 43,974
Accounts receivable arising from the EEEXRGAREDERMHE
ordinary course of business of provision FRENEMER R M
of corporate finance and other advisory BEEZ RYERK (K 7Eb)
services (note b) 4,181 4,185
Less: Impairment loss B REE R (3,636) (3,646)
545 539
Accounts receivable arising from the EEERGBEREETR
ordinary course of business of money 18 AR 765 35 765 i 28 A 2 FE UK
lending services (note c) BRRK (H7tc) 352,531 337,725
Less: Impairment loss o OREEE (225,331) (171,748)
127,200 165,977
Accounts receivable arising from the EREEBBREREET
ordinary course of business of NTRZEMEEZ
dealing in: JE W BR K -
Securities transactions: BHERXD
Margin clients (note d) RESEP (Hitd) 115,291 142,266
Less: Impairment loss B REE R (56,307) (46,351)
58,984 95,915
Accounts receivable arising from the EEEXRGBREDHEET
ordinary business of asset management BEEEEBEBMESXZ
(note e) JE UL BR 3k (A ite) 5,627 5917
Accounts receivable arising from the EHEXRBARPRET
ordinary course of insurance brokerage REBRELEBMEEZ
(note 1) JE W BR R (T 77 f) 415 225
Accounts receivable arising from the EREEBBRETPEHEE R
ordinary business of sales and marketing MEHBEEMEL 2
of digital assets (note g) FEWBR R (M itg) - 314
Accounts receivable arising from the EHEEBBEREET
ordinary business of property investment MERBEEBMESEZ
(note h) W BR 5K (Kt 7th) 105 -
261,982 312,861
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the gross amount of accounts
receivables arising from contracts with customers
amounted to approximately HK$93,596,000 (2023:
HK$59,636,000).

The Group measures the loss allowance for accounts
receivable other than accounts receivable from rolling
balance cash clients, margin clients and money lending
clients, at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on
these accounts receivable are estimated using a provision
matrix by reference to past default experience of the
debtor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial
position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions

at the reporting date.

27. BWARFR (&)

N-ZE-_ME+-_A=+—H0 BAEF
AINANFEEZBRERBENR
93,596,000 L (=T = = & :
59,936,000/ 7T ) °

AEBRASRBEEFEREREES
Bz B ERIERR (BEREFER
ReEF FRESEFPABERFZE
RN 2 BIRER - ZFRBRERZ
BHEEBRN2EEBABEZEN
B M AT AR B ISR 2 D4 -
RABBHEMES  UIREBABEZ
BEHERZ EBAMKETEZEBEL
BRI A R R ¥ & B B3R 17 M FRORIR
MBERDAZFAEEHAE -
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HE—

;@

— [0 e el e

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes:

(a) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from

the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities
transactions are two trading days after the trade date.
Accounts receivable from clearing house and majority of
accounts receivable from cash clients represent trades
pending settlement arising from the business of dealing in

securities transactions.

In respect of the accounts receivable arising from dealing
in securities, except for those amounts due from margin
clients, the aging analysis based on the trade date is as
follows:

27. B RN (&)

(@)

CHEEBRAETRETEERAFR
SMEEZBRERZEE? Bﬁg

FHERERS B - BREHERERER
RAR#D ERYRE P RHEEET
BEBFRGEBMELEZ FHEERS -

HEEZAFMES 2 BUKER (BKRR
BEEPERAGRIN 2REDHT RE
BERMGE)NT

2024 2023

—E-mEF —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TET

Within 30 days 30R A 992 7,665
31 - 90 days 31290H 6,034 11,524
Over 90 days @90 H 62,080 24,785
69,106 43,974

During the year, the accounts receivable for rolling balance ERN BHEEGBEESEP 2EKEXR

cash clients, of approximately HK$82,059,000 (2023:
HK$48,994,000) were secured by the clients’ pledged
listed securities which carried a fair value of approximately
HK$169,164,000 (2023: HK$137,470,000).

Accounts receivable for rolling balance cash clients of
approximately HK$42,734,000 (2023: HK$5,306,000),
which are not fully secured by the respective clients’ listed
securities, are considered impaired. Total impairment of
HK$11,066,000 (2023: HK$3,392,000) was made by the
management after taking into account subsequent
additional cash and securities collateral. Such accounts
receivable due from cash clients were assessed to be
credit impaired and classified as stage 3 during the year as
it became default to repay the outstanding balance for a
period of time.

A8 482,059,000 L (ZE == F :
48,994,0008 L) A2 FEY
169,164,000 L (Z T = =% :
137,470,000 7T) v BEF 2 EE# L
MREHFIEEA -

BB 42,734,000 L (ZE=Z=F :
5,306,0008 L) B ZFEHRE R
)EZFEHWE AW HmEABBEER 2 ET

BHEEZHEER YERELAEE

Aﬁﬂﬁo“ﬁ!‘ﬁ“‘ﬁ&ﬁféﬂﬂl | Z BN
RehBrEMa  AEERKED

11,066,000 L (=& = = & :
3,392,000 ) 2 2 BRE % EE
WEGHEBRSEFZERERRAHE
AEEEHBEHER —BRER HEH
FTEBHEEEERBEYCREARNDE
REIPEER



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRERA T

Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—_Z-_NE+-A=+—RIEE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

27. BWARFR (&)

(a) Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts

receivables from rolling balance cash clients as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 by the Group's internal credit

rating and year end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Hiet - (&)

(@ BASEABEEFRARFRDBY

RZE-_WEER-_ZT_=F+=-A4
=t HEREGEGESCRFPZE
WEERZREBEINOT

HE_R_NME+-A=1+-HLEHFE

Lifetime

ECL not  Lifetime ECL

12-months credit- credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating RBEETR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

2ME 2{E

FERAEY FERAED

tT=/A FEEB- FEBE-

BHEERE YEGERE 2fEERA
(1R (52M &) (B3RER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTERT THET TET
Performing RYF 410 - - 410
Doubtful B = 38,915 = 38,915
Default EQ - - 42,734 42,734
410 38,915 42,734 82,059
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

27.

(a) Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts

receivables from rolling balance cash clients as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 by the Group's internal credit

rating and year end classification: (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

FE W B =% ()
Wit - (&)

@ BRASEERABEEIEARFERIEH
RZTE-_WER-_ZT_=F+-A4
=t HEREGEGESRFPZE
WERZREBEINOT « (B)
HE-_Z-_=F+-A=1+—HLFE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating ME S BT (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
AR g
17 4 B3 78 FEBED
+=fA EEBE- EEBE-
HHEEEE YEEERE BEERE
(F1RBR) (F2[EE&) (F3MREER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Performing RIF 11,920 - - 11,920
Doubtful & - 31,768 - 31,768
Default ER = - 5,306 5,306
11,920 31,768 5,306 48,994
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27. EWERFK (&)

Notes: (continued)

(a) (continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

accounts receivable from cash clients are as follows:

Hiet - (&)

(a) (&)

R EFESRRAESTF ZRBBRERZ
REBBRREBEESOT

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
(@ @
FERES FEHNES
+=@A EEEBEBR- EEBE-
BHEEEE UEEERE EEERE
(1R ER) (SE2M8 &%) (3R ER) #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAL FAT
ECL allowances as at RW-_E-_=%—HF—B2
1 January 2023 EHEEBRELER = - - -
Impairment loss recognised ~ FR#ER 2 MERE
for the year - 1,629 3,392 5,021
31 December 2023 RZF-=F
+=-A=+—H - 1,629 3,392 5,021
Impairment loss recognised  F AR ZHEEE
for the year - 1,572 7,674 9,246
31 December 2024 R-E-ME
+=-A=+-A8 - 3,201 11,066 14,267
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HE-_Z-_WFE+-A=1+—HILFE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from

27. EWARR ()
it ()

provision of corporate finance and other advisory services

are normally due immediately from date of billing but the

Group may grant a credit period of 30 days on average to

its clients. The aging analysis of these receivables, net of

impairment loss based on the invoice date is as follows:

EZRUWRR 2 EE

(b) HEREHDERE &E MR RS mE
H—-RBE%HER

HENEINS BEAKEATATER

FPEH30B2EEH -

% % R IR

(B RERR) 2RO RERA

BFrE)aE ¢

2024 2023

—E-WmF —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Within 30 days 30BN 129 131
31 — 90 days 31Z290H 28 159
Over 90 days #BiB90H 388 249
545 539

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

accounts receivable from the provision of corporate finance

FRRRHEDERE X H iR RS
% B A 2 B WAR K2R (B B 1R B

and other advisory services are as follows: HEEIOT -
2024 2023
—E-WmF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
As at 1 January n—HA—H 3,646 2,945
Impairment losses reversed on B AR B B 2 R E R 1R
trade receivables (505) (2,068)
Impairment losses recognised on BERE W AR RIER 2 RUEE B
trade receivables 495 2,769
As at 31 December KR+ZA=+—H 3,636 3,646
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BHE—

E_MEF_A=+—BLFE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) As at 31 December 2024, accounts receivable arising from

money lending services bear fixed-rate interest of 0.667%
to 1.5% per month or 8% to 18% per annum (2023:
0.667% to 1.5% per month or 8% to 18% per annum).
The accounts receivable had remaining contractual maturity
date falling within one year as at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2024, accounts receivable with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$82 million
(2023: HK$119 million) were secured by the client’s listed

securities and client's properties.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts
receivables from money lending as at 31 December 2024
and 2023 by the Group's internal credit rating and year

end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

27. BEW AR (&)
i (&)

©

RZFT-_NME+=_A=+—8" AR
&5 AR 75 M B 4 2 R BR S/ IZ & F0.667
EEISERTFIERISE(ZTE==
F: 3 H06TEZRISERTFIESR
18[E) 2 EE M EFE - REHEH
R ZEEBERZFARENFHA
PR—F - RZT_WFF+_A=+—
H - BRE %8 4982,000,0005 L (=&
— =4 : 119,000,000/ JT) < & U B&
RUEP EMHEFERBPYE R

BRASBENSEETRRFERS B
EAMEEBmMEEZEBRERR =
—HERZZE_=F+ZA=+—H
ZEREBRESTMT :

BE-_Z-_NME+-A=+—HLEE

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating AEETR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
EZME E{E
FERAED FERAED
+=fEA FEBR- FEBR-
BHEEEE YEFERE EfEERE
(B1BE) (S2/E) (B3RER) #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT THERT TET
Performing REF - - - -
Doubtful 537 - 203,569 - 203,569
Default EN - - 148,962 148,962
- 203,569 148,962 352,531
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27. BWERR (&)
Notes: (continued) i - (&)
(0) (continued) (o (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_T_=F+_R=+—HILFE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired

Internal credit rating ME S BT (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
E{E g

FESRTRE FERES
+Z@A EEBRE- EEBE-
RYEEFRE YTEEERE BEERE

(B1RE) (B0 8) Ex1-129) ey

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT FHT FHT

Performing RIF 11,297 - - 11,297
Doubtful EiE - 247,958 - 247,958
Default EH - - 78,470 78,470

11,297 247,958 78,470 337,725
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(c) (continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

27. BWARFR (&)

Hiet - (&)

() (&)

FRAEARBEEBMELEZBKRERZ

accounts receivable from money lending business are as BEBEREEEZSHMOT
follows:
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
EME EZ{E
+=fEA FEBR- FEBR-
BFHEERE YESEHE EfEERE
(F1BE) (52/ ) (B3RER) #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER TERT FTExT THER
At 31 December 2023 and N =F
1 January 2024 +ZA=+—HkK
—ZZNE—HA—H 106 93,172 78,470 171,748
Transfer to lifetime ECL BABEAFEREREER
credit — impaired EE-EEERNE (106) (43,531) 43,637 =
Impairment loss reversed FENERB 2 REEBE
during the year - (1,618) - (1,618)
Impairment loss recognised ~ FR#ER 2 MERE
during the year - 28,346 26,855 55,201
At 31 December 2024 R-B-OF
+=ZHB=+—H = 76,369 148,962 225,331
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

27. BWRR (&)

K (&)

(c) (continued) (o (&)
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
(R g
7 & B TR T & B8 5
+=fA EEBE- EEEE-
HHEEEE TEGERE BEEERE
(B1EER) (20 E) (F3EE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHT FHAT
At 31 December 2022 and RZE-—F
1 January 2023 TZR=+—HBk
—Z-=%#—H—H 504 21,715 56,143 78,362
Transfer to lifetime ECL EABRAFERESHEE
not credit — impaired BRE-VEEFERE (504) 504 = -
Transfer to lifetime ECL EABRAFERESHEE
credit — impaired EBE-BEERE = (4,347) 4,347 -
Impairment loss reversed FREEZRERBE
during the year - (145) - (145)
Impairment loss recognised & N#ER 2R ERE
during the year 106 75,445 17,980 93,531
At 31 December 2023 WZZZ=%F
+-—A=+—H 106 93,172 78,470 171,748




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED SEEZRER QT 255
Annual Report 2024 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—HLFE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

27. B RN (&)
M (%)

(d) The accounts receivable from margin clients of (d) A#X115291,0008 T (ZT=_=4F:

approximately HK$115,291,000 (2023: HK$142,266,000)
were secured by the clients’ pledged listed securities which
carried a fair value of approximately HK$91,141,000
(2023: HK$190,095,000).

Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for
calculating margin values. Additional funds or collateral are
required if the amount of accounts receivable from margin
clients outstanding exceeds the eligible margin value of the
securities deposited. The collateral held can be re-pledged
up to 140% of the accounts receivable from margin clients
amounts and the corresponding collateral held can be sold
at the Group's discretion to settle any outstanding amounts
owed by the margin clients. Accounts receivable from
margin clients are repayable on demand and bear interest

at commercial rates.

Accounts receivable for margin clients of approximately
HK$69,099,000 (2023: HK$62,374,000), which are not
fully secured by the respective clients’ listed securities, are
considered impaired. Total impairment of HK$56,307,000
(2023: HK$46,151,000) was made by the management
after taking into account subsequent additional cash and
securities collateral. Such accounts receivable due from
margin clients were assessed to be credit impaired and
classified as stage 3 during the year as it became default

to repay the outstanding balance for a period of time.

142,266,000 7T) EWRFE2E P 2
JE W BR SR T3 LA A SE{E #)91,141,0007%
JL(ZZ = =4 : 190,095,000/ L) &
BEHEMA ETESERR o

BEFUREBERES L RUFTER
EeEE -HEAFREESEPZAE
ERRECRBBNEFESFZIAER
RESEE WARHBIES XK
HmeAHEZENRABEN 28
BRREEBKRRESETFP ZEBRERZ
140% - M P #5A 2 48 B8 K 3 dn 75 AT i
AEBRBATHENTERESR
PR ZEMARERERE BRRZ
EEPZEKERRANEREEEY
HEENEGE -

A ##169,099,000 T (Z T == :
62,374,000/ 7T) EWIRBEE P 2 &
WERR W EARER P 2 ETEFIE
2HEF  WEREHREERE &
BEGHREERI 28I R RF
FHEM @ - KRR IE 56,307,000
B (ZTZ =% : 46,151,000 T)
ZEHEBE ZERBRREEREFPZ
BWEFREEREBEERDIHER — K
KM MEwTEREBREEREL
ERFRDEREIMBER
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HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=+—HBItFE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27. EWEBR (&)

Notes: (continued) i - (&)

(d) (continued) (d) (#&)
No aging analysis is disclosed in the opinion of directors of ARABEERR ENRELERR
the Company as aging analysis is not meaningful in view of BEBZRENE RESWMLER
the revolving nature of the business of margin loan - WEIL W |IRBERE DN -
financing.
Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts RAEBNLEETRRFRDEY
receivables from margin clients as at 31 December 2024 R_TZ_MNFR_ZF-_=ZF+2ZA
and 2023 by the Group's internal credit rating and year —t+—HEKRBESEFP ZEBER
end classification: ZERHAES AT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-_NF+-A=+—HLEFE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired

Internal credit rating RBEETR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
EME EME

BREBEM FEBES
t=@A FEER- FEER-
RAGFEFE YEFEHE BREERE

(B1RR) (20 8) (B3 R) Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FTET FTET FER

Performing REF 866 - - 866
Doubtful (3 - 45,326 - 45,326
Default EH - - 69,099 69,099

866 45,326 69,099 115,291
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HE_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—HLFE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(d) (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

27. B RN (&)
M (%)

@ (&)

BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HILEE

Lifetime

12-months ECL not Lifetime ECL

ECL credit-impaired  credit-impaired
Internal credit rating NS BT R (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

AR B

15 & ERTa 15 4 27 78 4

+=fA EEBE- EEBE-

HHEEEE YEEERE BEERE
(F1RER) (F2/E&) (F3M0EER) 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Performing RIF 30,643 - - 30,643
Doubtful E:373 - 49,249 - 49,249
Default ER = - 62,374 62,374
30,643 49,249 62,374 142,266

2P
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BE_ZT_MNF+_A=+—HILFE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27. EWEBR (&)
Notes: (continued) i - (&)
(d) (continued) (d) (#&)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on ERRBE TP 2 KRR Z M EE
accounts receivable from margin clients are as follows: EREEHNT

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
2ME ZME

FREAEY FREBES
t=@A FEER- FEER-
RHFEFE YARGEHE EEERE

(F1RE) (20 &) (B3 RR) Mzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FTHT FAT
ECL allowances as at RZTZ=F—A—HZ
1 January 2023 EHEEBELER - 599 7,274 7,873
Transfer to 12-months ECL BANREREREEEE 17 = (a7) -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BAREFEREHREE
credit-impaired BE-BEEERE - (599) 599 -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BAREGFERESE
not credit-impaired BE-TEEE \/)EME - 3,475 (3,475) -
Impairment loss recognised  FNFER 2 B EEE
for the year - - 41,823 41,823
Impairment loss reversed FREEZRERBE
for the year (15) (3,277) (53) (3,345)
31 December 2023 A —
+=ZA=+—H 2 198 46,151 46,351
Transfer to lifetime ECL BABRAFEREHEE
credit-impaired EBE-EEERE () - 2 -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BAREFERESREE
not credit-impaired EBE-TREEFERE = (198) 198 =
Impairment loss recognised ~ F AR ZFHEEE
for the year - - 10,659 10,659
Impairment loss reversed FNERB 2 REERE
for the year - - (703) (703)
31 December 2024 R-Z2-@m%F

+=HA=+—-H - - 56,307 56,307
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e

®

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of asset management are
normally due immediately from date of billing but the
Group may grant a credit period of 30 days on average to
its clients. The aging analysis of these receivables based on

the invoice date is as follows:

27. B RN (&)
M (%)

() HEEXBBIETHETEEEER

BMELAZERKERZEEH KA
HERHRSRIE  BAEENT A
TEEP T 02 EAH - 2SR
WERR 2 R DT (IRBER A MG HE)
W

2024 2023

—E-E —EZ=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T T

Within 30 days 30BN 49 22
31 -90 days 31%290H 94 33
Over 90 days H3E90H 5,484 5,862
5,627 5917

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of insurance brokerage are
normally due immediately from date of billing but the
Group may grant a credit period of 30 days on average to
its clients. The aging analysis of these receivables based on

the invoice date is as follows:

Within 30 days 30HA

®

EREEBBRPEAETRRELE
BMELBUERZEEH KRB
HEAMENRIEY BEAKEAG
TEEFPTH30BE 2 EAH - ZEE
WERRZREAM RBEREAHHE)
W

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
415 225

259



260

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_NWF+-A=+—HIFE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

®

(h)

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of sales and marketing of
digital assets are normally due immediately from date of
billing but the Group may grant a credit period of 30 days
on average to its clients. The aging analysis of these

receivables based on the invoice date is as follows:

Within 30 days 30HA

27. BWERR (&)

K (&)

(g EHEXEBBEPHETEIBEEH
EREREEBMEE 2 BWRKZE
HHR-REHERRRANEDS .
BEAREER G TEEPFH0H 2E
P - 2 FRUBRR Z IRl D (IR %

SHEHE) WT
2024
—EB-MmEF
HK$'000
FTEx

2023
—EZ=F
HK$'000
FHT

314

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of property investments are
normally due immediately from date of billing. The aging

analysis of these receivables based on the invoice date is

as follows:
Within 30 days 308 A
31 — 90 days 31E90H

(h ERREBEETEETHERER
BMELAZERERZEEH KA
TE B MBI B A - % F R WAR
ZHREST (REZAMAE) DT

2024
—EMF
HK$'000
FEx

35
70

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FAT

105
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

28. ANRIE - RE R EMERERR

2024 2023
—B-MFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Deposit on acquisition of a subsidiary TWERB AR 2iZE
(note 37(b)) (note) (B1a237(b)) (K1 7E) - 16,000

Consideration receivable from disposal HEWBRRIMELE Y

of subsidiaries (note 41) R AE (M it41) = 2,198
Others Hth 2,721 4,766
Other receivables oAb W AR X 2,721 22,964
Less: impairment loss R EEE (2,721) -
- 22,964
Prepayments and other deposits BNRIEREMES 2,334 6,399
2,334 29,363
Note: The deposit on acquisition of a subsidiary is refundable, M SRR I D R P 2 R B AR

and therefore the deposit balance is classified as current

assets.

BRE At REERIBR/RE
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HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=+—HBItFE

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. ENFIE - &N EWERER

RECEIVABLES (continued) (&)

Notes: (continued) et - (&)

(a) For other receivables, the Group measures the loss (@) BREMEKRESRTS AKETEH
allowance at an amount equal to 12 — month ECL. The ERT_EAEMCEEERBIEE
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit B AEBEERAPEHUFGEEE
risk has increase significantly since initial recognition. RREE B S mRERELM -

The Group measures the loss allowance for other REBRBEEMBEREERNESR 2
receivables under general approach in HKFRS 9. BRMEREMBBERRG S ERER -

Analysis of the gross carrying amount on other BRAEBEABEETRRFRDEHR

receivables as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 by the TR CNERZFE=FF+ZA=+—

Group's internal credit rating and year end classification: B2 EMEKERR  EmAEs T T :

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-ZE_NE+-A=+—-HLEFE

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

12-months not credit- credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating AP EEFTR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

ZMH 2

FRERAED FRERAED

T=M@A EEBE- EEBE-

FHGEEEE YESERE EEERE
(F1RR) (F2M &) (E3MRER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER TER TER

Performing R1F - - - -

Doubtful 12 B¢ - - - _

Default E 4 = = 2,721 2,721

- - 2,721 2,721
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(&)

28. ANRIE - RE R EMERERR

BE—_E-_=F+-A=+—HBHItEE

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating M= BT R (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
L4 E 4
TFE BT HA 7B EATE
+=@A FEER- GEBER-
HEHEEEE VEEERE EREERE
(F1BER) (F20E) (F3kE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET THET
Performing Rif 22,307 - - 22,307
Doubtful 12 5% - - - -
Default ) = - 657 657
22,307 - 657 22,964
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

28. ANRIE - RE R EMERERR

RECEIVABLES (continued) (£8)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on other FREMEBUERZREBBEESE
receivables are as follows: LU
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
2 2
FEAED FEAED
+=f@A FEEBE- FEEE-
HFHEEFE YEFEERE EEERE
(F1MER) ($2ME &) (E3MER) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FHET
ECL allowances as at RZT—=%—H—H"
1 January 2023, —E-=F+ZA
31 December 2023 =F—HRZZ-mEF
and 1 January 2024 —A—BzEH
EEBRER = = = =
Impairment loss recognised 4 IR R 2 5 1B 5 12
for the year - - 2,721 2,721
At 31 December 2024 ~ R=ZT-MfF
+=A=+—H - - 2,721 2,721

As the value of the pledged asset was much higher than
the gross receivable amount at stage 3, no impairment
was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2023.

HREEREEZBEESNEIFR
ZREERAE BABERBE_F
“=F+ZA=t—HI-FE®ERRE -



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED SEEZRER QT 265
Annual Report 2024 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_ZT-_WF+-_A=+—HLFE

29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. SRITEBR KRB £

Bank balances and cash comprise of cash and short—
term bank deposits held by the Group at market interest
rates ranging from 0.0625% to 4.25% (2023: 0.001%
to 4.270%) per annum with an original maturity of one

month.

In the course of the conduct of the regulated activities of
its ordinary business, VC Brokerage Limited act as
trustees that result in the holding of clients’ monies on
behalf of clients and other institutions. These assets are
not assets of the Group and, therefore, are not included
in its consolidated statement of financial position. As at
31 December 2024, the Group maintained segregated
accounts at other authorised institutions of approximately
HK$94,762,000 (2023: HK$84,256,000) in conjunction
with its securities, as a result of the normal business
transactions, which are not otherwise dealt with in these

consolidated financial statements.

RITEBRRBSBERAEEMBRER
REBMBA—M@A - EWSFFNENT
0.0625FE £4.25FE (ZZ==4 : 0.001
[EE4270F) st B2 MEIRITIEA

EEEXRBARPREXRE B -
EREFHFERAATEZTIA REP
REMBEREEPRIE ZEEEY
FAKEZEE BT AHGEHME
MREARN - R_EBE-_WMEFE+-_F=+—
B ARBERHEEREBRSmNEAM
RAMBRIAZFFZBIRF  ©F
#994,762,0008 L (ZF = = F :
84,256,000/ 7T) - BHAKRFE T ELR
B BHRERPRIE -
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30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES, 30. BERRA - Bt EEREMEN
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES SR EMN RS e
2024 2023
—EoME —E_=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Accounts payable arising from dealing Iiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁizgﬁ
in securities (note a): 2 (Htita) -
Clearing house %Zﬁﬁ 109 493
Cash clients ReERP 1,047 587
Margin clients RBESEP 473 33
1,629 1,113
Accounts payable arising from insurance RETRBELEBMES 2
brokerage (note b) FE AT BR 3R (H7ED) 374 1,022
Accounts payable arising from sales and RETHHEEEHERERE
marketing of digital assets (note c) EEZENER (/Vfufc) - 1,294
2,003 3,429
Margin loan payables FETREE & B & 20,318 20,838
Accrued liabilities and other payables: FEGt BB R H At AT BR K -
Accrued expenses FEET R X 6,337 6,440
Receipt in advance TR IR 35 3,023
Bond redemption payable (note d) & & 25 18 Bl 3R 38 (M7t d) = 6,000
Other payables H fth & BR R 7,220 7,741
13,592 23,204
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H=—F

ZHFEFTZA=T—RILFE

30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES,
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Accounts payable to clearing house represent trades
pending settlement arising from dealing in securities
which are usually due within two trading days after
the trade date.

The accounts payable to cash clients and margin
clients are repayable on demand except where
certain balances represent trade pending settlement
which are usually due within two trading days after
the trade date or deposits received from clients for
their securities dealing activities. Only the excessive
amounts over the required deposits stipulated are

repayable on demand.

No aging analysis on accounts payable arising from
dealing in securities is disclosed in the opinion of
the directors of the Company as the aging analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature

of this business.

The settlement terms of accounts payable arising
from the ordinary course of business of insurance
brokerage are normally due immediately upon
presentation of statements. The aging analysis of
this payable based on the statement dates is as

follows:

Within 30 Days 308 A

30. BNRA - Bt EEREMEM
BRFUAKREMNREEER ()

(a)

(b)

RNGEEMRREEEESFELZ
FRERS  —RNREBAMKRL
MIER 5 H R -

BNRERREES TP ZERAR

ke
|
%
%
il
il
m
&
R
N,
3
=]
b
Nl

BEREM AREFEFEE LY
AEKERZIZERIN - EEZ R
EREZEHER/EARELKERE -

ERWEBZEE ARBESER
RRAETESFEEMES ZEMNER
R Z BR R 0 AT I AL (T RRSMEE -
BARBERBERE DT

EBEEBKBRPRETRBRELD
EBmELEZENERZEEHR
—BREXREREEEE - ZE
fTRR R 2 BR B 5 AT (IR AR B8 B BAGT
B)mT

2024 2023
—EC-NE —ET=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET

374 1,022
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HE-_T-_WF+_A=1+—HILLEE

30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES,
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES
(continued)

©

(d)

The settlement terms of accounts payable arising
from the ordinary course of business of sales and
marketing of digital assets are normally due
immediately from date of transferring the title of the
digital assets. The aging analysis of this payable
based on the entitlement of custody of the digital

products is as follows:

Within 30 Days 308 1A

30. B R

ErEEREMEM

BRFUAREMNGREESER ()

©

7B BB BT RE AR
S TR R T 2 2 A R R 2 45
FHR-BEBBUBEENA R
Z B EDES I8 © BRI AR 2 B
BAT (REEHBER 2 RER
SHE) M

2024 2023
—ENMFE —ET-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT

= 1,294

During the year ended 31 December 2024, certain
proceeds received from issue of CB2 (as defined and
details set out in Note 32) was settled by the bond
redemption payable of HK$6,000,000 (2023: nil).

31. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)

liabilities, after set off certain deferred tax assets against

deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for

financial reporting purposes:

(d)

HE_Z-_NF+-_A=+—H1
FE BOARKREFR2 (EER
HBEHAMES2) KRB Z A& T AT
BRECEBEMNESBERLRE
6,000,000/ 7T (T — =4 : &)
Eft -

3. EEBIR(EE) BE

REHER—ERHER 2 E TRELEHRA

BEHEENRAREL

L R R E T

BELREME(EE) BEIMMT -

2024 2023

—EC-NE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FATT

Deferred tax assets R IBE E = (143)
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEE 690 537
690 394
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31. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued) 31. BZFIE (EE) &8 (&)

The following is the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities PR EIZRELERIE (EE) BEMN
recognised and movements thereon during the current MERKRFERBEFEZEHUWT -

and prior years.

Unrealised
gain on
financial Other
assets held lease  Right-of-use  Convertible  intangible
Taxlosses for trading liabilities assets bonds assets Total
KRE
HHEEL
REEE ARRLE HERE GRAREE THREF HuEKEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL L TiEn Thn TEn TEn

A 1 January 2023 R-E-zE-f-7 - - (1,448) 1,448 97 - 97
Acquisition of a subsidiay ~ MEHER (143) - - - - 537 394
Charge to convertble bond R REHE BN

reverse = = = = 1421 = 1421
(Credit) charge to proft RERE(E8) Nk

or loss (4964) 4864 %5 065)  (1518) - (1518)

At31 December 2023and  R-E=-=%£

1 January 2024 T-A=+-Rk
“Z-pmE-fA-A (5,007) 4864 (1,183) 1,183 = 537 394
Charge to convertble bond R REHE BN
reverse = = = = 175 = 175
Charge (credit) to profi RERENR (B2)
or loss 2290 (2,147) (59) 59 ) - 121

At 31 December 2024 RZE-mE
t=p=t-A 17 2717 (1242) 1242 153 537 690
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31. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued)

At 31 December 2024, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$1,047,095,000 (2023:
HK$968,982,000) available for offset against future
profits. As at 31 December 2024, deferred tax asset and
liability have been recognised in respect of tax losses of
approximately HK$16,464,000 (2023: HK$30,345,000)
and taxable temporary difference of approximately
HK$16,464,000 (2023: HK$29,479,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of approximately HK$1,030,631,000 (2023:
HK$938,637,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The estimated unused tax losses have no
expiry date but are subject to further approval of the

Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department.

At 31 December 2024, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$6,376,000 (2023:
HK$6,720,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.

3. EEBIR(EE) BE (&)

RZE_NME+_A=+—0H  A5H
B lbhEt RB AT IEE1E491,047,095,000
BT (ZF = =4 : 968,982,000/ 7T.)
AR - RZTZF+ =
A=+—HB XAEEHBEEED

16,464,000 L (=& — = F :
30,345,0007% Jv) M & 3R B BG B = B8 4
16,464,000 L (=& — = % :

29,479,000/ 70) ERELEF HE E R
BfE-
BHE_Z_NWF+_RA=+—HILHF
BT ER B THIEERBELD
1,030,631,0008 T (=& = = £ :
938,637,000/8 7T ) M SRR A1t T & EE
2 R s M RR R TROB o ZF 5T
APARBEBFETRERD  BELR
ERBERRITHAE  FRAIBA -

R-Z-—mM&E+=-A=+—H8 ' A4%H
B AT 0BG B = 586,376,000 L (=%
Z =% :6,720,000/ ) - WERZS
AMBRREEERERAEERIEEE &
BT KR & 8215 FE R Bm A Al A 1R
AR EEE -
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 6 November 2020, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“CB1") with zero coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$52,000,000 to six independent third parties.
The convertible bond will mature on the third anniversary
of the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are converted into 260,000,000
conversion shares at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bond and the maturity date at the
bondholder's initial conversion price of HK$0.2 per

conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, CB1 with
principal amounts of HK$45,500,000 were converted into
227,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$10,959,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bonds reserve upon the

conversion of convertible bonds.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, CB1 with
principal amounts of HK$500,000 were converted into
2,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$144,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bonds reserve upon the
conversion of convertible bonds. The remaining CB1 were

matured during the year ended 31 December 2023.

On 26 September 2024, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“CB 2") with 2% coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$14,400,000 to six independent third parties.
The convertible bonds will mature on the second
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bonds.
The convertible bonds are converted into 144,000,000
conversion shares at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder's initial conversion price of HK$0.1 per

conversion share.

32. TR E S

RZZEZZE+—HKAB ' ARRMAN
BN =75 B1TA® # 52,000,000
BLZZEMEERAMKRES ([F]#
BREH1]) - ZOTRREHFFREITA
BRBREFBHEE=BAFIEH - &R
REFAINETARRES BHLEED
HEIETEARERESFHAEAZVLHR
BREESRBERRHO2ETHEBRA
260,000,000/% # A& A% 17 ©

BHE-_ZT-ZTF+-_A=1+—HBILHF
€+ A& %845,500,0007%8 7T 2 Al A% &
H1RERB/BRBRMo2B T HEA
227,500,0000% A& A 7] & i@ A% o H R A]
BRES % ATRRESFEERRLD
10,959,000/ 7T 2 # 58 (F B B 15 %
2) -

HE_ZTZ_=F+-_A=+—HBL*HF
€ 7N & $8500,000/% 7T 2 Al IR & &5
1REBRBRERHO2EBE T LB R
2,500,00008 " A~ 7] & @B AR o H Al i
RESHZ AABRREFFEHERRAD
144,000 T 2 KRB (B MBEHE) -
BT zABRREF EREBEE=_S==
F+—A=+—RHLFEIH-

RZZE-_MERA=Z+/X8 KRAFME
NEBEBILE=ZFBITRASBE
14,400,000/ 7T Z 2%Z | & =& A #2 %
&5 ([ARBES2]) - Z A BRRES
R BITAI R ES A BB E A FE
Hi o Z AR EHF AT R AT AT R B 5
HHRZFHHE LA AERIEESEE
AT HRKRETRBRRKH01E T
5,3 5144,000,0008% 3 J& B {5 °
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 32. A RES (F)

AR ES I R RRER2EBERD
N HE s R B BF o A X - BB (BN 2 &P
DZBEE)FARRAER ARIEESR
TZAmRESFHER -

The CB 1 and CB 2 comprise a liability component and
equity conversion component. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity component, is
included in the convertible bonds reserve under equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

The movement of liability component of the convertible AHRBREFEESS 2 EESHWT :

bonds is as follows:

Issued by the Company
HAD BT
CB1 issued on  CB2 issued on

6 November 26 September

2021 2024
R-B--% R-E-NF
+—AXH AAZ=t7A
BfT2Z BTz
AR ES ABRES2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Liability component at 1 January 2023 R-ZE_=F—-HF—HZ
BE#HD 5912 -
Effective interest expenses (note 11) ERF BRI (Aat11) 588 =
Conversion into new ordinary shares HR AL AR
(note 35) (H1:35) (500) -
Transfer to other payables B\ H ) B A BR K (6,000) -
Liability component at 31 December 2023 RZTEZ=F+=ZA=+—HxK
and 1 January 2024 —EZWFE—-A—B2
BEHD -
Liability component on initial recognition NFHERF 2 BEBD - 13,340
Effective interest expenses (note 11) EMRF BRI (A1) = 213
Interest payable A5 7] 20 g (77)
Liability component at RZB-_MF+A=+—HZ
1 December 2024 BEHS - 13,476
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 32. R E S (&)
The convertible bonds issued at their issue dates KA 1T B Bi 81T 2 AT R R (B 5 O AR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BMBERRRERMT

position are as follows:

Issued by the Company
RAREHT

CB1 issued on  CB2 issued on
6 November 26 September
2021 2024
R-BZ-—-% R-F-NF
+—AAXH AAZ=t7A
BIT2Z BT
ARRES ABRES2

Maturity date g 6 November 26 September
2023 2026
—E-=F TR

+—AXE AAZ+RHE

Remaining principal not yet converted RZBE-_MF+-HA=+—H HK$14,400,000
as at 31 December 2024 WMARBRZBTAS — 14,400,000 7T
Remaining principal not yet converted RZZE-_=F+=-A=+—H

as at 31 December 2023 WMARBZHBTRE = =
Conversion price BRE HK$0.2 per share HK$0.1 per share
BR02ET BRO.ETT

Analysis as: DT
2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET

Non-current liability EREBBE 13,476 -




274

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_ZT_MNF+_A=+—HILFE

33. OTHER BORROWING 33. Hftb AR
2024 2023
ZEBE-NFE 2 _—T_=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
Other borrowing, secured HAp a3 (FHE ) 9,000 -
Carrying amount of the above borrowing is MERZEEERAKAT

repayable (note) — More than two years, ,Hﬂ PRIEE (M) —#8iR

but not exceeding five years M BETEBBASF 9,000 -
Carrying amount of other borrowing thatis ~ HA R ZEEEEZ AR

not repayable within one year from the REHRE—FRNEER -

end of the reporting date but: 8 :

— Contain a repayment on demand clause —al B IR ERE R KK 9,000 -
Amount shown under current liabilities FIIMARBREET IR 9,000 -
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayable Bat - BB BEIRE EMEBEEAE

dates set out in loan agreement. Rz BEEE
As at 31 December 2024, the other borrowing amounted RZZB_NME+_A=+—H HffE
of HK$9 million (31 December 2023: nil) is secured by 9,000,000 T (ZE==F+=A
an investment property locates in Hong Kong held by the =St—H B)UREEFACURE
Group. The borrowing carries interest rate at a fixed rate BZREMEEER - BIRE T FF|
139% per annum (31 December 2023: nil) and is R1IZEF B (ZE=Z=F+=A=+—
repayable at maturity date on 3 June 2027. H:®) WARIHRA-_Z_LFX

A=HEEZ-
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34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 34.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

BE—

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

METHELE2REHK

TR AKEREZHELEZREE
BHF ERRSLIRSES  -BE
ABELCAEREAHMZASREN
AXRBRERERNAKREGARERER
ROBEARERDELZREREZR

activities. £
Interest
payable
from bank
overdraft
Convertible and other Lease Other
bonds borrowing liabilities borrowing
BITEXR
HtifEF2
TRRES R HE HESE HiER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT FHT FHT
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE--—#+-F=+—H 5912 = 9,423 =
Financing cash outflows BRERETH = (34) (7,595) =
Non-cash changes HHEE
New lease arrangement HHERH - - 5,545 =
Interest expenses accrued EEFIEHY 588 34 489 -
Conversion to share capital & AR A (500) - - -
Transfer to other payables BAEMENER (6,000) = - -
At 31 December 2023 —=f&t+t-A=1-H - = 7,862 -
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=%+-A=+—H - - 7,862 -
Financing cash inflows HERERA(RL)
(outflows) 14,400 (588) (7,643) 9,000
Non-cash change HH2EE)
New lease arrangement HHERH - - 7312 -
Recognition of equity HRARRER 2 RAEH
component of convertible
bond (1,060) - - -
Interest expenses accrued s FIERY 213 588 299 -
Conversion to share capital ~ B# AR A = = = =
Interest payable FERTHE (77 - - -
Transfer to other payables BAEMENER = = = =
At 31 December 2024 R-E-MFE+-A=1—H 13,476 - 7,830 9,000
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35. SHARE CAPITAL

35. A

Number of

ordinary shares

Share capital

EBERYE B 2%
‘000 HK$'000
T FHT
At 1 January 2023 WZZE-_=%—HF—H 2,078,602 1,760,344
Issue of shares upon placing of B B & AR 1 T 31T AR D
shares (note a) (Hita) 300,000 36,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue of ~ HEEMBEITRRMTELZ
shares by placement (note a) RGEA (B ita) = 3)
Issue of shares upon conversion of FEm Rk ERmE RN
convertible bonds (note c) (Hitc) 2,500 644
Issue of shares upon of acquisition of VC ~ EWHBERBEREEEEAR
International Asset Management Limited 2 & 217D (#7:2b)
(note b) (note 40) (Ktit40) 92,421 13,863
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 RZBEZ=F+ZHA=+—8"
and 31 December 2024 —EWHF-A-HRK
T MN¥+-A=+—H 2,473,523 1,810,848
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@

()

With reference to the placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 21 February 2023, all the conditions precedent set
out in the Placing Agreement had been satisfied or fulfilled
and the completion took place on 14 March 2023. A total
of 300,000,000 placing shares were successfully placed to
not less than six places at the placing price of HK$0.12 per
placing share. The gross proceeds from the placing were
HK$36.0 million. The transaction cost amounted to
approximately HK$3,000.

With reference to the sale and purchase agreement (the
“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 25 November 2022, the
Company allotted and issued 92,421,442 consideration
shares to the vendor for the settlement of the
consideration in the amount of HK$15 million at the issue
price of HK$0.1623 per consideration share. The fair value
of the consideration shares at acquisition date was

approximately HK$13.9 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain
portions of CB1 were converted into 2,500,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.2
per ordinary shares. As a result of the conversion, share
capital has been increased by approximately HK$644,000
and convertible bonds reserve has been decreased by
approximately HK$144,000. The new shares rank pari

passu with the existing shares in all respects.

35. A (48)
M -

(@

(b)

K2EXRXRABHAT_=F_"A
Z+—RZAMERE 2B E B ([h
EmEl)  REBREAAZME LA
GHEHEEXR MEEFHEER-Z
ZT=F=ZA+MHAREK & #
300,000,0004% Fic & A& 17 B T 1= i & (B
BRESEHRHNI2BETRHRETFTALRN
NEERRA BBEFHZAMBFEREBEL
%8 /36,000,000 7T - K S A4 A
3,000/ 7T ©

KB2ERRABBRAR-_ZT__F+—
A+ HEBZ A RBEZEE RS
(TBEEHZE]D  ARARKRETESR
RERHO0.1623F T M & 7 A 8 K& %
1792,421,442 R REMRD - LAFERRE
% ¥815,000,000/8 7T © B 7 AU EE
B2z A F{E 4 A13,900,0007 7T °

BE-T-_=F+=-A=+—HIEF
B ABRREFIZETHORBRRKRE
B AR0.278 T E /52,500,000
WA A AL BAR o R BT - IRA
B 38 hn#)644,0007% . i B &% 42 (7 & Al
B A #7144,0007 7T  FTARMHD & T
HHIRE RN ZHRFHA
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36.

Z_MFE+_A=+—HIFE
SHARE OPTIONS
Share option scheme

The Company offered the share option scheme under
which share options are granted to the directors,
employees and other eligible persons of the Group to
subscribe for shares of the Company in recognising their
contributions and in retaining employees who will

continue to make valuable contribution to the Group.

Pursuant to an extraordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
14 June 2018, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2018 Share Option Scheme").

On 27 July 2020, directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible persons were granted share options to
subscribe for 89,472,000 underlying shares under the
2018 Share Option Scheme. These share options were
immediately vested on the grant date and have duration
of 3 years from the date of grant i.e. from 27 July 2020
to 26 July 2023. Any share options granted shall
normally lapse upon the expiration of 3 months after the
relevant grantee ceases to be an employee of the Group.
The Board has the discretion to amend the terms of the
2018 Share Option Scheme.

On 31 January 2023, employees of the Group were
granted share options to subscribe for 170,100,000
underlying shares under the New Share Option Scheme.
These share options were vested on 31 January 2024
and have duration of 4 years from the date of grant i.e.
from 31 January 2023 to 30 January 2027.

On 31 May 2023, by passing an ordinary resolution at
the annual general meeting, the Company adopted
another share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) and terminated the 2018 Share Option

Scheme.

36. BIRE

fB IR RSB

ARAFREEBRESE - BUREAR
BARARND < BRETAEEES -
BEMEMEERAL UBERSF
BERE TSI @B RAEEIEHEESR
BlzEERE-

ARERBER-_ZF—/\FRATEOBE
ﬂZHx%%%‘JK@LLi@Zﬁ%%% - R
M—EHMBRETES (S —-N\F8
PetgstEll) -

R_ZE_ZTFLA=-++tH QAR
BT N\FEREFAINEIEEES
REERAEMEERATREAIRE
89,472,000/ HEBARR 19 2 FE AR AE - %
BREECNREBHAIREE T HK
HHBRHERBR=F (M=%
FtA-_ttHE-_ZT-_=ZF+ A
Zt+RE) FREREZEREELE
EBATERBEAABRATBEALEE
BER=ZEARKR EFGAWBEET
— N\ FBRAE B Z 18K -

RZTE-_=F—HA=+—H ' ARAR
BFERETEAALEEESEREAR
#170,100,0000% #8 B8 A% 0 2 s AR # -
ZEBREER T _NMF—A=+—
Eﬁm%'ﬂzm?ﬁﬁjaﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁm
FEIZEZ=F—A=+—HBZZ=
—tFE—-—A=+H) -

T_=FRAA=1t—H ARQAH
BRBFRELBBEBRER
—Iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂiéﬁiﬂ (I3 B P 8 51
DI =T N\FHEBETE -

|l
NI

B oo %
=5 2
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the number of shares in
respect of which share options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the New Share Option
Scheme was 126,200,000 (2023: 169,400,000),
representing approximately 5.1% (2023: 6.85%) of the
shares of the Company in issue. 43,200,000 (2023:
55,544,000) share options lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2024 due to the staff resignation.

The estimated fair values of the options grant under the
2018 Share Option Scheme on 27 July 2020 is
approximately HK$7,517,000 recognised in the Share
option reserve, which was calculated using the binomial
model with the key inputs into the model as disclosed

below.

The estimated fair values of the options granted under
the New Share Option Scheme on 31 January 2023 is
approximately HK$11,134,000 recognised in the share
option reserve, which was calculated using the binomial
model with the key inputs into the model as disclosed

below.

36.

B (&)

BT E (&)
R_ZE-_mNE+=-A=+—8 " REH
BIREST DR B R RITE 2 BRE
Frw K2 B 8B #126,200,0000% (=
T = =4 :169,400,0008%) ' HERAK
AREIBBETROLSIN(ZE=_=F:
6.85%)  EHIZE-_T_MWE+ A
=+ —HIEFEH43,200,00000 (==
— =% :55,544,00017) ERERE T
BEH T KRR o

BE_ZT-N\FEREFER_Z_F
FLtAZ+tEtAREZEREZ A
FEH /H7,517,0008 70 (R EERRE R E
BR) DERAZEAEXGE - Hh
ZERAZEERABBRTRER -

BEFEREFER =T =_=F—A
ST—HBRECZEREZMAEFATED
11,134,000 7T (PA B8 MR 1 (3 1
R) EAZEAEXNAE  HbzZ
BRXZFZHARBRTREE -

279



280

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-_Z_NFE+_—A

=qra- g 5=

36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

Share price at the date of grant

Exercise price

Risk-free rate
Expected volatility

Exercise multiples

— directors

— employees/other

eligible persons

36. B (&)

RELEEHZRE

1T1EE

£ 3 g ) &

TEHR bR

TEREHR-EF
—fEE& Efb

BERAL

B st 8 (4])
31 January
2023
—E=F

—A=+-8

HK$0.145
0.145%8 7T
HK$0.145
0.145% 7T
3.255%
63%
N/ATiE A

2.2

27 July
2020
—E-EF

+A=Z++H

HK$0.26
0.268 7T
HK$0.26
0.26/8 7T
0.069%

66%

2.47
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 36. B E (F)
Share option scheme (continued) BRERE (E)
Movements in the number of share options granted to RERNBIBENBRETEIR FTARARE
the directors of the Company, employees of the Group E AEEEEREMEERATZMH
and other eligible persons outstanding under the New RITEBRESBE ZEFHMOT

Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_T-_NME+-_A=+—HILEE

Number of share options

BREHE

Exercise  Balance as at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Balance as at

Price 1 January during during during 31 December

Categories of grantees Grant date Per share 2024 the year the year the year 2024

RZE-RE RZE-RE

-B-H tzAz+-8

ARAEH RiLEE BRTHEE &8 REARKE RERTE REREX &8

Employees 31 January 2023 HK$0.145 169,400,000 = = (43,200,000) 126,200,000
R R CH-H=1-R 0.145% T

Total 169,400,000 = = (43,200,000) 126,200,000

)
Exercisable as at 31 December 2024 126,200,000

RoZ-MEF-A=t-HAFAE

Weighted average exercise price HK$0.145 - HKS$0.145 HKS$0.145
NETIER 0.145% 7 0.145% 7 0.145% 7
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

36. B (&)

BRERTE (E)
BE-—_T-_=F+_A=+—BHItEFE

Number of share options
BRESR
Balance as at Granted Exercised lapsed  Balance as at
Exercise Price 1 January during during during 31 December
Categories of grantees Grant date Per share 2023 the year the year the year 2023
e St RZB-=F
—-B-B +ZRA=+-H
ERARR RiLAH BRTEE pdi REARI REMTTE RENKN ki
Directors of the Company 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 10,156,000 - - (10,156,000 -
ARAES ZBCRELACTLH 0267
Substantial shareholder 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 1,228,000 - - (1,228,000) -
ERE ZRoRELA- T4 0267
Employees 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 35,760,000 = = (35,760,000) =
[E8 ZRoRELAC T4 0267
31 January 2023 HK$0.145 = 170,100,000 = (700,000) 169,400,000
“2-CE-A=1-H 0.145% T
Other eligible person 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 7,700,000 - - (7,700,000) -
ERBRAL S 02657
Totel 54844000 170,100,000 - (55544000) 169,400,000
&3t
Exercisable as at 31 December 2023 169,400,000
RZBZZE+-AZ+-BT AR
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.26 HK$0.145 = HK$0.259 HK$0.145
MEFHTEE 0267 0.145% T 0259%TC 0.145% T
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's
commitments contracted but not provided for in respect

of capital contribution are as follows:

(a) In July 2016, VC Brokerage entered into a joint
venture agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”)
with three independent third parties to establish a
joint venture, in which the principal activity is
securities broking in Guangxi, the PRC (the “J

Company”). Pursuant to the Joint Venture

Agreement, VC Brokerage will contribute RMB445

million (equivalent to approximately HK$488 million,

representing 44.5% equity interest of the JV

Company. Meanwhile, the Company entered into a

placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with a

placing agent to procure on a best effort basis, to

not less than six independent parties, to subscribe
for the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$850 million during the placing
period, to finance the investment of the JV

Company.

37. BAREE
RBER  AEEFEEETHER
B2 AENT :
(@ RZZE—RELH EBZBHE=

EBLE=ZRIIN—HEEHE
([6&ME]  URTBEETEEK
VHEEREBFLFELEDHZAE
%ﬁ%(FAM“EﬂD RS E
hE EBESFBEEARK
445,000,000 (M E R L
488,000,000 7t) 156 & A A
M #E 24450 © 5N - AR A R E AR
EREBEITY— MR EHE (KBS
HEl)  AIRBRFTAEEERE
EHERETPRABEBIALTR
% 48 7N & %8 & % 3¥850,000,000/%
TTZARKRES  UREERARZ
BRERBES -
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B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a) (continued)

The Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing
Agreement will become effective upon (i) the
Company having obtained the approval and
authorisation from its shareholders and the relevant
regulatory authorities about the Joint Venture
Agreement and the Placing Agreement; and (ii) VC
Brokerage having obtained the approval and
authorisation from the relevant regulatory authorities
for establishment of the JV Company. On 26
October 2016, the approval and authorisation from
the shareholders of the Company in relation to the
Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing Agreement

had been obtained.

In October 2023, VC Brokerage through another JV
Company partner to make an application to China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC") to
retrieve the application for establishment of the JV
Company (the “Retrieval Application”). With the
name of the JV Company having disappeared from
the relevant public domain of the PRC since
December 2023, the Retrieval Application is
considered to have been approved. VC Brokerage
does not have to pay any money for, and does not
have to bear any liability with respect to, the
Retrieval Application. The Consideration shall be
HK$15,000,000, and the Consideration shall be
settled by the Purchaser’s procuring the Company to
allot and issue the Consideration Shares at the issue
price of HK$0.1623 per Share to the Vendor at the

Completion.

37. EAREIE (F)
(@) (%)

NS Rk SN O FA VNG
HedmEREERRIEAR
ﬁﬁx%&ﬁ%@ﬁbr@ﬁ%ﬁt/ﬁﬁﬁ

D RMNERZBHFEMKILE
NSRS ﬁf%%ﬁﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁt/ﬁ&ﬁﬁé

%i& RZE—RETAZ+R
cEMEARERREDEER

Qﬁﬁi?ﬁt/ﬁ&?ﬁ% e

P

ZE-=F1+A ERFHFEB
A F'EJ/\M"T%#FFPI}( * B2
BEBRZE G ([RHBE]) BFEN
B HEE & A a2 BaE ([E
BRFED BRPEEELRFZ
EWE_T_=Ft+-ARERT
B AE B X H e R OE K - BER B EA
BEWRAELR - ERFHFDAER
ER [B] B8 7 3% < 4 1] 50 18 sk A& 4B 1 ]
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) On 25 November 2022, VC Financial Group Limited

©

("VC Financial”), a directly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Anli Holdings Limited (“Anli
Holdings") entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, to acquire VCIAM (formerly name as
“Anli Asset Management Limited”), a subsidiary of
Anli Holdings at a consideration of HK$15,000,000
by issuing consideration shares amounting to
92,421,442 new shares at issue price of HK$0.1623
per consideration share by the Company to Anli
Holdings. This transaction was approved in the
extraordinary general meeting on 2 March 2023 and
was completed on 3 April 2023 as disclosed in note
40.

On 16 March 2023, Astral Wealth Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an exclusive agreement with two independent
third parties to acquire a property located in Hong
Kong, through acquisition of a Hong Kong private
company that is holding the said property, at a
consideration of HK$18,000,000 of which
HK$16,000,000 was paid as deposit during the year
ended 31 December 2023. The transaction was
completed on 30 April 2024 as disclosed in note
40.

37. EAREE (&)
(b) RZZE—=—F+—HA=+HAB &K

©

AREEZENBAREREME
BEERAFR(ERem]) BLE
ZRBBR AR ([ZEER]) 5T
BEEWm® WEBARAHRETE
FRAERMD0I623B TREE
ZRREITE HEB92,421,44208 F1 AR
MZRERD AR ZRE
15,000,000 7T s & % 2 12 1% 2 ff
BARERBRKEEER (FIEIL
BEEBEEBAERAAI) o H
FA0FTHRE  WERHFR T ==
FZAZHZREERIRE &M
BN T _=FMA=ZB=%K

RZEZ=F=A+/8 ' &A2Q7A
BEE2ENBARELEBR AR H
MEBILE=FRI L BXR Wz A
BRWE—RAEELARRMEE
ZARFAEZ —BUREEZY
% FTw{E /18,000,000 7T -
MREE-—T-_=F+-"A=1+—
H IEF E B X [t H 16,000,000
TTEARS - MMM 40T HE -
RGERZZAFOUA=+THRE
E‘Zo
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BE—
38.

B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure each group
entity will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and
equity attributable to owners of the Company (comprising

issued share capital and reserves).

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
manages its overall capital structure through payment of

dividends and issuance of new shares.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with the SFC for the
business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiaries are
subject to liquid capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the “SF(FR)R") adopted by the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R,
the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain their liquid
capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as determined by
the SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with the SFC on a monthly basis. The
Regulated Subsidiaries have no non-compliance with the
liquid capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R
during the year.

38. EXERERE

AEBEZEREREEERESEHE
BEAAFESALE ANEBREE
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

39.

“MOFEt-A=1+—HLFE

One of the subsidiaries, being a member of Insurance REZE

Authority during the year ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, is required to maintain a minimum net asset value REBEEERZEE
and share capital of HK$500,000 during the year ended
31 December 2024 and HK$300,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2023. There is no non-compliance
of the capital requirements imposed by the Insurance

Authority, except for period from 1 January 2024 to 19

June 2024, during the years ended 31 December 2024 FE

and 2023.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HARER

39. e E

38. EXEBERE (&)
TR NERZTZ=F+=A
:+f5¢$ﬁ'ﬁ¢fﬁﬁ5ﬁ%’ GIK:)
- WIR AR TE AR B
E_T_NMFE+_A=+—HILEE#H#
FF500,0008 T R RNBE T _=F
TZ A=+ — B IEFE#$300,000%
T RBEEEFERRE REBEZT
_EE&_?_:EwL A=+—RH1t
—E-_MFE-A—HBEZ=

:Ei/—\ﬂ-%jLEIHﬁF‘EJ’JI\'
XEERITHACELRRTE °

EEL&%

Categories of financial instruments TREEER
2024 2023
—E-ME T _=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised costs REBHEAATN R MBEE 282,484 354,069
Financial asset at FVTOCI BRAFEIRERERMEE
WAREZIE 2B EE 14,312 16,439
Financial asset at FVTPL BRAFEIIERERRRE
BZMBEE
— Held for trading —R{EEE 116,436 155,133
— Designated at FVTPL —BERBIAFEINERRE
BEREE - 12,700
Financial liabilities BEaE
Amortised cost B HA AR 53,179 32,893
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. SR EE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental
and utility deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets at FVTOCI, accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables, bank balances and cash, accounts payable,
accrued liabilities and other payables, margin loan
payables, other borrowing and convertible bonds. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in their
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

It is the Group's policy for each group entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency
risks. Almost all of the Group's principal businesses are
conducted in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the respective entities of the
Group, with small amounts of bank deposits
denominated in foreign currency. Since the impact of
foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no hedging against
foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis on

currency risk was presented.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate accounts receivable from money
lending business (see note 27). The management
considered that the risk associated within these balances

are insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business such as cash clients
and margin clients (see note 27). Bank balances are
excluded from the interest rate sensitivity analysis as they

are not sensitive to the change in market interest rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. It is the Group's policy to keep accounts
receivable from brokerage and financing business and
short-term bank borrowing at floating rate as to minimise

the cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the
variable-rate accounts receivable from brokerage and

financing business and variable-rate bank borrowings.

39. T MR (&)

MEEBRERZREREEK (&)

TEER ()
FEAR

24 85 B T 4 B PR S 28 BB AR (52
i 3E27) AR 2 A FEFRER - &2
BRARSEBNZ ANERITTEA -

ARENEHERSESRRBEES
(RM27) B2 e MR RRAL
BEREMZ RS RAIRER  FIEHK
R ST I T RRITAE 88 - HE B D
BRI EBE 2 HRETA -

N 5 [ 35 B 3 4R A R R R B R BOR » KX
SEZBR SR RBURELRBEFRBER
e HIRTTE SRR EF LOF B A K5 B
RUAKRESRENERRBERE -

AREEEH 2 M5 EENRRE R A
ARPpEcRBRERE il  AKE
ZHeERENEZRBRIESTRZIERE
Wi a2 b B B R AR S FE IR 1T (3K
ZHEKE -

289



290

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—
39.

B_NET_A=1T - HIEFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding were outstanding for
the whole year. A 10 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2023: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax loss would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$127,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$146,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business and variable-rate bank

borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through the
Group's investment in listed equity securities as at 31
December 2024. If the market price of the listed equity
securities is 10% higher/lower as at 31 December 2024
(2023: 10% higher/lower), the Group's post-tax loss
would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$11,644,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: HK$15,513,000) as a result of the change in fair

value of the listed equity securities.
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“MOFEt-A=1+—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from accounts
receivable, deposits, other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure

to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts and receivables from
margin clients with shortfalls in relation to the business of
VC Brokerage, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate loss allowance
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit

risk is significantly reduced.

39. T MR (&)

MEEBRERZREREEK (&)

EEER
R-Z-mE+=A=+—H BARX
SHFREETEAERARBART
BEAMGRLZBASERR - AE
o PR
B BREE -

AEBZEERBRIZELBRKE
R RE - AMEKERR - 2 EWRT
TFRARIRITHERR ° WEFRBRZRE(E
RAEERYBEEAZRAZEER

B o

RTEEERBRERE AEEERE
BEZKERENMEEEEEEERSE
EERHLEMERERF - ARBARR
BAEEBKRE AR BREZ2EHE AR
ERESEHZAREERRESZEP
R ZBYERK - o REBERE
BERRAESREBRR AT KE S
B ARSI E & B AEH R S
BEG -BUME  ARREETRAA
SEZEERBREANBRE -

291



292

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_NWF+-A=+—HIFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For money lending business of VC Finance Limited ("VC
Finance”) and corporate finance business of VC Capital
Limited (“VC Capital”), both are the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, the Group closely
evaluates the borrowers’ credit rating, financial
background and repayment abilities so as to minimise
the Group's exposure to credit risk. The assessment is
based on a close monitoring and evaluation of the
collectability of individual account and on the
management’s judgement, including the current
creditworthiness of the borrowers, collateral value and the
past collection history of each individual borrower within
the Group. The Group will take necessary action to follow
up the overdue loans and ensure that adequate loss
allowances are made for individual loans. As at
31 December 2024, the Group recognised a loss
allowance of approximately HK$225,331,000 (2023:
HK$171,748,000) for the loans with ECL.

The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 for accounts receivable other than money lending and
margin clients to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL for accounts receivable. The Group determines the
ECL on an individual basis for customer with significant
balances and collectively by using a provision matrix with
reference to past default experience of the accounts
receivable, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
accounts receivable, latest collateral valuation general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

39. TR R (&)

MEEREEREZRERBEK (&)

EEEE (&)
HARAHERENBRRERMBE
RAR(NERIMB]) 2 MEE®KE
BREBRAR (NER®ME]) 2%
MEEBME AREREAEBZE
ERR  AREEYFEERAZEE
R MBERRENRESN - BB
T B 7 18 Bl BR 18 AT Y [l B 8 2 % ) BR
RRFH UREEEZ A (RIEE
FARKZER  SENEBRAZER
mEBEEMEERNAEEERDE) - K
SEEBERBMSETEURESHERK
WREMRENERIEL EHEBERS -
RZE-_WMFEF+=-_A=+—H &~5%5E
EREHEHEEERZERERLD
225,331,000t (Z T = = F :
171,748,000 7T) 2 B B2 o

AEERERER (RERRESEP
BN ERBAMEREERFIRZ
BETE Ut ERBRR 2 BEFE
HEMEEERZEBRER - A&E2
ZRUERBECENL:  EHEE
(BLEBREAZERPME) REABE
TEERETEBREEESE  UHEK
ERBEZRAZ EMm&EOHGHE
BERLEEARARNARRES BHHRTR
BRAMRRERS R ZFEELFEE - 5
EME ARREZTRR/AEBEZEE
2 B K B8 PR MK o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The accounts receivable from margin clients and money
lending services are pledged by listed securities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
accounts receivable at the end of the reporting period,
without taking into account the collateral is disclosed in
note 27. The management considers that the credit risk
arising from the accounts receivable is significantly
mitigated by the listed equity securities held as collateral,
with reference to the market value of the listed equity

securities at 31 December 2024.

Management considered deposits and other receivables
to be low credit risk and thus the impairment provision
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL,
except for deposits and other receivables are considered
that the credit risk is significantly increased or defaulted

will be measure at lifetime ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.

39. T MR (&)

MEEBRERZREREEK (&)

EEEE (&)

FEW IR E & B P R R BUE RF 2 B
BRARDALEMBESEEM - RBEB
R R FRUEAAAZEZZAEER
B (5T K AR dn ) RO E27 3 5R o
EEERR 2ELTRABFR_-F
“HEFZA=t—RHzmE" BYEK
REEZFEERBEERFHEERRZ
ETBRARE M AREEE -

EEERR  RERAEMBEBYRKZE
ERRRE - FibRF AR R ER
BERRT _EARMEEEE KM
Be hEAMEKERKESEERRE
ZMAEELD - BIABREAFTENES
EEBEE -

RBETZEERRER AXSHF
SBEREEFARBE TSEETRZ
RIT ©
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and

supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the

following indicators are incorporated:

« internal credit rating

«  external credit rating

« actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are

expected to cause a significant change to the

borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

« actual or expected significant changes in the

operating results of the borrower

« significant changes in the value of the collateral

supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-

party guarantees or credit enhancements

+  significant increase in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the borrower

+  significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and

changes in the operating results of the borrower

39. TR R (&)

MEEREEREZRERBEK (&)

EEEE (&)
$%§%?ﬂ%ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%gii@2
Al RHERBEHRAREER
BERFEBREREN - RABEER ﬁ
DREZNE AEE/REEHPEE
éﬁéiii’ﬂﬂ BB SRR A RBLED

RIELE - ARBNERAESZE
IE&S‘ZHHIJ HEER - LHEREANAT
B

- AEEEFR

« SNEREERAR

. 2% MBREEREEERHE
5 B ATRIBL - TIEER
BHERABRTEEZLNELS
RE A

- ERARLEXAERIBEHELE
RE1E

© XRREZERREEXIE=TE
REAGCEER2EREEERE L

- ERARMRBRERZERARE
HEEAEL

© ERAZBBERRITAELERX
2 BEAKEERAZMRE
R B RIERAEERIE 2 81t
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. EWERE (E)
Financial risk management objectives and BEEREREZRE RBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEE R (&)
The Group's exposure to credit risk rEEEYH 2 EERR
In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its REEREEERR  AEEEZIRE
credit committee to develop and maintain the Group's %E;EmﬁJET&”EﬁKEIEQH%
credit risk grading to categorise exposures according to EHR-UBRBRORBRERESRARS
their degree of risk of default. The credit rating 8 o 1:1?;%&:%*493%ﬁ%ﬁ&%@%ﬁﬁi\
information is supplied by independent rating agencies (afs) - [AEEXPIFEREMA QR
where available and, if not available, the credit AEVBEREAEBEEER H s
department uses other publicly available financial HIfZ2EFPRAMEBATR AEE
information and the Group’s own trading records to rate SEERHARRBREERZIHF ZEEFT
its major customers and other debtors. The Group's B WHPTEKRZ RS BEELZER
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are SEFEED -

continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved

counterparties.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's current credit risk grading framework

comprises the following categories:

39. TR RE (&)
MEEREEREZRERBEK (&)

EEEE (&)

AEBRITEERRFTRIER

5l

Category Description

5l i s

Performing  For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has
not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired (refer to as
Stage 1)

R4f BARKREKS BV ZERUREERR I EEZEM -
BEEEEREZMBEE (RBIER)

Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are
not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

15 &R BT HRAREERBRBEZEMNESTBEEREL
MBEE(RF2ER)

Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred
(refer to as Stage 3)

£ E-ERZRUVBEERFARRRACREEINTEL
FHEER ZEENRTERGEERE (RFEIHER)

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

€S ERBRETEBABRAREMBRE - Bif A% EKD

IR 2 BWSE

BEAT

Basis for recognising ECL

BREAMEEBREZKE

12-month ECL

T EAEHEEER

Lifetime ECL — not credit

impaired

EEFENRAEEEE -
I = ERE

Lifetime ECL — credit

impaired

EEFENABEEBHE -

BEfEERE

Amount is written off

TRIA T 8
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. S RIEE (F)
Financial risk management objectives and MBEEARER RS REBEK (H)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEE R (&)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's TRIBIEEER TR A SR
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum EEZEEHEENAEEMESERAZ
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. ZERE -
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
ZRIRETZAZT-H BT R=1-H
External Internal 12-month or  Gross carrying Loss  Netcamying  Cross camying Loss  Net carying
creditrating  credit rating  lifetime ECL amount allowance amount amount dlowance amount
T=fEAg
2RFESR . o
MEEFE ABEEFE  HEEEE EadE ERER RERE Ee FE%R FEAE
Rental and utiity deposits N/A Performing 12-month ECL 1537 - 1537 53 = 523
BeRkERe Iyl RiF TZBAEH
FEBR
Accounts receivable N/A N/A Lifetime ECL 93,701 (17,903) 75,798 59,636 (8667) 50,969
(other then money lending ~~ MER AR (Simplifed
and margin clients) approach)
BUER BEGRIEN
(RERRELEFEAM) &Rk
()
Accounts receivable from money N/ Performing 12-month ECL 866 - 866 41940 (108) 41832
lending and margn clients 1R R TZEREHS
ERHERREEEFZ &Rl
B
Accounts receivable from money  N/A Doubtful Lifetime 248,895 (76,369) 172,526 297,07 (93,370) 203,837
lending and margin clients 7 E R R ECL - not
ERHERRESEFZ edit impaired
ERER EEFENES
fEEEE-
EEERA
Accounts receivable from money — N/A Default Lifetime 218,061 (205,269) 12792 140,844 (124621) 16223
lending and margh clients 78 £f ECL - credi
EURERREEEFL impaired
RS BEFENES
[FEER
BEEHE
Deposits and other receivables — N/A Performing 12-month ECL 574 - 574 2,307 - 2307
ReREMERER Iyeli RiF NERES
&Rl
Deposits and other receivables ~ N/A Default Lifetime 21 21m) - 657 = 657
BERABERER AR &4 ECL - credt
impaired
BEGRIEN
EEBE-
BEEHE



298

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_ZT_MNF+_A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. SR EE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets at
FVTPL as disclosed in note 26 represents their respective
maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group holds no

collateral over any of these balances.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2024 and 2023. As at 31 December 2024, the Group
has concentration of credit risk on the accounts
receivable as the aggregate balances with the five largest
clients represent approximately 43% (2023: 45%) of
total accounts receivable. However, the fair values of the
securities collateral held by the Group for these balances
are either in excess to the relevant carrying amounts or
have no overdue amounts as at the end of each
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is closely
monitored. The Group has no other significant

concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows is the source of fund to
finance the operations of the Group. The Group's liquidity
risk management includes diversifying the funding
sources. The Group regularly reviews the major funding
positions to ensure adequate financial resources are

available to meet their respective financial obligations.

MEEREEREZRERBEK (&)

EEEE (&)

B SE26F7 BB A = B 1R 2 FE SR R
EEGREECVBEEZRAERR
HREEESAEY 2 &REERAR - &
5 [H 30 4 B AT A 5% F A RIS A (T A IR

[u[a g

Emﬁﬁé'm_Y_EE&_Y_
F+-—A=+—H0 FEEZEFER
££E¢W§%O%:::E¢+:ﬂ
=t+—H AEEBERKERZERE
ERER - FEAKRKEF 2 @EMRGEIK
AR ANA3% (Z T =4 : 45%) °
AR AEERZSHERFAEZERFE
HFZAFESREERAEIXNSRE
HE YW MmmEARIE - At - ARFEF
RRAEEZEFERREGIRDE
R AEBUVEHMEEEFEERR -

HEEE G
AEELEMAESRBEANBELEZR
EME - AKEBZRDESRERERS
BOHERKRR - AEETFEHBRNEE
EEMN - LERZHMERERR AL
G HBAEEMRS o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. M EE (8&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities with the earliest date on
which the Group are required to settle. The tables include
both principal and interest cash flows. To the extent that
the interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of

the reporting period.

MEEBRERZREREEK (&)

EEEE (&)
TRERAEBETEMBEEZHE
BEFRRFIZFEBEZHBEOHR -
TRBERAGERETHEZKFH
HeMBaEZARRRERERE
TRERASEMNERGRE - EF X
BIBNERZBERT  RBERESHTIMH
S BRI R ARDTAE -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €M R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERBEEREZ2RERBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) EEmLE (&)
Liquidity table (continued) nEBEeR (&)
On demand Total Total
or less than 13 3months undiscounted carrying
1 month months to 1 year 1-5years  cash flows amount
s AER

-@ANR  -E=@A Z@AE-%  -EIf ReREAE  REAR
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TR TE TE7 TEL TEL TR

At 31 December 2024 R-E-BETZB=t-H

Accounts payable ER&R 2,003 - - - 2,003 2,003
Margin lon payables EfRESER 20,318 - - - 20,318 20,318
Other payables At EMER 6,710 1,550 122 = 8,382 8,382
Other borrowing HiER 9,000 - - - 9,000 9,000
Convertible bonds R ES 2% I 193 14611 14,899 13,476

38,055 1,621 315 14611 54,602 53,179
In addition, the Group’s maturity profile of its lease AN REEHSREZIBMERNT

liabilities is as follow:

Weighted ~ On demand Total Total
average interest or less than 3 months undiscounted canying
rate (pa.) Tmonth  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount
RERK RER
g5 E BEd ReiE
(%) -fAMA  -2=fif ZfAE-% ik 4x FEAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn Thr

Lease liabilties HEER 5.59% 571 1,154 3122 3,310 8,223 7,830
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39. T MR (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

Other borrowing with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2024, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these other loan amounted to HK$11,925,000 (2023:
nil). Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the lender will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$11,925,000, with the details as follow:

Less than 1 year to

1 year 2 years

—-FUR -FERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn TiEn

At 31 December 2024 R-E-mE+-A=1-H 1,170 1,170

MEEBRERZREREEK (&)

EEE R (&)

TREBESR(B)
HMWBRERKEEBRRZBREFTA
FABEHB AR 2 [RERKEESK
— AR HEA - RZFZMF
TZA=+—0 ZEHEMERZAKEN
WAS #EA1,9250008 T (=ZF
TEFE)  ERIAEEZFBM
N ARANEZRRERATERIERE
ERARFERZATREERK - RRAE
Z2HE ZERTERBRERBEN
HeHEETERAHEER - BN A&k
MERE ML AR R11,925000%
T AIBIT

Undiscounted Carrying

2-5 years >5years  cash flows amount
AER

MERLE BENE RehE REfE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TRR

9,585 = 11,925 9,000
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 3. SRERE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERBEEREZ2RERBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) EEmLE (&)
Liquidity table (continued) mEBEES R (B)
On demand Total Total
or less than 3 months to  undiscounted carrying
1 month  1-3 months 1year  cash flows amount
REX RER
HEER Az Rene
—EANA —E=fEA —& X REAE

HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThT ThET TAT TAT

At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-A=+—-A

Accounts payable FETHR 3K 3,429 = = 3,429 3,429
Margin loan payables ERREEER 20,838 - - 20,838 20,838
Other payables Hft B 6,863 1,690 73 8,626 8,626
31,130 1,690 73 32,893 32,893
In addition, the Group's maturity profile of its lease N REBREEBEZHHBRNT
liabilities is as follow:

Weighted ~ On demand Total Total
average interest or less than 3 months undiscounted carrying
rate (p.a.) 1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount

RERE AER

IMETHIHE RS Reng
(8%) —fHANR —Z=fif ZHARE-% —F1f k] AL

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T TR TR TR

Lease liabilities HEBR 563 = 2,002 5,166 901 8,069 7,862
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

39.

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of

each reporting period for recurring and non-recurring

measurement, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the

degree to which the fair value is observable in

accordance to the Group's accounting policy. The

directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities

recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

SHERE ()
REARBRRRRAZAFE
o8
TRBINEHRERARLFEFEZS
REBERKCEERFERHETEZD
M HERBRBEAEEEABELZRF
BEzABEREMSIDALIEIR A
NAEZR RIS W MRILE HK
RINRZHGAERMBRE CREE
BEQFEMES -

31 December 2024
—E-_NME+-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14 H24R HEIR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET THET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEIER
ETEZEREEZ
BHREE
Listed equity securities FHRARS 116,436 - - 116,436
Financial assets at FVTOClI A FEINERE
Hi2mEUB AR
BEECHMKEEE
Unlisted equity securities ELETMRAES - - 14,312 14,312
Total BEt 116,436 - 14,312 130,748
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. M EE (&)
Fair value measurement recognised in the REEMBRRRERAZAFRE
consolidated statement of financial position T2 (&)

(continued)

31 December 2023
=R =dEar— B = a-—[§

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF ki FE3R aEt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET TAET TAET

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEIERR

EEBREEZ

MBEE
Convertible bonds Al 2 % (E 5 - - 12,700 12,700
Listed equity securities FHRAFS 155,133 - - 155,133

Financial assets at FVTOCl AR ESIERERE
Hit 2 EIKAR
BECHMKEEE
Unlisted equity securities El T N - - 16,439 16,439

Total 4t 155,133 = 29,139 184,272
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurement recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)
The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair
value measurements of each financial instrument on a

recurring basis are set out below:

39. R ERE (&)
RESUBRRRER 2D FE
=& (8)

ETRERREEUHREEZ AFEMNE
Pt Z (B E 1l Je s ABURSSI A0 T

Relationship of key inputs and

Fair value Fair values as at Significant significant unobservable inputs
Financial instruments hierarchy 31 December Valuation technique and key inputs ~ unobservable inputs to fair value
IERAHBREAFTRE
SHEE AVEER Wr=B=t-B2ATE REANRIZEAEE EXTTRREARE  RARBEAVEZHE
2024 2023
EImE CTo=R
HK$'000 Hk§'000
TEn TEn
Financial assets at FVTPL
RATEIEREBER
B HKER
Convertible bonds Level 3 - 12,700 2024: N/A 2024: N/A The higher the volatlity, the higher of
the fair value of the CBs
2023; Binomial model: 2023 Volatiity of 1520
By reference to the risk free rate (B: 70%
of 4.07% and effective interest
rate of 14%
AR ES 34 “EomE:TER Z3omE NER REEE TARESZATEER
CROCECCEAR 2ZEER SRR 10TARES
HE4 0T R B A% 140 2R 70%
Listed equity securities Level 1 116,436 155,133 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A N/A
LmBaEs 18 ERMAMAEAE FER TER
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BROVESGRREEM
PEUARREZHKER
Unlisted equity securities Level 3 14312 16,439 2024: Market approach 2024: Marketabilty discount  2024: By reference to price-to-book
0f 20.4% value ratio of 0.328
2023; Market approach 2023: Marketabilty discount  2023: By reference to price-to-book
of 205% value ratio of 0.368
FLiRAES 38 EomE: TR “ECRE mEERE  CECRE: 2ETER38ME
7020.4%

TR BETRR) 368
10205%



306

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=+—HBItFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets on recurring basis are as follows:

39. S RE R (&)
REAHBRRERERZATE
5 ()

BEEEEEUEIR AT EAEZH
BEEHK:

Financial assets

Financial assets

at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
BAYE BAVEIE
SIBR R & REAEMG2E
BEREEZ BWAREEZ
MBEE MREE @it
Convertible Unlisted equity
bonds securities Total
TgEkES FLTREES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHT TET
As 1 January 2023 R-E-=%—Hf—H 18,100 22,592 40,692
Fair value loss through profit or loss B RERR 2 A TFEEE (5,400) = (5,400)
Fair value loss through other EHEMGE2ERARER
comprehensive income ATEER - (6,153) (6,153)
As 31 December 2023 and RZBEZ=F+-A=1+—H
1 January 2024 k=F-mE—-A—H 12,700 16,439 29,139
Fair value loss through other EEMEERARERLZ
comprehensive income ATEEE - (2,127) (2,127)
Redeemed during the year FNEE (12,700) - (12,700)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-NFE+-A=+—H - 14,312 14,312
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include

financial assets and financial liabilities that:

« are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position; or

« are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments, irrespective of whether they
are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and HKSCC and brokers, the Group
has a legally enforceable right to set off the money
obligation receivable and payable with HKSCC and
brokers on the same settlement date and the Group

intends to set off on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off the accounts receivable and payable with
brokerage clients that are due to be settled on the same
date and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
brokerage clients that are due to be settled on delivery
versus payment basis, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be settled
on the same date, financial collateral including cash and
securities received by the Group, deposit placed with
HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the statement of financial position since the right of
set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable

following an event of default.

39. T MR (&)

MREERVKEBEIEE
TEREN2HEERNBREBEBRATER
ZHBEEMMBAE

%

AASKERE BRI R NIEH

ﬁg:

- RRERBEBRIEIL AR AT
ZF B AT R AR
R TwmHEEERAEELEE MBS
R RS o

BREAEEREBEE MELEDZH
BRBEREE DS AEEERATHROER
BT 2N HEEEGEERELZ
RMER—E&EERIMHEREEAER
FEEERHEZ BRE R ENEREER

BESN - AR A A EORE B BT 2R
Mo BEELEP CRER— &5 B
IREAEEEBRRFAEEREZIE
Yo Ko FE A BR AR 8

BRRE— BB MEE 2 &R T AR H
Oh - BIERIR SR M B ELE 2 B
ENELEFER LHERA—BEE
ZRE S ENEERE KREEERE
PR AEBERFHBEAR (2
RREREFSF) UREFRREEGEE
MR zBe  —HITITaRgBiRR
TABHFE FIEEDRRERZ
BAMEREOSHRT AIRFIAT -

307



308 VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=+—HBItFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. eRERE (M)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities MEEERMEEERSE (&)
(continued)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-ONE+=A=+—H

Cross amounts  Netamounts  Related amounts not set off
of accounts  of accounts in the consolidated statement
payable receivable of financial position
set off in the in the
Gross  consolidated  consolidated

amounts  statementof  statement of

of accounts financial financial Financial Collateral
receivable position position instruments received  Net amount
RERETE TERGRUBRRER

RRER  REEHE ERZRRANE
EY B#z  HRRAZ
RRAR ENRFEE EURSFE tRRE  ChERe FE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TEL TET TEL TEL TR TR

Accounts receivable arising from the £ B R ¥ KBERREL
ordinary course of business of BEESRSMEEL
dealing in securities transactions ~ EWEER 135,171 (7,081) 128,090 - (120,247) 7,843
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

At 31 December 2023

Accounts receivable arising from the
ordinary course of business of

dealing in securities transactions

(Gross
amounts
of accounts

receivable

KEE\ q&
e
HK$'000
Tin

ERREBRETRES
ERE#RHMELL

B 141,062

Gross amounts
of accounts
payable

set off in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
NCEb
HAKRA
=
ERRHFA%E
HK$'000
TiEn

(1,173)

TRESE (&)
MBEERVMBEEES (F)
R-E_=Ff+-_H=+—H
Netamounts  Related amounts not set off
of accounts ~ in the consolidated statement
receivable of financial position
in the
consolidated
statement of
financial Financial Collateral
position instruments received  Net amount
Rl UERGRUBRRER
HAKRA i A E
ZEW
BiFE £MZE  EWEfAm e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn Thx
139,889 = (136,929) 2,960
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. ©MEE ()
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities MEEERMEEERSE (&)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-ONE+=A=+—H
Gross amounts Related amounts not set off

of accounts  Netamounts in the consolidated statement
receivable  of accounts of financial position
setoffinthe  payable in the
consolidated  consolidated
Gross amounts  statement of  statement of
of accounts financial financial Financial Collateral
payable position position instruments pledged  Net amount
REREE  RERHE  LERGAHBRRRA
VEL LV EL BHZRBHRE
Fef i - ZEf
BAEE EUEIAE B5RR tREE CERERR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER TER TER TER TER TER

Accounts payable arising from the &R $RBRRREELT
ordinary course of business of BERFRSMEEYL
dealing in securities transactions ~ [ERER 96,304 (94,675) 1629 - (1,167) (5,538)
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. TR EE (8)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities MBEERVMBEEES (F)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2023 R-EBE-_=F+=—A=+—H
(ross amounts Related amounts not set off

of accounts ~ Netamounts  in the consolidated statement
receivable  of accounts of financial position
setoffinthe  payable in the
consolidated ~ consolidated
Gross amounts  statement of  statement of
of accounts financial financial Financial Collateral
payable position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
WEREE  RERHE TN BRRER
HAKRA AR gl Fs
fEf iy LIER
FagE  ERRTLE ard tHZE BEREAR 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn iR TiEn TiEn TiEn

Accounts payable arising from the  E AR $RBRRREELT
EERSRAMELEL

dealing in securities transactions ~ FEF{E

ordinary course of business of

St

85,367 (84254) 1,113 L (1,175) (62)
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. W RBFY I 2 A
Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year BE-ZFT-_ME+=-A=+—AL
ended 31 December 2024 FEWBERELQH
Acquisition of Polyton China Limited (“Polyton Weig B rEp B AR LA (B E
China”) FE )
On 30 April 2024, the Group completed the acquisition RZZEZWNENA=+TH  X&EETK
of 100% equity interest in Polyton China from two LAZR & 818,000,000/ 7T [F) /N 4 18 32
independent third parties for a cash consideration of E=ZHWEANEPEZ100%K#
HK$18,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The directors of the ([WEEEE]) - ARAEERAE - WE
Company are of the opinion that the Acquisition did not FIE TR RS B RS B B35
constitute business combination as defined in HKFRS 3, FIAREZRBEEHN At WEBFER
therefore, the Acquisition had been accounted for as ANERAREEWE -

asset acquisition.

Net assets of Polyton China acquired: PR 2 BFB R BHEE ¢
30/4/2024
—T-_NF
mA=+H
HK$'000
FET
Investment property KEMHE 18,000
Amount due to former shareholder assigned to  # % F A5 B 2 F& {1 5 A% 3 78
the Group (19,852)
(1,852)
Add: Amount due from former shareholder o EE T AREE BRI R IE
assigned to the Group 19,852

18,000
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Acquisition of Polyton China Limited (“Polyton
China”) (continued)

Net assets of outflow on acquisition of Polyton China:

40. WEB BT S 2 B (48)
BE-—ZEZ-_MNF+=-A=+—HL
FEWEKE QR (&)

Weig B 7A@ B H R E] ([ & FEH
El]) (%)
B e B | ) A B b 2 R R E

HK$'000

FART

Cash consideration paid BENEERE 18,000
Less: Deposit paid (note 28) W B RS (A7i28) (16,000)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition Ui 2 A 2 B R 2,000

Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year
ended 31 December 2023

Acquisition of VCIAM

On 3 April 2023, the Group acquired the 100% equity
interests in VCIAM (formerly name as “Anli Asset
Management Limited”) from Anli Holdings, an
independent third party. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount
of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
HK$6,308,000. VCIAM is engaged in the provision of
asset management service. VCIAM was acquired so as to
continue the expansion of the Group’'s asset

management service operation.

BE-Z-=f+=-HA=+—-HL
FEWBEWE QA

W B[E & BB B
RZEZ=FWMA=H " AEERBL
E=FREERKEEREAREEER
(MBI ZBEEEERARAA] Z
10000A% 4 - 1t 18 W g B R A W E A
FE-AMBMELEZEHESEA
6,308,000/ T - [ER R EEE EKE
ERHEETERY WEERBEKRE
EERDATRERAASEZEES
BIRIE T -
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

Acquisition of VCIAM (continued)

40. AR K 8 2 7 (&)

BE-F_-_=F+=ZA=t+—H1L
FEWEKE QG (E)

WiEIE B B & E B (&)

Consideration transferred FEEAE
HK$'000
FET
Equity instruments issued BEEITRARE 13,863
Contingent consideration arrangement FAREBELH 335
14,198

As part of the consideration for the acquisition of VCIAM,
92,421,442 ordinary share of the Company with par
value of HK$0.1623 each were issued. The fair value of
the ordinary shares of the Company, determined using
the published price available at the date of the
acquisition, amounted to HK$13,863,000.

The contingent consideration arrangement requires the
Group to pay, in cash, to the former owners of VCIAM,
10.49 (the agreed price-earning multiple) times of the
actual audited net profit after tax of VCIAM as set out in
the audited accounts of VCIAM for the 12 months ended
from the acquisition date, in excess of HK$15,000,000,
up to a maximum undiscounted amount of
HK$25,000,000.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future
payments that the Group could be required to make
under this arrangement is between nil and HK$390,000.
At date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration arrangement of HK$335,000 was estimated
by applying the income approach. The fair value
estimates are based on a discount rate of 13% and
assumed probability-adjusted profit in VCIAM of nil to

HK$335,000. This is a level 3 fair value measurement.

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERRBERBEBREEERE 2B R
B ANQAIETTI2,421, 402K SR EE
0162382 EBKR - ARRIEBEKRZ
AFEREKEBEEBRAMZERTES
13,863,000/ JT °

IARARELTHBRE  AEBEAUREMA
ERBEREEEB2AERBE AR
ERERBREETRLCEZERE A
CERBBREEEE A KERBET
NREAZERKEEZGRBE % FE
21049 (BETREXBE) 2 ¢58 -
N 815,000,000/ T & - AIZEZ T2
RALIR & 58 LR %25,000,0007% 7T °

BRI EZYE  NREBRRAEATE
RZAAEREZBERBESEATE
390,000 7T - R B H - KA RE
Z B2 A F{E335,000/8 7T Ty £ A Uk &5
EAEE o ATEMET T ER 13085 B X
RERBEREETEZBRELMEAR
2 F BT E335,0008 7T © BRE
IMATFETE -
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40.

he year ended 31 December 2024
ZHE+ZA=T—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (continued)
Acquisition of VCIAM (continued)

As of 31 December 2023, there was a fair value loss of
HK$335,000 recognised in the profit or loss and included
in other gains or losses, net for the contingent
consideration, as the assumed probability adjusted profit

in VCIAM was recalculated to nil.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

Analysis of fair value of assets and liabilities over which

control was acquired:

40. WHB K B 2 7 (/)

BE-—E-_=f+=-A=+—AHAL
FEWEKE QR (&)
WIBIE & BIfR & E B ()
HE-_Z-_=%+-_F=+—8 #R
EREREAETE BELCHEARSR
FEEFTERAT MR BEEPE
R A F (A E18335,000%8 T 5+ A H M
W EE (HMRKARE) -

PGS B2 B A E R A
mF :

RERHIRZEERBBEZRFHED

3/4/2023
—E-=%F
MA=H
HK$'000
FHET

Other intangible assets (note 18) Hib BB E (HiZ18) 3,256
Deferred tax assets RIETRIAE E 143
Accounts receivable JFE W BR 3R 5,102
Prepayments and deposits BRFERES 46
Bank balances and cash RITHERNIR R 316
Accrued expenses FE TR 2 (436)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIAA B (537)
Net asset acquired PRl g & = F1E 7,890

The fair value of accounts receivable at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$5,102,000. The gross
contractual amounts of those accounts receivable
acquired amounted to HK$5,102,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected

amounted to nil.

FHERARUBEER I ATER
5,102,000/ JT ° % & #% W B 2 JE W BR
RRUHE B B2 & K422 ¥ 5,102,000
BT o I EE B EATE R A IR El 2 & A
ReRnEBzxEHFAERE -
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. WEEHI B A T ()

Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year BE-ZE-_=F+=-HA=+—HL

ended 31 December 2023 (continued) FEWEKE QR (F)
Acquisition of VCIAM (continued) WHBIEZBIREEETE (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: RBBEBmMEE ZBHE

HK$'000

FAT

Consideration transferred Frsg R E 14,198
Less: net asset acquired o T S E R E (7,890)
Goodwill arising on acquisition MW EmMEL ZEE 6,308

WRERBEREEEREDELRE R

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of VCIAM because the

cost of the combination included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of VCIAM.
These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition

criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

FE A G2 A BRI E(E - it
S BAHMX N ZREEZER LITERE
bE 2 BRI A IR 2 TR A (R AR - I
@R KRRMEERRBHNBREMH
HRZMEE - ARZFMNmETTAR
BRI B E RIS B R
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. WS B A = (48)
Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year BE-ZE-_=f+ZHA=+—8H1
ended 31 December 2023 (continued) FEWEKE QR (&)
Acquisition of VCIAM (continued) WBIEZ B EEEE (&)
None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is Bk F W T E A 2 BB TR R T EE1E
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. AR -
WEEREBREEEE 2
Net cash inflow on acquisition of VCIAM RERANFHE HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid (note a) ENBRENRE (Hita) -
Less: cash and cash equivalent W T ER e RIREEEIER
balances acquired ©Eer (316)
(316)
Included in the loss for the year is HK$504,000 FEBEAEEAREREEES AR Y
attributable to the additional business generated by B HN 3 75 B H8504,0008 7T © F B W
VCIAM. Revenue for the year includes HK$2,165,000 BEREBERABREEEE 2 W=
generated from VCIAM. 2,165,000/ 7T °
Note a: The consideration is paid through issuing shares of the Hiita : REDEBETRABRG M -

Company.



318

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

Annual Report 2024 &3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=+—HBItFE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2024

Disposal of D&K Asset Management (HK) Limited
and VC Technology Assets Limited

On 19 September 2024, the Group agrees to dispose of
the 100% equity interests in D&K Asset Management
(HK) Limited and VC Technology Assets Limited to an
independent third party for a cash consideration of an

aggregate amount approximately of HK$60,000.

As disclosed in note 13, on 27 September 2024, the
Group disposed its sales and marketing of digital assets
segment at the time of disposal of the Disposal Group.
The net liabilities of the Disposal Group at the date of

disposal were as follows:

1. HEMB AR

BE-ZE-_MNF+=-A=+—HL
FEHEWBE QR
HERHEEEE (BE)BRAALE
EEFIHFEERRA]
RZZBEZMEALA+NA AKBERE
MBYE=FTHEEHMEEER (%)
ERATDRERMEEEARAAL
10098 # - 43 & X {8 4 560,000/

JC ©

A FIIFEE R=F_MEFENA
“tER ARERLEREWLEL
HHEHABEAEHERERRE D
B HESENLERRZARFEN
T
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2024 (continued)
Disposal of D&K Asset Management (HK) Limited
and VC Technology Assets Limited (continued)
Analysis of assets and liabilities of D&K Asset
Management (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries and VC

Technology Assets Limited over which control was lost:

41. HEKME QR (&)
BE-—ZEZ-_MNF+=-A=+—HL
FEHEWB QR (&)
HEREHEEERE (BF)FRAALR
EEFEEERR LA (E)
EREEHE BB EEETR ()
BERARIKEMBAGURERRFE
EERAGBIZEERBE T :

27/9/2024  27/9/2024  27/9/2024
“EI@FE CZE-QNF —E-NE
WB=++tB HhBE=+tBH HhB=+tH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
D&K Asset
Management
(HK) e
Limited Technology
and its Assets
subsidiaries Limited Total
EHEE
EE(F#B) EZ
BRAFRR BEEE
HIKE AR BRAFE st
Property and equipment I EYE 45 = 45
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 369 98 467
Accounts receivable & e BR 3R - 94 94
Prepayments, deposits and BAFIE  HeREMEK
other receivables Bk 1,312 = 1,312
Accounts payable &1 BR 3R (3,548) a7n (3,719)
Accrued liabilities and other JEET B B R H fh e BR X
payables (321) (15) (336)
Amount due to ultimate holding R &AL D 7] KA
company (15,156) (20) (15,176)
Amount due to immediate JE B ERARIIE
holding company - (64) (64)
Net liabilities disposed of ez AEFE (17,299) (78) (17,377)
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HEMB AT (&)
Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended BE-ZE-_MNF+=-A=+—HL
31 December 2024 (continued) FEHENRE QR (F)
Disposal of D&K Asset Management (HK) Limited HEEHEEER (FE)BERAALR
and VC Technology Assets Limited (continued) ERPREEFRL A (E)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMWE LRz s HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration received ERBEeRE 60
Net liabilities disposed of FTEEZaEFE 17,377
Amount due to ultimate holding company EETWER 2 BN HEERA A
assigned to acquirer A (15,176)
Amount due to immediate holding company & 7 U5 2 BN EEER A A
assigned to acquirer RIE (64)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR M A (1,106)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal & T AR BB R (675)
416
The gain on disposal is included in profit for the year HEWZIGFADRIEEEER 2FE
from discontinued operation (see note 13). A (RHTEE13) o
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMES 2R MEFHE -
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration RERE 60
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of W TR EZRITEKREERE S (467)
(407)
The impact of the Disposal Group on the Group's results HESEHAHRRBTHRAASEE
and cash flows in the current and prior periods are HELREREZEENWFI3WE -

disclosed in note 13.
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HEHE AT (&)
Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended BE-_FE-_MEF+-A=+—HBL
31 December 2024 (continued) FEHENRE QR (F)
Disposal of 9| i E & & B F1 % B R 23 a] HERI T EREEBIFFEBRL 7]
On 27 December 2024, the Group entered into a sales R-ZE-_NF+_F=-++H AEH
and purchase agreement with an independent third party HEBEVYFE=-FFVEERE  UREL
to dispose of its entire equity interest in F Y| TE &S Al BT (HERARBIT) BEHERNR
BB /A F] at a consideration of approximately HK$1 NTERSEIREAR QR Z 2 AR
(equivalent to RMB1). The disposal was completed on E-BBEHEENR T -_WWF+ A
31 December 2024. =F+—HEK-
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was KEESIEZEERBES T
lost:
31/12/2024
—ET-EF
+=ZA=+—H
HK$'000
FHET
Bank balances and cash RITEBRKRE S 2
Accrued liabilities and other payables FERT BB R H b BT BR K (10)

Net liabilities disposed of FHE B EFHE (8)
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HEMB AT (&)
Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended BE-ZE-_MNF+=-A=+—HL
31 December 2024 (continued) FEHENRE QR (F)
Disposal of XY i & & BB B R 2+ 7] U &R TEREBIFIH AR E] (&)
(continued)
The loss arising from the disposal shown in the FaEnkEMEERARMIIZHE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FrEAL 2 BEHRFERNT

comprehensive income is calculated as follows:

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWE QR 2 s HK$'000
F&TT
Cash consideration RERE =
Net liabilities disposed of FTEEZaEFRE 8
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal i 6 T AR BROE R =
8
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEHEMEEZRESRE FH
HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration BERE =
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B FTHEZRITEGRLES )
(2)

*  |ess than HK$500 * D R5008 7T
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2023

Disposal of VC Financial Investment Holding
Limited

On 8 December 2023, the Group agreed to dispose of

41. HEME QR (&)

BE-2-_=f+t-A=+-HL
EELENBLS
HEEREBREERERLA A

R-ZE-_=F+—-ANB > "&EBERZE
L‘Afﬁﬁfﬂgmooooo;‘%ﬁrﬂﬁﬁ’%z

the 100% equity interests in VC Financial Investment

Holding Limited to an independent third party for a cash i EE

consideration of HK$6,400,000.

The net liabilities of the disposal group at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was

lost:

1000/0HXT¥ °

TREEERAERAAZ

HHESEXNHERRZAEFENT

REERBRZEERBBEZAN :

8/12/2023

—E-=F

+=ANR

HK$'000

FHET

Bank balances and cash RITHEBNIRS 4,022
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables Bt FRIE - %24 & H & U IR X 11
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE - B AR P R R B FRIA (196)
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries FERT R Z M8 A R 3B (4,558)
Accrued liabilities and other payables 1%5*%%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘§ﬁﬁ§ﬂ )
Shareholder’s loan PR E K (68)
Net liabilities disposed of FHE B EFHE (791)
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HEHB AT (&)
Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended BE-ZE-_=fF+=-H=+—8H1
31 December 2023 (continued) FEHENB AT (F)
Disposal of VC Financial Investment Holding HEERTHIRERKERL A (E)
Limited (continued)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz W HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HeRE 6,400
Net liabilities disposed of FTEEZaEFE 791
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries FET R R M8 A R 3B (4,558)
Amount due to holding company JE T2 AR A B 5RIA (196)
2,437
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HHEMEEZRESRAFHE HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration BeRE 6,400
Less: consideration receivables (note) B BB (A7) (2,198)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances o MHER e REEFEEAR
disposal of R (4,022)
180
The amounts due to the group companies of JE 1< 5= [B A 7] 2 5K I 494,754,000 JT
approximately HK$4,754,000 were waived by the Group REREEMBARBRERNEERE
upon completion of the disposal of subsidiaries.
Note: The consideration receivable is settled in cash by the Bt BRKEBERZ-_Z-_NF—-—A++tH

purchaser on 17 January 2024. HEAARSEN -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NREBRHIRS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated MEGETBEREREMESAAHEEE I
financial statements, during the year, the Group entered TR AEECHBABGETUTRS:

into the following transactions with related parties:

2024 2023
—EDNE T =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Brokerage commission income earned MARABIETEETXREES
from certain directors of the Company REEEEABZERK
or close family members of or entities REZSH 2 BRI
controlled by these directors and key B ME WA
management 80 53
Compensation of key management personnel TEEBAEZHMH
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other FRAARBEZESRHMEERBES 2 B
members of key management personnel during the year 2T :
is as follows:
2024 2023
—E-MNE 2 —T =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Short term benefits X HIfE A 5,580 8,571
Post-employment benefits B B3 12 42 A 56 54
Other long term benefits H R R 18 -
5,654 8,625
The remuneration is determined by the Remuneration e T RARDTENE & €EEDER
Committee of the Company having regard to the AT EBERTEBREET

performance of individuals and market trends.
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

43, D7) Z B AR R &

COMPANY
2024 2023
—E-mE — e
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K1t FH& T FATT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR 2IRE 0) 2,688 2,688
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEIRRERZ
BZHBEE - 12,700
Amount due from a subsidiary S NGIE S (i) 502,597 500,733
505,285 516,121
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ TEfTFIE « & R H M E U
receivables 8RR 305 18,596
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEIERRERZ
BrUBEE 105,143 144,933
Amounts due from subsidiaries A= NGIE e iii) 595,380 603,923
Bank balances IRIT R 114 126
700,942 767,578
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued liabilities and st E R EAmETEER
other payables 1,993 11,612
Margin loan payable ERREBEER 18,627 18,761
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT |8 A BIZkIE ) 831,238 744,056
851,858 774,429
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (150,916) (6,851)
Total assets less current HWEEBRRBEE
liabilities 354,369 509,270
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43, A F 2 BB RR & (&)
COMPANY (continued)

2024 2023
—B-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Convertible bonds AR E S 13,476 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIEEE 153 -
13,629 =
Net assets BEERE 340,740 509,270
Capital and reserves BEXKfEE
Share capital A% 1,803,718 1,803,718
Reserves & (1,462,978)  (1,294,448)
Total equity W R 340,740 509,270
The Company’s statement of financial position was AR ZHBRAREEETEN_F
approved and authorised for issue by the board of THE=ZAZ+TN\BRERERT I
directors on 28 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf HTIIEEHREE
by:
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo
B EE ERIAE
Director Director

EF EE
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

0)

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2024, investments in
subsidiaries are carried at cost of approximately
HK$2,688,000 (2023: HK$2,688,000). No
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

The amount from a subsidiary of approximately
HK$502,597,000 (2023: HK$500,733,000) is
unsecured and interest-free. The directors of the
Company do not expect repayments from a
subsidiary within next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. An impairment loss of
HK$91,189,000 (2023: HK$150,000,000) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2024.

The amounts due from subsidiaries included loan
and interest of approximately HK$338,021,000
(2023: HK$293,089,000), in which a loan of
approximately HK$18,208,000 (2023:
HK$18,208,000) is unsecured, interest-bearing at
Hong Kong prime rate 1.25% (2023: 1.25%) and
repayable on demand and a loan of approximately
HK$319,813,000 (2023: HK$274,881,000) is
unsecured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong prime rate
plus 10% (2023: plus 10%) per annum and
repayable within one year as at the end of the
reporting date. The remaining amounts due from
subsidiaries of approximately HK$257,359,000
(2023: HK$310,834,000) are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. An impairment loss
of HK$2,742,000 (2023: HK$6,197,000) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2024.

The amounts due to subsidiaries included loan and
interest of approximately HK$337,431,000 (2023:
HK$338,336,000) are unsecured, interest-bearing at
Hong Kong below prime rate 4.5% (2023: below
prime rate 4.5%) per annum and repayable on
demand. The remaining amounts due to subsidiaries
of approximately HK$493,807,000 (2023:
HK$405,720,000) are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

43. KR T

0)

(i)

(iii)

7 2 B BRI & (&)

RZZFB-_WF+_A=+—H0 R
M B A Rz % & 1% 492,688,000
7T (ZZT - =% : 2,688,000 )
ZHRABER - BE_T_NF+ =
A=+ Bt FEHEERREE
B(ZEZ=F:8\) -

47502,597,0008 T (Z T - =& :
500,733,000/8 7t) Z FEW K B A
RIRBAEERETHE - AAF
BV TBEHEHEBARRBREEHR
Bit-_EAZRER -HE-Z
“WME+-A=+—HItFED®E
8 (B 5 18 591,189,000/ 7t (=
T — =4 : 150,000,000 ) °

47338,021,0008 T (Z T - =& :
293 089 ooo,’én)ZfH&MTE
FE(BREERRFME) F
18,208,000,%71 (_E:fi :
18,208,000 7t) 2 E R A E K
B IRB T HREEFE M 25E
(ZE-=F:125B)H B RER
ZRKEEE - 55M49319,813,000
B (ZF -~ =4 :274,881,000
B ZERBEERRE BB IR
BEMEMOBE (ZZE=_=F :
10E) 2 FFEREFE - ARIREH
XK —FRNEBE HHBYH
257,359,000 L (Z T = = F ¢
310834000;%73)2&“4&%%
FIBAEERE  THEREAR

;J:E?LE\}\% BE-_Z-_NF+= ﬁ
=+t BILFEERRIREESES
2,742,000 L (Z &2 == F
6,197,000/ 7T) °

49337,431,0008 T (ZE = =4 :
338,336,000%8 7T) 2 B S i B A
ARE (BREEARRFE) AEEK
B BB LREBREFERFI4SE(Z
T=F EEMNERFISE) 2
FRNRABRARERFEES H
£k #7493,807,0008 T (=T = =
& : 405,720,000 JT) Z F&E - B
BRAFIEAEIKF - TstERA
RERBFEE -
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BEZ
43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(iv) Movement in the Company's capital and reserves

43. AT 2 B IR & ()

(iv) RRRIERRFHEES

329

Convertible
Share Capital bonds  Accumulated ~ Share option
capital reserve reserve losses reserve Total
ThE
kx  EARKE  BERE  EAER  BRERG it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEn TExn TRz TR TER
1 January 2024 A\ZE-PE-A-H 1,803,718 123,758 - (1429299) 11,088 509,270
Loss and total comprehensive EEFERZARY
expenses for the year 28 - - - (169,415) - (169415)
Recognition of equity component o~ EATEREES 2
convertible bonds RAEEH - - 1,060 - = 1,060
Deferred tax liabilties on recognition ~ SAEATERERZ
of equity component of convertible A H 5 2 BEFHE
bonds B - - (175) - - (175)
Transfer of share option reserve RERER N TER
upon lapse of share options ERERE - - - 2828 (2,828) -
At 31 December 2024 R-2-RE
tZA=1-H 1,803,718 123,758 885  (1595,881) 8,260 340,740
Convertible
Share Capital bonds ~ Accumulated  Share option
capital resenve resenve losses resenve Total
AR
kx  BARE  BRRE 0 ZHER BRERR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn Thn Thr Thn TR TR
1 January 2023 A\ZEZ=£-f-H 1,753,934 123,758 1565 (1,155223) 4,604 728,638
Loss and total comprehensive EEFERZERY
expenses for the year £E - - - (278721) - (278.721)
Recognition of equity-setlled share ~ BEZBAEAZ M 2
option expense BRERR - - - - 11,134 11,134
Issue of shares upon conversion of ~ FEEH AR E%
convertible bonds kG301 644 - (144) - - 500
Issue of consideration shares ETRERR 13,863 = = = = 13,863
Issue of shares by placement REEMETRD 36,000 - - - = 36,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue R E & ME{THR{
of shares by placement HEEZRGHA (723) = = - - (7123)
Release of deferred tax liabilites on ~~ HEZ S BA AR
settlement or cancellation of EAmBREERE
convertible bonds B - - (1.421) - - (1.421)
Transfer of share option resenve REREXAMER
upon lapse of share options BREGE - . - 4,650 (4,650) -
At 31 December 2023 RIZZZE
+-A=+-R 803718 123758 - (1429298 11088 509270
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 44, KPBIZ2FEMB A RES
THE COMPANY
Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end RNEREHR AEBZETENERQ A
of each reporting period are set out below: FHEHNOT -

Paid up issued

registered Propartion of voting  Principal activities
Placeof  Class of ordinary Proportion of ownership interest held power held by the  and place of
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital by the Company Company operation
HRERA
i) P dRAIeE FEROEH ERERRA ADARSHEERERLD AAARERZRLS IERHRALHE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
B 53 tZh=1-8

2004 2003 2024 2003 2024 2003
ZECRE “5CCF ZECRME CECCF ZEIME CICCF

% % % % % %
VC Financial Group Limited  BVI Ordinary share ~ US§1 100% 100% N/A NA 100% 100%  Investment holding in
ERemEEERAE  RERLES LAk 17 TER  TER Hong Kong
REAUSRERR
VC Brokerage Limited Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares ~ HK$400,000,000 N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100% Provision of brokerage
EREFARAA B EER 40000000027 FER  FER and secuities margn
financing semvices in
Hong Kong
REERMELRZS
EERERK
VC Capital Limited HongKong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$71,550,000 N/A NA  100%  100%  100% 100% Provision of corporate
ERRERRAT i ERR 7155000057 TER  TER finance and advisory
Senvices in
Hong Kong
REARULEREAR
BRRH
VC Finance Limited Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$1,000,000 N/A NA - 100% 100%  100% 100% Money lending in
ERUHARAA & ERRk 1,000,000 TER  TER Hong Kang

REERE
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end

of each reporting period are set out below: (continued)

Place of  Class of

Name of subsidiary incorporation  shares held
i}, P MR FERAEH
VC Corporate Services ~ Hong Kang ~ Ordinary shares

Limited & ERR
ERNERKERAR
VC Sevices Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary shares
ERRHARAA (i ERR
\VC Research Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary shares
ERRTARAA Bt ERR
Easy Task Holdings Limited BVl Ordinary shares

KRRARE EBK

Paid up issued
registered
ordinary
share capital
HRERS
AfEERE

HK$13,490,100

13,490,100

HK$10,000
10,0007

HK$500,000
5000002 T

US§1
E3

44, KRB 2 X EMB L BFE (8)

REBREMR  AEBZTEZNBER

HEHNOT - (&)
Propartion of voting
Proportion of ownership interest held power held by the
by the Company Company
AAARFERRRRELA ALARERZRLA
Directly Indirectly 31 December
B B3 +ZR=1-8
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
“RCRE CFCF CRCRF CFCCF CRCME CF0CF
% % % % % %o
N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%
TER  TER
100% 100% N/A N/A 100% 100%
TER  TER
N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%
TER  TER
N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%
TER  TER

Principal activities
and place of
operation

IEXBRAEY

Provision of corporate
senvices in
Hong Kong
RERREDERHE

Provision of
management services
o group companies
in Hong Kong

REARERRRRE
BERE

Provision of research
services in
Hong Kong
RERRUTERE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
RERUSRERR
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 44. ARTF 2 T EMBRAAFE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end REREHER  AEBZEEHWHER A
of each reporting period are set out below: (continued) FHBEFANOT - (B)

Paid up issued

registered Propartion of voting  Principal activities
Placeof  Class of ordinary Proportion of ownership interest held power held by the  and place of
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital by the Company Company operation
AR
KEARAH aRRIsE FEROEH EREERK AAARERRRRRLA RAARGREELN TEXRREERY
Directly Indirectly 31 December
B (53 tZR=1-8

2024 2003 2024 2003 2024 2003
ZECRE “5C-F ZECWME CEC-F ZEIME CICCF

% % % % % %
Century Race Investment BVl Ordinary shares ~ US§1 N/A NA  100%  100%  100%  100% Investment holdingin
Limited AERRHEE Lak B30 TER  TEE Hong Kong
RERHZREER
Experts Management Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$3,590,000 N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%  Provision of insurance
Limited &4 ERR 3590000% 7T TER  TER broker in Hong Kong
RERRARRAL
k%
D&K Asset Management ~ HongKong ~ Ordinary shares  HKS)! NA - 100% N/A N/A N/A 100% Investment holding in
(HK) Limited (rote )~ &% Lk &7 FER TR TEE  TER Hong Kong
ERBEER (TR REAHSRERR
BRAR W)
RE(LE)REER  Peoples  NA RMB12478,100 N/A N/A NA - 100% /A 100% Seles and marketing of
BRA (note b) (Hz#p) Republic of iR ARERABI0T  FER MEE TER TER digitl assets
China UEREHERER
hEARLNE
RYTARERNER Peoples  N/A RVBI 1,974,745 N/A NA NA - 100% N/A - 100% Seles and marketing of
BRAF (note b) (F/225) Republic of TR AREN945r  FER MEE TER TER digital assets
Ching UEREHERER

REARRNE
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end

of each reporting period are set out below: (continued)

Placeof  Class of
Name of subsidiary incorporation  shares held
KEARAH ERRIEE FERHEH

\Clntemational Asset ~ Hong Kang ~ Ordinary shares
Management Limited 7% EBR
(Note )

EREREEEEERAA
(Wita)

Polyton China Limited ~~ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares
(Note ¢ s Eak

BHRTERRLR i)

Paid up issued
registered
ordinary
share capital
HRERS
AfEERE

HK$10,450,000
10,450,000/ 70

HK$10,000
100008

44, KRB 2 X EMB L BFE (8)

REBEMR  AEEBZTEZNEAF

Proportion of ownership interest held

BESIWT : (8)

Propartion of voting
power held by the
Company

RRAfEREELA
31 December
tZB=1-A
2024 2023

CECNE -Z--4F ZB-NE “T--F -E-NE “FT--F

by the Company
AAARFERRRRELA
Directly Indirectly
B B

2024 2023 2024

% % %

N/A N/A 100%
TER  TER

N/A N/A 100%
TER  TER

% %

100% 100%

100% N/A
TiER

Principal activities
and place of
operation

IEXBRAEY

Provision of asset
management services
to clients in
Hong Kong

REAMEPREAE
BERE

Provision of rental
Services in
Hong Kong
RERRUASRE
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end

of each reporting period are set out below: (continued)

Notes:

(a) VC International Asset Management Limited was acquired
on 3 April 2023.

(b) D8&K Asset Management (HK) Limited, Ff# ( L&) % & &
BAERRAF and RINTAEEREHE HERRQF were
disposed of on 27 September 2024.

(c) Polyton China Limited was acquired on 30 April 2024.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.

44, KRB 2 X EMB L BFHE (8)

REBEHMR  AEEZTEHNBERA
HEHINMT : ()

Hiaz -

) EREBREEERARAANR-E
“=FMA=AKE -

b)) BHMEEERE(FE)ARAR  Fi
(L) REERARA B KR A
BERMBRBNERAAN_-_F MO
FAA-ZTEBHE -

o0 BNEFBEERAFN_-_Z_MEN
A=+HIkE -

ERIEARAEZTRARIEFELRE
BREXEEZAEENBRAR - AR
REZERAR JHEMMBERARZFIE
KLREBRITEK
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44, PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries are either inactive or
investment holding companies. A summary of these

subsidiaries are set out as follows:

44, KRB 2 X EMB L BFE (8)

al e EZ%HE TZ%‘E%&%?'JZZD—W

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEXE® TEQKELR MEARHA

2024 2023

—EZMF —T—=
Investment holding Hong Kong 12 12
REER E
Investment holding BVI 10 10
REZEK REBRZHES
Investment holding Cayman lIslands 3 3
REER FEHS
Sales and marketing of digital assets PRC - 2
BIBEEHE RERE 1 ]
25 27

45. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, there were no other significant events

required to be disclosed.

45. {EHZ EIE

BRiraMBHRREMEAABES I -
WEHEMEBANEFATHE -
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FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY A AEEZHMEEE

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated ~ AEBBEREMBFE 28 EE AR
assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial &AEEKBEEBEHANWOT ©

years is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December

BET-AZ+-HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-NE -E-=F -E--F —E--%& C-E-EF
Consolidated results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
G ES TR TR THRL THAT THET
Revenue s 70,407 76,138 73,281 90,607 77,909
(Loss) profit before tax BBiAT (B98) &R (129,091) (293,597) (178,166) 17,668 (30,498)
Income tax credit (expenses) FERER (Ax) (55) 5,399 74 (10,874) (1,823)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(B8) &7 (129,146) (288,198) (178,092) 6,794 (32,321)
Other comprehensive expenses for FEAMZEMY (2,110) (6,243) (1,152) (6,344) (17,537)
the year
Total comprehensive (expenses) income £E 2 (B %) WA (131,256) (294,441) (179,244) 450 (49,858)
for the year aE
(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents) S (&) 2 F (84L)
Basic X (5.19) (12.05) (857) 0.81 (2.36)
Diluted #E (5.14) (12.05) (8.57) 081 (2.36)

As at 31 December

Wt=B=+-H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“E-mE  -“F--F ZF--F  ZF-- i e 3
Consolidated assets and liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GEEERERE THr THL FHL THL T
Total assets BEE 451,601 569,152 808,901 999,065 929,259
Total liabilities gaf (66,909) (55,870) (61,251) (72,171) (90,555)

Total equity aER 384,692 513,282 747,650 926,894 838,704
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